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SOAR TO GREATER HEIGHTS
REES

Pentamaster International Limited inspires each and every of its subsidiaries
and stakeholders to achieve greater heights, leveraging on each other’s
strength across the diversified ecosystem that has been in place, across the
various industries that it serves, like a twilling upward momentum spiral.

“Think Automation, Think Pentamaster” — a strong enduring vision tagline
that the Company believes truly in that will continue to serve and position
the Group towards a sustainable growth in the years to come, capitalising
on the technology growth trend to mark the Company’s global footprint and
recognition as it transitions into the new technology era.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
ASIES

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (the “Company”)
BERERRARAE (TF28))

(MC-323853)
(Cayman Islands)

(AEEB)

Pentamaster Technology
(M) Sdn. Bhd.
199501007290 (336488-H)
(“Pentamaster Technology”)

(Malaysia) (F2c7552)

Pentamaster Technology
(Jiangsu) Limited
91320507 MA25TXWQXP
(“Pentamaster Jiangsu”)

(China) (FR[ET)

Pentamaster Automation
(Japan) Co., Ltd.
1020003020389
(“Pentamaster Japan”)

(Japan) (H7)

Pentamaster Automation
(Germany) GmbH
HRB 283547
(“Pentamaster Germany”)

(Germany) (&)

Instrumentation Sdn. Bhd.
200301034952 (637373-M)
(“Pentamaster Instrumentation”)

Pentamaster

(Malaysia) (F2k752R)

Pentamaster Technology
(M) Sdn. Bhd.
(Singapore Branch)
@GR RAR)

T18FC0094F
(Singapore) (N

Penang Automation Cluster
Sdn. Bhd.
201601021441 (1192380-V)

(Malaysia) (2K 752m)

Pentamaster
MediQ Sdn. Bhd.

202001017008 (1373328-W)

(“Pentamaster MediQ”)

(Malaysia) (F2c7552)

Pentamaster Equipment

Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd.

200601029409 (749166-A)
(“Pentamaster Equipment”)

(Malaysia) (F2k755R)

Pentamaster Equipment
Manufacturing, Inc.
(82-4120867)

(U.S.) G=E)

TP Concept

Sdn. Bhd.

201001040387 (924312-H)
(“TP Concept”)

(Malaysia) (&27agn)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AT E

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
MYR’'000 MYR000 MYR000 MYR000  MYR'000
RESULTS (Audited) g (BER TS5 —0 == =0 =E
Revenue s 600,587 508,086 418,581 487,088 417,098
Profit before taxation PRI AT R A 134,758 120,574 114,804 139,180 105,366
Profit after taxation Fr# B m A 133,301 116,744 113,921 131,381 100,009
Profit attributable to: LU FEfR SR
Owners of the Company ATHEE A 133,301 116,744 113,921 131,381 100,009
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERK&E
Total assets B E 1,001,661 825,080 659,276 578,357 497,947
Total liabilities wars 264,948 188,337 125,731 139,434 177,568
Net assets EEFE 736,713 636,743 533,545 438,923 320,379
REVENUE Y& PROFIT AFTER TAXATION &R & &%
(MYR'000) (F% %) (MYR'000) (FT4%&
600,587 ) 133,301 )
2021 508,086) 2021 11 6,7449
2020 41 8,581) zozo 1 13,921)
201 ) 487,088) 201 ) 131 ,381)
41 7,098) 1 00,009)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRHBS

Dear Shareholders,

In 2022, Malaysia (and most countries) transitioned to an endemic
phase after two years of COVID-19 pandemic, which posed
significant challenges to the country, to the people and the business
environment as a whole. The Company and its subsidiaries

» oo« y o«

(collectively, “we”, “us”, “our” or the “Group”) was not spared as we
faced multiple challenges from capacity limitation to supply chain
volatility and from logistical disruptions to operational difficulties.
Further stressing the endemic phase recovery was the geopolitical
tension between major superpowers which has continued to impact
global economies negatively and led us to the current inflationary
environment with the rising material costs and other indirect costs.
With all these headwinds, nevertheless, | am proud of my team in
steering the Group to achieve a remarkable milestone with a record
revenue in our 32 years of operation. For the first time, the Group’s
revenue exceeded MYRB00 million, a double-digit commendable
18.2% vyear-on-year growth rate, with profit after taxation stood
at MYR133.3 million. The jo
not easy and | am really appreciative and thankful to my team, my

urney towards this achievement was

customers, my suppliers and all other stakeholders in supporting me
in facing the challenges together to making this milestone possible.

CEUARICHOON BIN
CXCCULVeRSAlTTIar
X (e )

2022%F » HERA D (RABHBIR) EEE
FCOVID-19% 5B EE B MIT RS EL %]L.
- ARREBEEHEREEREARKS &
REREWE QS (G IEM -~ THRM
TREE)) MREFER BRMmEBALESER
1) 1) 1 8087 B LA B A 4 U P B B A N
HNZERE - BRRITHERERIN =28
ARl 2 B MGECA B RB BT EEH 2
KR EEFAEETE EREMERBRIN
BRRR S ME AR EMBE R AT -
FoBEEHZEANNARZR BEAANABREK
MNEXRIBER BREFTERNERETI2FE
PRSP ERINABILETRNIENBERB A
EEMNBRABRNERHCO0OE B S » EMIEE
18.2%MNM M BIE R BB KRG KRB HE
ME133.3EBELT - BRILMAMIBELF
B AANFEBRBEMNERKR Z 5~ HE
UM BEMFNEZFTRALBREH K
B BB AT SE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

The Group witnessed year-on-year revenue growth in most of its
business segments in the financial year 2022. Specifically, the
automotive and medical devices segments witnessed extraordinary
growth trend above the rest, at 144.3% and 188.7% respectively,
on a year-on-year basis. The Group’s strategic business plan in
diversifying across different industries and segments, and moving
towards higher value added product and solutions have paid off
slowly and propelled the Group to achieve such double digit growth
rate.

In 2022, the automotive segment formed the largest share of
wallet to the Group’s revenue at 42.4%. The growth was driven by
an industrial structural shift in the automotive segment as global
automotive and its related component companies engaging more
actively for our complete solution product line, from front-end wafer
level burn in tester to back-end module burn in test handler involving
silicon carbide (“SiC”) and integrated power modules. In contrast,
our electro-optical industry’s revenue contribution dropped to
19.5% in 2022, a decrease of 47.4% from the previous year, as the
smartphone and consumer electronics market lack catalyst to spur
demand consumption, especially more so in the current economic
uncertainty and inflationary environment.

Aside from automotive, our medical devices segment witnessed
admirable growth as well during the year, with its contribution
to the Group’s revenue increasing to 14.1% from 5.8% in 2021.
This was driven by the Group’s factory automation solutions for
the healthcare industry and intravenous catheter (“IVC”) assembly
machine. Such demand in a highly regulated industry also speaks
volume of the Group’s capabilities of our products and solutions.
Looking ahead, we expect the demand for our intelligent Automated
Robotic Manufacturing System (“i-ARMS”) factory automation
solutions from the medical device segment to continue to grow in
2023. This expectation is based on our customers’ plant expansion
plans in production capacity, which require additional manufacturing
automation line. Besides the medical devices segment, our i-ARMS
for factory automation solutions has started to make inroads into
food and beverage and automotive segments. We believe that this
segmental expansion will contribute positively to the growth of our
factory automation solutions division and we expect this contribution
to grow to 40% of the Group’s revenue in the immediate term.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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R2022H M FE » REB AR D EHE DN
WABREBFER LHER AEKEES
B EEE RBEEAS N EM DI BFED Y
B E144.3%5188.7% c AEBEREITE K
PHLZEBER TEAESHMNENE SR
K ARFENRRER T2 Z L EERLR
HEAEEBEREMIIERE-

[R20225F » REBE B AEBE A NR A
Do B2 4% ERAED N ELEE
EEEH REASHSBE R EBRAS M4
NEBEBH WA R EEEAN SR
IE IR TEE A R IR S AR IR ERCR
(FSiCl) REMINEIEIRN LR RE
MR o AL Z T 2022 FE W BITE IR A BB
TRERE19.5% R E—FERDA7.4% 5 REH
AEEFHEEBEE TS ZRISERH
BEECE CEREBRKENHERRE
ERENIRIETERE.

FROSENN RPN EBERE DS IRTERR
BEALE EHAEERANTRIH2021
FH5.8%IEME14.1% - BRAGMAREE
HEBRBEREBTE=NIMEBLRRASIER
FREeg (Nve)) AT TeEEE
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BEILHGOIHZ[EEHN KB ANERS
(Mi-ARMS 1) T B E{LfRRH BB RF
R2023F#HEIL R -ZFEALERKRMER
BB EEBET /Y &2 FEEEI
BELEER REBEREDBIN BRMA
NI BBCER RS ZNi-ARMSE MRS
BmEUN RAEDE - HFEE ZDEE
TRETHEESCRRASEDENIEREN
EEEM BMBEHRLEREERPERNER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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INITIATIVES FOR GROWTH

The Group has been growing organically throughout the years and
as we reach certain platform, we do not discount the importance
of geographical expansion in a risk-adverse mode given the current
deglobalisation and bipolarisation environment. In this context, in
addition to our existing presence outside of Malaysia in the United
States, China, Japan and Singapore, we have established our
sales and service office in Germany in quarter 1 of 2023 with plans
to establish offices in Indonesia and the Middle East as our next
geographical footprint. Having said that, our immediate growth
strategy is to capitalise on the growth momentum in the automotive
and medical segments.

In the automotive segment, we will leverage our expertise and know-
how in integrated power module to meet higher market demand for
SiC and integrated power module with our comprehensive end-to-
end solutions. We are proud to have developed a proprietary SiC
wafer burn-in system, being one of the top four manufacturers in the
world, in creating a niche market space for this growth sub-segment
and to solidify our position in the automotive industry.

Likewise for our medical segment, we intend to maximise our
investment in TP Concept to expand our technological know-how
and capabilities in our i-ARMS solutions for medical automation
and healthcare industry. We will also be moving down the value
chain in developing our own single-use medical devices for the
medical industry as OEM (original equipment manufacturer) and
ODM (original design manufacturer). We also plan to achieve growth
by hiring experienced engineers in medical field and expanding our
geographical coverage into key markets such as the United States,
India, Indonesia, the Middle East and China.

1B RIEHE

ZER - AEF-—EARER BERME
B —EKF &R BRI A2 RMRIEIR
15 > AP G 1 LU B AR e AR 23 17 o 15y
BERNEZME -FIUERT EERADRIN
Oh o BRFIRFINSRED S R ED S B A KR IR BY
WAEEHIIN HATER2023FF—FTER
ERIIHE RIRBHER Lt EEHE
RARRIMERIFRRFIB T —EMEE
Bo@BEWMIL  ERMVEHIERREDS
FASRBERBRDEERSE-

FLUSEDEME R A B RFIEEMDD
RBERHENEENBREARM > BBK
IR 2 E i B I BROR 75 22 0 T B Th 35 HISIC K
ERDEBRENESFR - FRAEREAR
BEmz— HAHENFAELFAMSICRE
RIERG BILERBD T HAIENETS
TR EEERMAEAETENMAUKEA

B REANEERSBMs RMEER
ESEMBFIETP Conceptli&E » LUERE
EMTEEBRBHERBEEREFREBITEMN-ARMS
R RS ZE AR B T F0 88 B BE D o IR A
ZEEH#ERD B EAOEM (REERS
7) 5ODM (R st 8 m) » 2B EITERME
EMBEEN—RMEBERE KM EE
BREBEREHTCREEN TREM W
BNt IEBEEHERAZER ENEH
B-AFREkFEEFERS UEHRER-
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Lastly, to further support the growth plans that we have outlined,
our third plant measuring approximately 600,000 square feet on
a 12-acre industrial land will have its phase one targeted to be up
by end of 2023 and phase two in second half of 2024. This new
manufacturing facility will provide the Group with the much needed
space for research laboratories, manufacturing floors and offices for
increased production capacity, research and development activities
and engineering staffing.

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my gratitude to all the employees who have
contributed greatly to the success of our Company. Your hard
work and sacrifices have been instrumental in our growth and we
recognise that you are our key assets and enablers.

| also extend my appreciation to the Board members for their
invaluable support and guidance, which have been crucial in driving
our progress.

Furthermore, | would like to thank our suppliers for their contribution
to our Company’s success. The supply chain ecosystem is an
integral part of our operations and we appreciate your efforts in
making us whole.

Lastly, | am grateful to my almighty God, who has blessed us with
wisdom and opportunities that have enabled us to achieve our
goals. Your blessings have been instrumental in our journey towards
success.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR ERE i

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back in 2022, it was a year of transition as Malaysia
transitioned to an endemic phase after two arduous years of
COVID-19 pandemic. The first half of the financial year remained
challenging to the Group’s operating environment due to the
effects of post COVID-19 as the Group managed to embrace and
adapt to these challenges gradually and sustainably. Key to these
challenges were the volatility in global supply chain, including but
not limited to constrained cargo capacity and logistical challenges,
and the continued rise in cost of materials from the global demand
and supply equilibrium. The challenges over the year was further
compounded by the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine,
together with the geopolitical tension between the United States
and China, which has not only triggered a global price fluctuation
in key material and commodities, but also raised the growing risk
of economic fragmentation and uncertain trade relations. Given
the aforementioned operating environment, the Group’s revenue
exceeded MYRG00 million for the first time, chalking a new revenue
record.

For financial year ended 2022, the Group reported MYR600.6 million
revenue, which represented a double-digit growth of 18.2% as
compared to 2021. Such revenue milestone demonstrated how the
Group has grown by a magnitude of almost 10 times in just over a
decade, where in 2012 the Group’s revenue only stood at MYR56.9
million. In tandem with the record revenue, the profit after taxation of
the Group stood at MYR133.3 million, which was also a new record
after topping its previous record of MYR131.4 milion attained in
2019, registering an improvement of 14.2% in comparison to 2021.
Overall, such encouraging financial performance demonstrated the
Group’s business strategies and its sustainable focus approach in
pre— and during the peak of the COVID pandemic, as well as in the
aftermath as the world herald a return to “normalcy” in the second
half of 2022.

F501RE

[ClEE2022F » H A B RN K M EREE
HICOVID-19& 5B BEER T RN —
FoHIRZCOVID-19B IR 2 AEBMNK
ERENAFBREE LFFENAT kS
BRRAREBLRLZ S R A FEMIZS B
FEZEhE - Z SNV R A D IKEEE
NEE > BIFEEARREZEENZREYR
B U 2 IRE R F o BB A5 A
TH BEEERFEURFEMGB AR
KRE—TMEBE—FHRE > S RES
ERIRBERMERATE RNER IS H
MR ES MR EZEEFEAERENIERER
Ho BN LM KEIRE AERNKEE R
EIFES T B TR L8 ©

I E20220f F » AEE B U ImE00.6BE L
T B2021FBLE B IR18.2% M MU HIE & o
B @ EREBEEAERNANEETF
A RIT10fE > MAERR2012F NI mE
AE6IEESH AREBNARIMENEE
AEMPIBRREBENB138.3E5ELET IR
BEC0190FA T131 4B TN HEDN
Ec iR B2021FARLEIE R14.2% c BEAEM
EORECANEENYBEERBLRERR
COVIDE 1B KB 1B S IEEF LU B 12022
FFEHRERORE B8 BNEBRRREE
AFEERE S A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwmA O

In the year under review, the Group witnessed year-on-year revenue
growth in most of its business segments. Notably, the revenue
momentum from both the automotive and medical devices segments
saw explosive growth year-on-year at a level of 144.3% and 188.7%
respectively. Over the last five years, the Group has been strategically
implementing its structural shift towards higher growth segments,
namely the automotive and medical devices segment to diversify
its revenue base and exposure. In today’s context, the extensive
amount of revenue contribution from the automotive segment speaks
volume of the market acceptance of the Group’s comprehensive
product portfolio for the automotive industry. On the other spectrum,
the Group’s electro-optical segment and consumer and industrial
products segment contracted by 47.4% and 24.3% respectively in
2022 as compared to 2021.

Given the robustness in automotive electrification, the Group’s
exposure in the automotive segment increased to 42.4% of total
revenue, forming the largest share of wallet for the Group in 2022.
During the year, the Group experienced a pick-up demand for its
broad portfolio of automotive test solutions, in particular its front-
end wafer level burn in tester for SiC and back-end solutions for
integrated power modules. Such growth in demand for the Group’s
products and solutions aligned well with the opportunity presented
by the global structural shift towards sustainable e-mobility with
more stringent decarbonisation target. With more major second-
tier automotive component suppliers committing significant
capital spending towards such focus, such scenario bodes well
for demand of the Group’s automotive test solutions. As it is, the
Group has been securing new customers in the automotive space
and is well positioned to continue to capture a greater share in
the automotive addressable market. Estimates from integrated
design manufacturer that semiconductors content per each electric
vehicle (“EV”) is roughly 2x that of conventional combustion engine
vehicle. Additionally, automotive semiconductors must retain high
level functionality that can withstand extreme environments besides
having longer life-span cycle. Market size wise, the EV market was
only 8% of total automotive industry market share in 2021. With the
decarbonisation targets set, coupled with government policies in
place, the market size for EV could hit 6x from 2021 level in 2030.
In current worldwide supply chain disruptions alongside auto chip
shortages, capacity expansions and planning by global automotive
companies for such structural evolution bodes well for the Group.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR ERE i

After dominating the Group’s revenue for five years consecutively
since 2017, the electro-optical industry’s revenue contribution
dropped to 19.5% in 2022 as opposed to 43.9% in 2021. This
represented an overall decrease of 47.4%. As it is, the smartphone
market exhibited insufficient impetus in driving demand, given
low users’ adjustments and replacement, and lack of new smart
sensors’ development. The overall industry’s muted performance
is also the result of inflation and component shortages, besides
geopolitical tension that led to most of the smartphone brand makers
re-adjusting its inventory and supply chain in de-globalising their
respective operations. During the year under review, demand for the
Group’s existing smart device test solutions were mainly confined
to module upgrade and conversion kits. However, in the near term,
the smartphone brand makers are seen focusing and improving
on optical imaging performance and along with this development,
the Group is witnessing a short-term shift towards optical imaging
technology and sensors, with a broader adoption of optoelectronics
across the electronic hardware. According to Transparency Market
Research, the global optoelectronics market is still estimated to grow
at a CAGR (Compound Annual Growth Rate) of 9.1% from 2022 to
2031, supported by increased usage in communication systems,
displays, remote sensing, optical storage and cameras. As this trend
continues, the Group is working on certain prototype projects for
new sensors application in the next-generation smartphone and its
peripherals.

After witnessing a decline in revenue contribution last year, the
medical devices segment marked a turnaround during the year and
grew at an accelerated pace. With its contribution to the Group’s
revenue at 14.1% from 5.8% in 2021, this year saw the demand for
the Group’s automation solution from the healthcare industry and
IVC assembly machine trending up. Consequently, revenue from this
segment rose encouragingly year-on-year by 188.7%. Capitalising
on the technical expertise of TP Concept following its acquisition in
2019, the Group benefitted from the growing trends of automation in
the healthcare sector and is set to embrace more opportunities from
the revolution in medical automation. Given the rise of data-driven
physicians, advances connected to robotics, artificial intelligence and
machine learning will continue to change the healthcare sector. It is
estimated that a third of more than U.S. Dollar 4 trillion healthcare
market size could be automated and be replaced by technologies.
McKinsey predicted that as much as half of current healthcare work
activities will be automated by 2055.
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As for the progress of the business activity involving the single-use
medical devices under Pentamaster MediQ, a subsidiary company
which was incorporated in 2020, the Group is heartened to witness
the completion of the IVC prototyping and given this development,
the Group is set to undergo the conformity and qualification
process to be approved by the relevant approving authority in due
course. Post qualification, the Group will exploit its strength in
medical automation to manufacture on an OEM (original equipment
manufacturer) and ODM (original design manufacturer) basis for its
single-use medical devices.

In the context of the Group’s revenue exposure in the semiconductor
segment, after reporting three consecutive years of revenue growth,
the Group continued to witness a year-on-year growth of 15.9% with
its revenue contribution rate of 14.0% in 2022. The increasing value
and content of semiconductors in general from the acceleration of
digital transformation basically augmented demand for the Group’s
test handling equipment during the year. At the heart of the present
digital revolution, semiconductor industry is seen evolving at a
relentless pace where efforts are aimed at improving the performance
of the semiconductor chips, thereby creating the structural change
and continuous demand in the test handling equipment market. With
the semiconductor market set to hit a trilion U.S. Dollar by 2030,
the sectors that will continue to see robust growth with continuous
Moore’s law are witnessed in data storage, wireless communication,
automotive and industrial electronics. Notwithstanding the cyclical
nature of the semiconductor industry due to the investment trend
and inventory cycle of the semiconductor companies, as long as
the digital revolution is here to stay in propelling the semiconductor
performance evolution and application expansion, the demand for
the Group’s legacy product portfolio within this segment will continue
in a sustainable manner.
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Revenue from the consumer and industrial products segment grew
by 43.3% in the first half of 2022 as compared to the first half of
2021. However, the revenue pace from this segment decelerated in
the second half of the year specifically in the fourth quarter following
the massive and sequential deployment of the Group’s proprietary
i-ARMS that was recognised in the first half of the year. It is worthy
to note the production cycle time for i-ARMS to be deployed in
the consumer and industrial products are typically longer versus
other business segments. Regardless, the Group believes the
sluggish demand from this segment to be temporary given the
rising emphasis in industrial automation as Industry 4.0 continue to
be in focus for increase in efficiencies and operational excellence.
To this end, the Group anticipates the market demand for its
i-ARMS from this segment to rebound in 2023. Such sentiment is
established based on the various plant expansion plans in production
capacity undertaken by its customers which requires manufacturing
automation.

While globally 2022 was yet another challenging year, for the Group it
was encouraging to witness progress with various record milestones
and performances coupled with new technologies and initiatives.
Given the multifaceted headwinds witnessed since the pandemic
outbreak, the Group has once again demonstrated its perseverance
and adaptability by sharpening its focus towards its business
strategies and fundamental priorities, such as managing the supply
chain disruptions and safeguarding the wellbeing of its employees.
Learning from the past and picking up from where it has left, it was
worthy to mention that the Group’s performance in 2022 was not
solely due to the overall recovery in the economy but the agility and
resiliency of the Group’s business model and value creation that had
enabled the Group to maintain a sustainable path of growth amidst a
global tailspin.
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The following table sets out revenue breakdown by customers’
segment for both the automated test equipment (“ATE”) and factory
automation solutions (“FAS”) segments:

TREFIEFERARE (TATE)) R IHKE
AR E (TFAS)) DE TR DEEI D
YU = BAAE

By industry FiT%Et
For the year ended 31 December HE12B31ALLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 % MYR’000 %
Fo5 % F25 %
Automotive JRE 254,856 42.4 104,322 20.5
Electro-Optical Bt 117,409 19.5 223,067 43.9
Medical devices BEES 84,581 14.1 29,293 5.8
Semiconductor FEE 84,001 14.0 72,449 14.3
Consumer and industrial HEBEERTXEER
products 59,740 10.0 78,955 15.5
600,587 100.0 508,086 100.0

Geographically, the Group has broadened and deepened its foothold
into China as depicted by the revenue growth of 58.0% from this
region as compared to the exposure in 2021. Overall, the top five
shipment markets from China (inclusive of Hong Kong), Malaysia,
Vietnam, Singapore and Taiwan accounted for approximately 90.0%
of the Group’s revenue in 2022 as opposed to the contribution rate
of 88.3% from the top five markets in 2021.
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By shipment BEELH
For the year ended 31 December HE12B31ALLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 % MYR’000 %
FLEH % T<5 %
China H 271,431 45.2 171,829 33.8
Malaysia B2k 180,089 30.0 76,759 15.1
Vietnam ) 40,284 6.7 8,375 1.6
Singapore Hhnig 24,716 4.1 30,893 6.1
Taiwan =p- 24,259 4.0 92,911 18.3
Japan H 7 19,928 3.3 76,376 15.0
United States ESE 12,018 2.0 18,771 3.7
Thailand = 6,303 1.1 9,699 1.9
India ENE 6,180 1.0 3,412 0.7
Philippines JEREE 4,898 0.8 12,666 2.5
Others Hith 10,481 1.8 6,395 1.3
600,587 100.0 508,086 100.0
BEREZEEERERAE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Amidst a dynamic headwind faced at the macroeconomic front,
2022 has been an exceptional year for the Group where the Group
achieved another record level for its revenue at MYRG600.6 million,
which was 18.2% higher than the preceding year. The double-digit
growth in revenue was primarily driven by the continuous improved
contributions from both the ATE and FAS business segments with
each segment accounted for approximately 70.1% and 29.9% of
the total Group’s revenue. In 2021, revenue contribution from the
ATE and FAS business segments was similar at 70.1% and 29.9%
respectively.

HREREBBTEBSENRFRGET
022FHAEEMEAEAFALN—F &
SENKRGDBRIELN S E600.6B8S
TOREFEEREIS 2% - ENUHEELTE
HATERFASEBE D EBIFE NS ERFT#
B ERE R REBEEWEAT0.1% &
29.9% ° F220214F » ATEXRFASE 759 W A
SRMEM 25 A70.1%K%29.9% ©

The below outlined the revenue of the respective operating TRIFMIBBEENIMN T > B EEE
segments, which includes elements of the inter-segment transactions IR ZREI R Z E 5 ©
during the year.
Revenue
g &
2022 2021 Fluctuation
20225 20214 BE)
MYR’000 MYR’000 %
F<EH *aE %
ATE ATE
External customers HhERE R 420,716 356,327 18.1%
Inter-segment revenue DI B U R 83,471 2,060
Total revenue g 504,187 358,387
FAS FAS
External customers HhNERE R 179,871 151,759 18.5%
Inter-segment revenue pan= L dy 5,068 3,542
Total revenue 48N T 184,939 155,301
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ATE segment

The ATE segment,
continued to contribute the larger portion of the Group’s overall

being the Group’s main revenue source,

revenue and profit during the year. After marking a turnaround in
2021 with its double-digit growth rate of 25.9%, total revenue from
this segment continued to grow at 18.1% to MYR420.7 million in
2022. During the year, backed by the electrification in the automobile
industry and the proliferation of the EV ecosystem, the automotive
industry emerged as the leading segment within the ATE business
unit, contributing approximately 58.4% as compared to 27.6% in the
previous year. Such significant growth of the automotive segment
within the ATE business unit at an astounding rate of 150.1% did
not only signify the Group’s encouraging milestone in penetrating
the automotive industry but was a testament to the Group’s
comprehensive products and solutions offering for the automotive
industry. Underpinned by a massive wave of developments in
automotive electrification and the various global decarbonisation
policies which accelerated the adoption of EV, the Group’s broad
array of automotive test solutions specifically the front-end tester for
SiC and back end solutions for power devices made a meaningful
breakthrough in the addressable market.

On the other hand, while the semiconductor industry is inherently
cyclical, the ATE segment also benefitted from the semiconductor
industry with its revenue contribution rate of 19.9%, representing
an overall 17.6% growth as compared to 2021. Given the wide
application of semiconductor contents in multiple industries from
computer, telecommunication, healthcare, automotive to general
industrial application coupled with the growing adoption of
consumer electronics from the rapid urbanisation and improved
living standards, the market growth of semiconductor production
continues to bring opportunities and demand for the Group’s test
handling equipment.
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In contrast, revenue from the electro-optical within the ATE
segment contracted to 19.0% in 2022, from 49.7% in 2021,
which represented an overall drop of 54.9%. Recognising that the
smartphone market has reached a certain plateau given the lack
of major upgrade and development in smart sensors, the drop in
revenue from this segment was within the Group’s expectation.
During the year, revenue from this segment was mainly derived
from the module upgrade of the Group’s existing smart device test
solutions.

Overall, the Group’s strong presence in the automotive industry has
complemented its ATE business and such positive development will
continue to provide impetus for growth to the overall Group’s ATE
segment in the mid-to long term.

FAS segment

The FAS segment of the Group has been gaining its traction over the
last few years. Since the listing of the Company, the FAS segment
has been consistently recording years of double-digit revenue
growth with the exception of 2019 where a decrease of 18.4%
was recorded. In 2022, the FAS segment continued to witness
double-digit growth rate in its contribution to the Group’s revenue,
chalking 18.5% growth to achieve MYR179.9 million during the year.
Specifically, the revenue momentum in this segment picked up in the
third and fourth quarter of the year, with revenue in second half of the

year exceeding its first half by 46.4%.

This year saw the medical devices segment leading and driving the
Group’s FAS growth with its revenue contribution rose to 41.5%
from 19.3% in the previous year. The strong year-on-year revenue
growth of 154.6% from the medical devices segment was mainly
driven by global manufacturers of medical products in adopting the
various process and assembly automation in their manufacturing
processes for better productivity and efficiency. It is also a testament
of the Group’s medical automation know-how post acquisition of
TP Concept in 2019 that has started to have a positive bearing in
the Group’s exposure for the medical industry. Revenue from other
business segments, such as consumer and industrial products
segment and electro-optical segment contributed 32.3% and 20.9%
respectively towards the FAS business unit during the year.
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The emergence of digital technologies have accelerated the adoption
of automation. Many companies across various industries are seen
adopting automation in a broader manner especially in a post-
pandemic environment in achieving efficiency and productivity within
a safe operating environment. With the current automation trend and
the acceptance of Industry 4.0, the FAS segment will continue to
grow and contribute positively to the Group.

Gross margin

The Group concluded the year with an overall gross margin of 30.9%
as opposed to 30.5% in 2021. Despite the Group having to confront
the challenge over the supply chain constraints and inflationary cost
pressures along with other lingering macroeconomic uncertainties,
the Group is heartened to witness a relatively stable gross margin
across all four quarters in 2022. The Group’s increased exposure
to the automotive and medical devices segment were the main
attributes of the healthy margin and such encouraging situation was
further bolstered by the continuous growth from the FAS segment. It
was worthy to mention that the Group’s penetration into these higher
growth industries afforded the Group the opportunity and timeliness
in mitigating the adverse cost impacts associated with component
cost increases and rising labour cost in this highly inflationary
environment.

Other income

The Group recorded other income amounting to MYR11.4 million
during the year as compared to MYR15.2 million in 2021. The
amount recorded in 2022 was mainly contributed by bank interest
income of MYR5.2 million and miscellaneous income of MYR1.3
million. There was also a waiver of other payable amounting to
MYR4.8 million during the year.

In 2021, there were elements of gain on foreign exchange of
approximately MYR7.4 million. Such gain on foreign exchange
was offset by a loss from changes in fair value of foreign currency
forward contracts of MYR2.1 million under the Group’s administrative
expenses, resulting in a net gain on foreign exchange of MYR5.3
million in 2021. There were no such element of foreign exchange
captured under other income during the year.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group mainly comprised of the
movement arising from foreign exchange, professional fees and
administrative staff cost. During the year, administrative expenses
increased by MYR18.1 million from MYR37.0 million in 2021 to
MYR55.1 million. This was mainly due to the following factors:

(i) loss on foreign exchange of MYRO0.8 million and loss from
changes in fair value of foreign currency forward contracts of
MYR?7.6 million during the year as compared to the loss from
changes in fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
(“derivative loss”) of MYR2.1 million in 2021. The Group
entered into several forward contracts since beginning of
the year based on the order book on hand where majority of
these contracts received from customers were denominated
in U.S. dollars. The objective of the Group undertaking such
hedging process was to mitigate any adverse foreign exchange
exposure that will affect the financials of the Group given the
size of the order book received. The continuous appreciation of
the U.S. dollar against MYR during the year has resulted in the
derivative loss arising from the forward contracts committed by
the Group;

(i) higher administrative staff cost of MYR28.4 million during
the year (2021: MYR23.7 million) due to the increase in staff
incentive and employee benefit expenses of MYR7.5 million;

@iy Incurrence of the research and development cost of
Pentamaster MediQ in respect of its single-use medical devices
amounting to MYR5.5 million; and

(iv)  higher professional fee of MYRO0.6 million and higher upkeep
and maintenance cost in computer of MYRO.7 million with the
increase in staff headcount.
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Profit for the year

The Group recorded a net profit of MYR133.3 million in 2022,
representing an increase of 14.2% as opposed to a net profit of
MYR116.7 million achieved in 2021. Accordingly, the Group’s
EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation)
for 2022 stood at MYR143.4 million as compared to MYR127.9
million recorded in 2021, representing an increase of 12.1%. Basic
earnings per share rose from 4.87 sen in 2021 to 5.59 sen in 2022.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group continued to maintain a healthy working capital of
MYR510.3 million as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
MYR416.6 million). Net cash from operations generated by the
Group during the year was MYR59.9 million as compared to
MYR121.6 million in the previous year. Cash and cash equivalents
stood at MYR328.6 million as at 31 December 2022 as compared
to MYR350.0 million in 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
available banking facilities remained at MYR19.5 million in the form of
term loan and trade facilities. The Group has made a full repayment
for the balance of its term loan which was previously drawn down
to partly finance the leasehold land of its second production plant in
Batu Kawan, Penang. With the full repayment made, the Group has
no borrowings as at 31 December 2022.

The Group’s business operations are generally supported by a
combination of internal and external sources of funds. Internal
sources of funds mainly refers to shareholders’ equity and cash
generated from its operations, while external sources of funds mainly
derived from the credit terms granted by its suppliers. The Group
believes that after taking into account its cash and bank balances
as well as the funds envisaged to be generated from its business
operations, the Group is expected to have adequate working capital
to meet its present and foreseeable day-to-day business operation

requirements.
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Foreign exchange exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of its
normal trading activities whereby sales and to a certain degree,
purchases are principally transacted in U.S. Dollar. The Group also
holds other financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. These are not the functional and reporting currencies of
the Group to which the transactions relate.

As part of the Group’s treasury policy to manage its foreign exchange
exposure, the Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts
apart from maintaining U.S. Dollar denominated bank accounts to
minimise the effects of adverse exchange rate fluctuations on its
financials.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Pledge of asset
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s leasehold land of

MYR4,660,000 (2021: MYR4,744,000) has been pledged to secure a
bank loan.
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Employees and remuneration

The Company recognises its employees as one of the Group’s
most important assets. The Company strongly believes in hiring
the right talent, nurturing and retaining these talented employees
with competitive remuneration packages. Besides, the Group
is committed to organising regular external and internal training
programs to upgrade the employees’ skill set, knowledge and job
experience.

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of full time employees of
the Group increased to 782 (31 December 2021: 689).

Significant investments held, material acquisitions
and disposal of subsidiaries, and future plans for
material investments or capital asset

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company has allocated a budget of up to MYR200.0 million for the
construction of new manufacturing plant on a newly acquired land
and will be funded via internally generated funds.

Save for those disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held with a value of 5% or above of the Group’s
total assets, nor were there material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries during the year. Apart those disclosed in this report,
there was no plan authorised by the Board for other material
investments or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 19 January 2018 at the offer price of HK$1.00
per share (“Listing”). The proceeds (net of listing expenses) from
the Listing were approximately HK$171.3 million (equivalent to
approximately MYR92.6 million). In accordance with the proposed
use of net proceeds as set out in the section headed “Future plans
and use of proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 29
December 2017 (the “Prospectus”), the net proceeds utilised by the
Group from the date of the Company’s listing on 19 January 2018
(the “Listing Date”) up to 31 December 2022 are as follows:

L HRRRERIERE

KRB RPDENR2018FE1B19HMINES B
BMaXBMAERAR (T#AZF) £k b
BEBASRI.008 T (T - LHFA#E
FIE (kL) A98171.38 88T (18
ERN26BEESE) - RIEBEAABBEA
2017F12H29B B RER (BRERRY)
MR st Bl R TSI AR —EIFT & BIFT
BRIEFEENERER R AR B R20185F1
B19H tmz B (T = HER) B E20224F
128318 1k NEBPT AT RIEF W
=

Use of
proceeds
from the Unutilised Unutilised Unutilised
Listing Date amount amount proportion
up to as at as at as at
Amount of net proceeds 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
earmarked 2022 2022 2022 2022
BLHAH
BEE2022F 20226 120226 20226
12A318 1k 18188  12831BH 12A31H
BEFMBREIENEE FRNERRE XDAXE KDEEE WNRBALAH
HK$ million MYR million MYR million MYR million MYR million %
Use of net proceeds FrERIERERR BEET HERT AERT BERE BERE %
Capital investment and costs in BREMEERERER
relation to the new production RELERENEAR
plant and the expansion of BERMAE
the existing production plant 84.8 45.8 45.8 - - -
Business expansion REBREEATENR
into the Greater China region 38.1 20.6 20.6 - - -
Establishment of an office in REEMFEREM Note
California, U.S. FRU—BHWAE 28.2 15.3 11.5 6.5 38 24.8 [zt
Marketing, branding and mEEH REEER
promotional activities EEES 3.1 17 17 - - -
Working capital EEET 17.1 9.2 9.2 - - -
Total ait 171.3 926 88.8 6.5 3.8 441
Note: Out of the unutilised amount of MYR3.8 milion as at 31 December 2022, Mzt . 122022512831 B RABNAAEMIESSEES S

a further amount of MYRO0.5 milion had been utilised as at the date of this
report. Taking into consideration the current monthly expenditure of the office
in California, the Board has resolved to extend the timeline of the remaining
unutilised amount for an additional 24 months up to 18 January 2025.
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The Directors are not aware of any material change to the proposed
use of proceeds as at the date of this report. The unutilised
net proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent with that
mentioned in the Prospectus. The intended timeframe was based
on the best estimation and assumption of future market conditions
and industry development made by the Group as at the date of this
report.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL RISKS
Operational risks
Dependence on key management and experienced personnel

Our success and growth is to a significant extent, attributable to
the strategies and vision of our Chairman and the contributions
of our executive Directors and senior management team, who
play significant roles in our Group’s day-to-day operations. Whilst
we endeavour to provide a competitive remuneration package
to our staff and ensure that they are appropriately rewarded, the
competition for competent personnel in our industry is intense.

As part of the long term plan to nurture and retain its key
management and employees, the Company’s immediate holding
company, Pentamaster Corporation Berhad (“PCB”) implemented the
share award scheme during the Company’s Listing in recognising the
contributions made by key management and employees as well as to
incentivise and retain them for continual operation, growth and future
development of the Group. On 1 April 2020, the Company adopted
a share award scheme which is valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on 1 April 2020 to serve as part of the Group’s
employee retention program in retaining its existing employees and
to attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.
Additionally, the Group continuously grooms younger members of
the management staff and other employees to participate in the
management of the Group. It is also the current practice of the
Group to not depend on one person to perform an important job
function to prevent dependency on any particular person. Emphasis
is placed on team work and all important projects will have backup
personnel.
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Risk relating to technological obsolescence

Technology obsolescence is one of our business’ inherent risks.
The rapid development of technology prompts swift changes in
customers’ demand and requirements. Our technological products
and solutions, may potentially be rendered obsolete due to the rapid
evolution and emergence of new and/or substitute technology.

The Group seeks to minimise these risks by actively and continuously
pursuing technology innovation and advancement, industry best
practices and strategic business alliances to address the increasing
sophisticated needs of its customers. The Group also provides
continuous staff development to align their skills and knowledge
with the requirements of the latest technology in the automation and
semiconductor industries.

Continuous efforts are constantly made to increase the efficiencies of
the research and development (‘R&D”) function for the development
of new products and to strategically develop a continuing
effective and dynamic management team to ensure the continued
improvement of the Group’s performance. Also, the Group’s regular
participation in overseas exhibition provides opportunities for us
to understand the latest market requirement and keep abreast of
current technological changes.

Competition risk

We face keen competition from many international and local
competitors of various business scales. Technology, product quality,
pricing, proximity to customers, services and breadth of products
and/or solutions offered are the key areas of competition for our
business. Many of our customers are multinational companies in
Malaysia and overseas where the selection of equipment for their
manufacturing processes are based on stringent criteria such as
high quality automation equipment, good after sales service support,
competitive pricing and also dependability of the products.
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The Group’s R&D effort and value innovation to venture into high-end
technology for smart devices and i-ARMS had enabled the Group
to achieve its product differentiation in this marketplace. Having
our own software development team is also one of the competitive
edges against our competitors. Emphasis is also placed on
continuous quality checking to ensure the products meet customers’
requirement and are of high quality.

Excellent after sales service to our customers has always been
the priority of the Group. As the Group’s products are customised
automation solutions made according to specification required by
customers, after sales service is crucial to ensure smooth running of
customers’ operations.

Intellectual property

The rights to use the technology behind the various design and
manufacturing processes in our business and industry as well as
the protection of proprietary knowledge, technology and processes
developed by our Group are crucial to our continuous success and
development. If our technology is infringed by way of unauthorised
copying, use or imitation, our competitive advantage, sales and
reputation may be affected.

To mitigate the risk, the Group has submitted applications to
register several of its trademarks and affirmed the relevant statutory
declarations in respect of the copyrights of certain software
products. All the employees are also required to sign a non-
disclosure agreement (NDA) to protect the Group’s interest.

Financial risks

The Group’s financial risks are set out in Note 40 under the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.
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PROSPECTS

“When the going gets tough, the tough get going.”

Year 2022 ended on another challenging note and it was a year
of two halves. While the aftermath of the COVID-19 pandemic
continued to be felt, the first half of the year was compounded
by the various geopolitical developments and rising inflationary
pressures from the prolonged supply chain disruptions. The Group,
through its various business strategies and approaches, navigated
carefully in these challenging times and embraced the second half
of the year on a better footing by executing and undertaking some
of its internal business initiatives that were geared towards building
new capabilities and revenue streams, while remaining vigilant
and reactive in every stage of its execution to ensure agility in this
highly evolving situation. It was definitely a year of resilience and a
year of adaptability where the Group remained focused on its core
competencies while responding to challenges and opportunities.

With the challenging year that has been, 2023 will be a year of
consolidating and gathering internal strength and commitment to
continue achieving breakthroughs in its existing businesses and
geographical markets with new growth drivers and initiatives.
Anchored by a record high order book on hand, the Group is
forward-looking in establishing another year of solid business growth.
Most notably, the Group will continue to strengthen its pillar of growth
strategies in product diversification, geographical diversification
and segmental diversification. Operationally, the Group has made
headway in expanding its presence in higher growth segments
namely the automotive and medical devices segment. In respect of
automotive segment, with its leading position achieved during the
year from revenue contribution standpoint, the Group expects the
growing revenue exposure from this segment to persist on the back
of its strong order fulfilment that is largely driven by the quickening
pace of automotive electrification and the various automotive-
related stimulus and policies towards decarbonisation that provide
impetus to the EV market. The medical devices segment, which is
now seen dominating the Group’s FAS segment will set the scene
for pushing the revenue growth streak further within the segment as
the application of automation in medical manufacturing becomes
prevalent.
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The Group’s effort in its geographical diversification approach entails
establishing its presence outside of Malaysia which mainly includes
China, Japan, U.S. and Singapore. Such establishment held the
Group in good stead as the Group continues to record positive
financial performance on the back of its growing sales traction
achieved from these regions that cover important key market for
the business segments of the Group. While the Group sets eyes
on Germany, Indonesia and Middle East for its next geographical
expansion, the Group is mindful of the “China plus one” strategy in
which multinational firms are seen moving parts of their production
outside of China, with India and Vietnam being the two primary
locations brought up in attention. The Group is of the opinion that
while such economic policy brings positive development in reducing
supply chain dependency and vulnerability, it augurs well for the
overall Group’s business growth opportunity with the potential
increase in demand for the Group’s products and solutions from
these new establishment outside of China.

As the Group continues to seek opportunities to improve its financial
performance, it is also keeping a keen eye on building a sustainable
environment. In addition to putting sustainable business strategy
in place, the Group is cognisant of the increasing importance of
non- financial reporting. As part of the Group’s continuing efforts in
enhancing transparency, the Group will step up its Environmental,
Social and Governance (‘ESG”) disclosures by making reference to
the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD). In addition, the Group will enhance its ESG
initiatives through the formulation and implementation of the various
ESG action plans that encompass, among others, climate change
initiatives, supply chain, diversity, employees’ engagement, corporate
culture and compliance to reinforce its sustainability.
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As the Group enters 2023 at an encouraging pace, the Group
remains cautious given the current volatile global environment.
The Group does not expect the overall sentiment to return to pre-
pandemic conditions anytime soon and while this dynamic situation
remains fluid, the Group will continue to drive operational efficiency
and prudent cost optimisation to mitigate the impact of rising
material price and any other cost increase from the inflationary
pressure. Organically, the Group will continue to build its internal
capabilities and accelerate innovation across all facets of its business
segments from new product development to value chain activities
to address the rapidly evolving market requirement. On a broader
level, the Group is staying on course to keep pace with its long term
growth initiatives steered by its “Grand Roadmap & key Focus 2022-
2025” which is formulated to further progress the Group towards
achievement of its long term growth trajectory.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chuah Choon Bin (“Mr. Chuah”), aged 62, was appointed
as our Director on 12 June 2017 and was re-designated as
our Executive Director on 5 September 2017. Mr. Chuah was
subsequently re-designated as the Chairman on 19 December
2017. He currently sits on the board of PCB as the non-executive
chairman and non-executive director. PCB is currently listed on the
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia and is the Controlling Shareholder of
the Company. He also holds directorship in all the subsidiaries of the
Group.

Prior to setting up the Group, he served as an automation engineer
for National Semiconductor and Intel Technology Malaysia. With
his vast experience in the design and manufacturing of automation
equipment and vision inspection system, he has developed the
Group to its present level of success, from a simple automation
house to a high technology group specialising in providing factory
automation equipment and systems and information communication
technology solutions to industrial and commercial customers.
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Under his leadership, the Company achieved the following

recognitions;

U)

(i)

)

(V)

inclusion into the constituents of the FTSE4Good Bursa
Malaysia (“FAGBM”) Index in 2021 where such FAGBM
Index measures the performance of public listed companies
demonstrating strong environmental, social and governance
practices;

ranked in the top 200 in the Forbes 2020, 2019, 2018 & 2017
Best Under a Billion list of companies that are publicly listed in
the Asia Pacific region;

awarded The Edge Billion Ringgit Club, under the category
of the Highest Returns to Shareholders Over Three Years for
technology sector in 2020 and 2019 and the Highest Growth in
Profit After Tax Over Three Years for technology sector in 2019;

awarded the Focus Malaysia Best Under Billion Awards 2018
for the Best Revenue Growth, Best Enterprise Value Growth
and Overall Winner category, and Focus Malaysia Best Under
Billion Awards 2017 for the Best Return on Assets category;
and

recipient of the Enterprise 50 Award 2002 organised by
Accenture and SMIDEC and Quality Management Excellence
Award 2003 for the category of local company with annual
sales turnover exceeding MYR25 million to MYR200 million at
the Industry Excellence Award 2003 organised by Ministry of
International Trade and Industry.
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For his personal recognition, he won the First Malaysian Ernst &
Young Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year Award Malaysia 2002.

Currently, he is the board member of Penang Charis Hospice Home
and Penang Automation Cluster Sdn. Bhd. Mr. Chuah sits as the
chairman of SUK Kwang Hwa school and he is also appointed to the
school board as director for Chung Ling High School, Heng Ee High
School and Phor Tay High School. In 2021, he is appointed as the
Penang Wawasan Open University Education Foundation Member
and Penang i4.0 Seed Fund Evaluation Committee Member.

Mr. Chuah is a co-founder of PCB and its subsidiaries including our
Group (the “Pentamaster Group”). He graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering with honours in May 1985 and a master’s
degree in engineering majoring in electrical and electronics in May
1989, both from the University of Auckland, New Zealand.

Mr. Chuah is the brother in-law of Ms. Gan Pei Joo, the Executive
Director and the chief financial officer of the Company.
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GAN PEIJOO
Executive Director 17E %
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Ms. Gan Pei Joo (“Ms. Gan”), aged 47, was appointed as our Director
on 12 June 2017 and was re-designated as our Executive Director on 5
September 2017. She was appointed as an executive director of PCB on 19
March 2021. She is also the chief financial officer and holds directorship in all
the subsidiaries of the Group.

She commenced her career at PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2000 and was
last served as a senior associate in 2003 after having acquired extensive
auditing and consulting exposure to companies in various industries. She
joined Pentamaster Group as the group accountant in 2003 and held various
positions prior to her promotion as the group financial controller in 2009. Ms.
Gan is primarily responsible for the overall management, corporate affairs,
finance, treasury, control functions and budgeting of the Group. She also sits
on the environment, social and governance (ESG) committee as well as risk
management committee of the Group.

She graduated with a bachelor’s degree of commerce majoring in accounting
from Curtin University of Technology, Perth, Australia in February 1999. She
was admitted as a member of the Certified Practising Accountants, Australia
and a Chartered Accountant from the Malaysian Institute of Accountants in
July and November 2002, respectively.

Ms. Gan is the sister in-law of Mr. Chuah Choon Bin, the Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ERITES

Mr. Leng Kean Yong (“Mr. Leng”), aged 48, was appointed as our Director #
on 7 August 2017 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director
on 5 September 2017. He is a member of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. He currently sits on the board of
PCB as a non-executive independent director.
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Mr. Leng has been in the finance and marketing field for over 20
years. He is highly experienced in the areas of business strategy,
ranging from financial matters to business planning and marketing.
He has successfully executed projects for small-medium sized
industries to listed companies on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,
the Australian Securities Exchange and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as well as projects for multinational corporations.
Such projects encompass IPO exercise, industry research report, the
development of a 5-year business plan, marketing strategy blueprint,
customer relationship management implementation, market entry
and feasibility studies, and mergers and acquisitions evaluations.

At present, Mr. Leng is also one of the Directors at Crowd Sense
Sdn. Bhd. (which operates under the brand name of Cofundr), a
recognised market operator for peer-to-peer financing registered with
the Securities Commission Malaysia. He was previously a Director
at L3 Consulting Sdn. Bhd. and Project Director for Synovate Sdn.
Bhd., and prior to that, a senior manager for ACNielsen Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd. (“ACNielsen”). During his tenure at ACNielsen, he was
awarded with three ACNielsen awards for his contribution in
successfully implementing and executing key strategies for the firm'’s
local operations. He started his career with BBMB Securities Sdn.
Bhd. and he has also advised and managed discretionary fund for
private companies and high net worth individuals.

He graduated from the Western Michigan University (cum laude), the
United States, with a bachelor in business administration degree in
April 1996. He also holds various other certifications through training
and updates in the fields of marketing obtained throughout his career
with the various global marketing research consultancy firms.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WiIJEHITES

Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng (“Mr. Sim”), aged 56, was appointed .
as our independent non-executive Director on 19 December 2017. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing judgment to our Board.
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He started his career with Ernst & Young for 15 years before joining
R.K. & Associates as a lead partner in 2004. He subsequently joined
Eaton Industries Pty Ltd (Australia) as accounting manager and later
transferred to Shanghai Eaton Engine Components Ltd (China) as
financial controller. Upon returning to Malaysia in January 2012, he
was appointed as chief operating officer and chief financial officer
for The BIG Group Sdn Bhd. In January 2014, he joined Petrol One
Resources Berhad as its chief financial officer and remained with the
group until January 2019. He joined Silverpack Sdn. Bhd. in March
2019 as its Chief Financial Officer and remains in the same position
until today.

From December 2016 to July 2020, Mr. Sim served as an
independent director of Jack-in Group Limited, a company listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX: JIP). Currently, he sits
on the board of Nova Wellness Group Berhad (“Nova”), a company
listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(stock code: 0201) as an independent non-executive director. He
is also the chairman of audit committee and risk management
committee of Nova. In September 2020, Mr. Sim was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Ramssol Group Berhad
(“Ramssol”). He is also the chairman of audit committee and risk
management committee of Ramssol.

He is a Chartered Accountant under Malaysian Institute of
Accountants, a Certified Public Accountant of Malaysia Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Certified
Practising Accountants of Australia. He also holds a Master in
Business Administration and various other certifications through
training and updates in the fields of accountancy and taxation
obtained throughout his career.
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Dr. Chuah Jin Chong ((3{Z§%) (“Dr. Chuah”), aged 61, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 19 December 2017. He is also
the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board.

Dr. Chuah has over 30 years of professional experience in the medical
industry since he was registered as a medical practitioner in Queensland,
Australia in 1988 and New Zealand in 1989. From December 1991 to July
2003, he was employed by the Hospital Authority in Hong Kong and retired
as an associate consultant in the department of anaesthesia in the Queen
Elizabeth Hospital, Hospital Authority. He is currently a registered medical
practitioner in Hong Kong.

Dr. Chuah graduated from the University of Queensland, Australia, with the
degree of bachelor of medicine and bachelor of surgery in December 1987.

He was admitted as a fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the

CHUAH JIN CHONG £ {_ {8
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specialty of Anaesthesiology and a fellow of the Australian and New Zealand
College of Anaesthetists in May 2001 and June 2001, respectively.
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Ms. Chan May May (B&3£3) (“Ms. Chan”), aged 57, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 19 December 2017. She is
also a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. She is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to our Board.

She has over 20 years of experience in the legal field. She is currently
the chief executive officer of ZICO Insource Inc. since July 2015, which is
engaged in the provision of insourcing and consultancy services relating to
legal, human resource and communications. Ms. Chan was the head of group
corporate communication in Dialog Group Berhad from December 2012
to January 2015. Prior to that, she worked at Media Chinese International
Ltd., a company listed on both the Stock Exchange (stock code: 685) and
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (stock code: 5090). From July 2017 to
October 2020, she served as an independent non-executive Director of
BGMC International Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1693).

Ms. Chan graduated from the University of Malaya in Malaysia with a degree
of bachelor of laws with honours in August 1990. She has been admitted to
the Malaysian Bar since March 1991.
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Mr. Hon Tuck Weng (“Mr. Hon”), aged 52, has been the operation director
since May 2007 and is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily operation
of our management information system, quality assurance and control,
facilities and internal control functions. He started his career as the software
programmer of Pentamaster Technology a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company in March 1995. Mr. Hon has more than 25 years of experience
in automation solutions industry.

Mr. Hon graduated with a higher diploma in computer studies, moderated and
assessed by the University of Humberside in United Kingdom, in September
1993. He later obtained a postgraduate certificate in engineering business
management from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom, in June 2011
through a distance learning course.
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Mr. Teoh Siow Khiang (“Mr. Teoh”), aged 66, has been the senior general
manager of Pentamaster Instrumentation, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company since January 2017. He is primarily responsible for overseeing
the daily operations of Pentamaster Instrumentation. He joined as a general
manager of Pentamaster Instrumentation in January 2006.

He started his career with Hitachi Semiconductor Sdn. Bhd. as a TTL &
CMOS IC test Engineer in 1983. He later joined Hewlett Packard as a LED
test specialist engineer and expanded the role to be R&D Engineer in LED
development. In 1999, he joined the Agilent Technology, a spin-off of Hewlett
Packard Company, as an Instrument NPl engineering manager. He was
in the pioneer team in setting up the electronics measurement instrument
manufacturing operation in Penang. He was subsequently promoted to senior
manager.

Mr. Teoh obtained an honours class bachelor’s degree of engineering majoring
in electrical and a master’s degree of engineering from University of Malaya in
June 1982 and July 1991, respectively.
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Mr. Teh Eng Chuan (“Mr. Teh”), aged 49, has been the chief operating T
officer of Pentamaster Technology since January 2015. Mr. Teh is primarily
responsible for overseeing the daily operations of Pentamaster Technology.
He joined as a vision software engineer of Pentamaster Technology in January
1996 and has over 20 years of experience in the machine vision, design and
control. Mr. Teh completed a course of higher diploma in computer science in
Kolej Damansara Utama (currently known as KDU Penang University College),
Malaysia, in April 1995.
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Mr. Ng Chin Keng (“Mr. Ng”), aged 44, has been the chief operating officer ¥

of Pentamaster Equipment, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
since January 2015. Mr. Ng is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily
operations of Pentamaster Equipment. He joined as an automation software
programmer in January 2000. Mr. Ng obtained a bachelor’s degree of science
in computing and information systems with honours from University of
Lincolnshire & Humberside, United Kingdom, in July 2001.
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Mr. You Chin Teik (“Mr. You”), aged 46, is the vice president of new
business development and is primarily responsible for overseeing the research
and development activities of our Group. He joined our Group as a vision
engineer in January 1998. Mr. You obtained a higher diploma in computer
studies from Kolej Damansara Utama (currently known as KDU Penang
University College), Malaysia, in February 1998. He later obtained a degree of
master of business administration from University of South Australia, Australia,
in March 2009 through a distance learning course.
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Mr. Ong Thean Lye (“Mr. Ong”), aged 63, is currently the chief operating
officer of Pentamaster MediQ since its inception in 2020. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the daily operation of Pentamaster MediQ in the
development of the medical devices business.

Mr. Ong started with Intel Technology Sdn. Bhd. as quality and reliability
engineer from 1986 to 1990 before venturing into information technology
business. He was a director of TP Concept Sdn. Bhd. from 2018 to 2020,
a private company in the business of designing and manufacturing of
automated assembly machine for medical products. Currently, Mr. Ong is the
director of Walta Centre of Excellence (WCOE) Sdn. Bhd. and a member of
the Industrial Advisory Panel (IAP) of the Electrical Engineering Technology
Faculty of University Malaysia Perlis (UnIMAP).

Mr. Ong graduated with a first class honours in his bachelor degree in applied
science majoring in electronic technology in 1986 and later a master degree in
the business administration (MBA) in 1996, where both the degrees are from
University Science of Malaysia (USM).
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The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance
and the need to ensure that it is observed and practised throughout
the Group. The Group strives to attain and maintain good corporate
governance practices and is committed to achieving high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics to safeguard the interests
of shareholders of the Company and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the
CG Code. Other than disclosed below, the Company reviews its
corporate governance practices regularly to ensure compliance with
the CG Code.

COMPANY’S CULTURE

The Board believes that corporate culture underpins the long-term
business, economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A
strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term sustainable
performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate citizen. The
Company is committed to developing a positive and progressive
culture that is built on its vision, mission and values, which are set out
in this annual report.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and
requires all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are
required to attend orientation and training programs so that they may
better understand our corporate culture, structure and policies, learn
relevant laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In
addition, from time to time, the Company will invite external experts
to provide training to our management personnel to improve their
relevant knowledge and management skills. The Group promotes
and fosters a conducive working environment such as open
communication policy in order for the employees to stay motivated,
and engagement among various teams, levels and departments. The
Group’s employees are encouraged to be innovative to help foster
interesting working environment.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose,
values and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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Board composition

The Board is structured with a view to ensuring it is of a high calibre
and has a balance of key skills and knowledge so that it works
effectively as a team and individuals or groups do not dominate
decision-making.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Details of their composition by
category are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chuah Choon Bin (Chairman)

Ms. Gan Pei Joo

Non-executive Director

Mr. Leng Kean Yong

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chuah Jin Chong

Ms. Chan May May

Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. None of
the members of Board is related to one another, save and except

that Ms. Gan Pei Joo, the executive Director, is the sister-in-law of
Mr. Chuah Choon Bin, the chairman and executive Director.
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Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for guiding and monitoring the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board delegates the day-to-day management of the business to the
executive Directors and the management team. However, certain
functions are specifically reserved for the Board which include the
following:

° in conjunction with management, establishing a vision and
strategies for the Group;

° approving the Group’s annual business plan and budget;

° approving specific items of material capital expenditure, major
acquisitions, investments and disinvestments;

° appointing Directors to the Board;
° approving any significant changes to accounting policies;

° approving public announcements, including financial
statements;

° approving any interim dividends and recommending any final
dividends to Shareholders;

° approving all circulars, statements and corresponding
documents sent to Shareholders;

° approving the terms of reference and membership of Board
Committees;

° approving Company policies which may be developed from
time to time;

° providing leadership and strategic directions for the Group;

o overseeing the proper conduct of the business;
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° ensuring prudent and effective controls and risk management
system; and

° overseeing the development and implementation of
shareholder communication policy.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The CG Code provision C.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman
and chief executive be separate and not performed by the same
individual to ensure there is a clear division of responsibilities
between the running of the Board and the executives who manage
the business.

Mr. Chuah Choon Bin who is the chairman of the Board of the
Company, provides leadership and is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is functioning properly with good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Chairman also ensures that Board
discussions are conducted in a manner that all views are taken into
account before a decision is made.

The Company currently has not appointed any chief executive. The
day-to-day management of business has been properly delegated to
different individuals by the Board.

Ms. Gan Pei Joo, being the executive Director, is responsible for the
overall management, corporate affairs, finance and control functions
and budgeting of the Company. With the support of the senior
management, the executive Directors have the general responsibility
for day-to-day management of the Group’s business, implementation
of the policies of the Board and making operational decisions. The
Board is regularly provided with adequate, complete and reliable
information of the Company in a timely manner, which includes but
not limited to, the recent development and prospects of the Group.
Therefore, the Board considers that there is sufficient balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company, and that power is not concentrated in the hands of any
one individual.
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Non-executive Directors and Independent non-
executive Directors

The role of the non-executive Directors is to bring independent an
objective judgment to the Board which mitigates risks arising from
conflict of interest or undue influence from interested parties and
protects the interest of minority shareholders. The Board recognizes
that it is important to periodically assess whether a Director who is
designated as independent continues to satisfy such designation.
Towards this end, an assessment of independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules is carried out on each of the independent non-executive
Directors annually by every other member of the Board.

After the assessment, all independent non-executive Directors fulfil
the independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/
her independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent. In
compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three independent non-executive Directors, representing
more than one-third of the Board.

The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
have signed respectively a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years. The term of appointment of each Director
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) and the Listing Rules.

In 2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company does
not grant nor have any plan to issue any equity-based remuneration
with performance-related elements to all the independent non-
executive Directors.
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Tenure of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The CG Code provision B.2.4 requires that if an independent
non-executive director has served more than nine (9) years, such
director’s further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders. The accompanying
explanatory note to such resolution should explain why the Board (or
the Company’s nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”))
believes that the director is still independent and should be re-
elected. In addition, the Company is required to disclose the length
of tenure of all the independent non-executive Directors who have
served more than nine (9) years on the Board or appoint a new
independent non-executive Director at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The independence of a Director is assessed at least annually which
includes the tenure of an independent Director. In the event where
the tenure of an independent non-executive director is close to
nine (9) years, the Board through the Nomination Committee would
assess several factors to determine the independence of the non-
executive Director, failing which the Nomination Committee shall re-
designate the non-executive Director to be non-independent. The
Board may also consider identifying a suitable candidate to fill up the
role of independent non-executive Director on the Board. As of the
date of this Annual Report, the tenure of all the independent non-
executive Directors is not more than nine (9) years.

In addition to the tenure of service, the Board also considers various
factors to considerably determine the independence of a director.
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Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Company recognizes and embraces the importance
and benefit to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board to
corporate governance and the Board'’s effectiveness. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. The Board nomination and appointments will
continue to be made on merit basis based on its business needs
from time to time while taking into account diversity. The Board
shall also review the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy on an annual basis.

In accordance with the Board Diversity Policy, the Company has set
below measurable objectives:

- Selection of board candidates shall be based on a range
of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience.
In particular, when identifying potential candidates to the Board,
the Nomination Committee and the Board will, among others,
consider the current level of representation of different genders
on the Board when making recommendations for nominees
as well as succession planning to the Board and senior
management.

- The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary,
agree annually on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board
for adoption. The Company aims to maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant
to the Company'’s business growth.

- The ultimate decision will be based on merit against objective
criteria and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board, taking into account the corporate strategy and
business operations of the Company.
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- The Board is also committed to having a Board consisting of
more than one gender. The Board should consist of at least
one Director of a different gender who genuinely possesses
the necessary skills, experience and calibre appropriate to the
Company’s business.

- The Board aims to ensure that there is at least one Director of
a different gender on the Board and that this is maintained in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

- In order to achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the
Nomination Committee will propose a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board to achieve gender diversity.

During the year and as at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises six Directors, two of which are female. The Board targets
to maintain at least the current level of female representation, with the
ultimate goal of achieving gender parity. The following table further
illustrates the diversity of the Board members as of the date of this
annual report.
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Age Group Educational Background and Professional Experience
FHAR HERRREELR
Accountancy
Name of Directors Gender 40-49 50-59 60-69 Engineering Law and Finance Medicine
EEfH 5 40F495% 50Z595% 60Z695% IR iR BithER Ba
Mr. Chuah Choon Bin Male v
Chuah Choon Bin% % Elia
Ms. Gan Pei Joo Female v v
Gan Pei Joo%Z peg
Mr. Leng Kean Yong Male v v
Leng Kean YongZt 4 Elia
Mr. Sim Seng Loong @Tai Seng Male v v
Sim Seng Loong @ Tai SengZt: 4 B
Dr. Chuah Jin Chong Male v
BOEEL B
Ms. Chan May May Female v v
BEELT feqid

During the year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
the effectiveness of Board Diversity Policy, and is of the opinion
that each of the Board members possessed different educational
background and professional experience including engineering, law,
accountancy and finance and medicine. The Board is satisfied that
it is characterized by significant diversity in terms of gender, age,
educational background and professional experience.
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Workforce diversity

The Board recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
workforce (the “Workforce”) of Group to enhance the quality of its
performance. As such, the Board has adopted a workforce diversity
policy.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Group sees increasing diversity at the Workforce as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. To achieve diversity on the Workforce
of the Group, selection of the employee candidates shall be based
on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience.

The Group will endeavour to identify and implement programs that
will assist in the development of a broader and more diverse pool of
skilled and experienced employees or individuals and that, over time,
their skills will prepare them for senior management and/or board
positions.

The gender ratio (female-to-male composition) in the workforce
(including senior management) for the year ended 31 December
2022 is 17.6% to 82.4%. For further details of gender ratio, please
refer to the disclosure in the environmental, social and governance
report of the Company.
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Policy on obtaining independent views and input

In 2022, the Board has adopted the policy on obtaining independent
views and input (the “Board Independence Policy”), which
demonstrates the Company’s commitment to high standards of
corporate governance, and making good governance integral to the
Company’s culture.

According to the Board Independence Policy, the Chairman
of the Board has a responsibility to provide the Board with all
the information that is relevant to the discharge of the Board’s
responsibilities. The Board therefore, expects to receive timely advice
on all material information about the activities, performance and
projects of the Group, particularly including any significant variances
from a planned course of action.

The Board, Board committees or individual Directors may seek such
independent professional advice, views and input as considered
necessary to fulfil their responsibilities and in exercising independent
judgement when making decisions in furtherance of their Directors’
The
Mechanism is established to ensure independent views and input

duties at the Company’s expense (the “Mechanism”).

are available to the Board and should be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

In the event that independent professional advice, views and input
are considered necessary, the Board shall first communicate with
the company secretary and provide background and details of the
relevant matters which require independent views and input. The
Board may direct any questions, queries, concerns or specific advice
to be sought to the company secretary or elect anyone in charge
who will then contact the Company’s professional advisers within
a reasonable period of time. Any advice received from professional
advisers shall be received in written form and duly documented. The
Board is expected to exercise independent judgement in forming
their decisions from professional advice given.
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The Board also has access to senior management which will be
brought into formal and informal contact at the Board meetings or
other corporate events. The Board has full access to all information
provided by the senior management.

The Board has reviewed and considered the implementation of the
Board Independence Policy and Mechanism to be effective during
the year.

Board committee

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and Nomination Committee on 19
December 2017, to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.
Each of the three committees has sufficient resources and its specific
terms of reference that are approved by the Board, relating to its
responsibilities, duties, powers and functions, which are posted to
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Board committees will regularly report to the Board on decisions
or recommendations made.

Audit committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Board passed on 19 December 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and
Rules 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is primarily
responsible for (i) reviewing and monitoring the financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems of the Company, (ii)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of external auditors; (i) performing the Company’s corporate
governance functions; and (iv) to monitor continuing connected
transactions (if any).

The Audit Committee currently consists of the non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Leng Kean Yong and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng and Ms. Chan
May May. Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng who is the chairman of
the Audit Committee holds the appropriate professional qualifications
as required under Rules 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Audit IRIEZBIZEE TR EESEE BZEETE
Committee meeting shall be held at least twice every year or more HBERTEILHAETH > AWIBEREE 8]
frequently if circumstances require. During the year ended 31 TEIEFEMIBITEE - NEE2022F12H31H
December 2022, four Audit Committee meetings were held, among FFEE > BXEE T RTHNRNGZH > UE
other things, to review and consider the followings: RkEE (HPEHE TFEE:

(@) reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual financial results (a) EEIZBEAATNEZE TR EEH

of the Company as well as its results announcement and BEERHEESEAN S BENEATH
subsequently presented the relevant reports to the Board for PR AR L K AN A Bl AL B R 2 BT 0 238
approval before its subsequent release to Stock Exchange’s BRARSHESSIE

website and the Company’s website;

(b)  monitored the Group’s financial controls, internal control and (b)) BEERAEERFEERIT AP EEITEKE
risk management systems; BEIERAR

() reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the  (c) HERIAE BRI F LB AEAIA L ;
Group;

(d) reviewed the external auditors’ management letter and any (d) FWBEIINEZEEIMEERE R4 LUKkIZ
material queries or issues raised by the auditor; and BEMRHMNEAEAREHNEE ; &

(e) reviewed the remuneration, qualifications and independence of () ZEBSNEZEMAM S EREBIL
the external auditor. 1% o
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Remuneration committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Board passed on 19 December 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are (i) to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration;
(i) to review the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for the
Directors and senior management; (i) to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; and (iv) to
consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of one non-
executive Director, Mr. Leng Kean Yong, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng
(Chairman) and Dr. Chuah Jin Chong.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
Remuneration Committee meeting shall be held at least once every
year. During the year ended 31 December 2022, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held. The following is a summary of work
performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year:

(i) review and make recommendation to the Board regarding the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management;

(i)  review and make recommendation to the Board the
Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

(i) review and make recommendation to the Board the proposed
grant of award shares. While considering the grant of award
shares, the Remuneration Committee had evaluated the
remuneration of the grantees in comparable market peer
and the value of grant to the grantees. After considering
those factors, the Remuneration Committee recommended
the proposed grant of award shares to the grantees to the
Board for approval to recognise and appreciate the grantees’
contributions and commitment to the Group which align with
the purpose of the share award scheme of the Company.
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements. The remuneration of the
senior management of the Group by band for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration bands

EERNEANFMIEBEN GESHBREW
S AERASHREEBREZE2022F12H
S1EIEEENFHFMIZERB2WOT !

Number of
senior
management
BREEAE
#B

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,300,000
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000

1,000,0017 75 2= 1,300,00078 75
ZHITZE 1,000,000 7T

Directors’ remuneration policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors are the emoluments of the
Directors be determined by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) in
which the Group’s employees will be entitled to participate on 1 April
2020 (the “Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise the contributions by
certain employees and to incentivise them to achieve the Group’s
long-term business goals and objectives. The Scheme also serves
as part of the Group’s employee retention program in retaining its
existing employees and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.
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The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the Board
and the trustee in accordance with the scheme rules and the trust
deed of the Scheme. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. As
at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Scheme was
approximately seven years.

The maximum number of shares to be subscribed for and/or
purchased by the trustee by applying the trust fund of the Scheme
for each calendar year for the purpose of the Scheme shall not
exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) as at the beginning of such calendar year. The Directors
shall not instruct the trustee to subscribe and/or purchase any
shares for the purpose of the Scheme when such subscription and/
or purchase will result in the said limit being exceeded. The maximum
number of shares which maybe awarded to a selected employee
under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares from time to time.

Details of the award shares granted

On 4 January 2021, the Board approved the grant of an aggregate
of 11,402,000 award shares (the “2021 Award Shares”) (amounting
to approximately 0.71% of the total issued Shares) to selected
employees (the “2021 Grantees”) in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme as at the date of this report. The 2021 Grantees are not
required to make any payment in respect of the 2021 Award Shares.

Among the 2021 Award Shares, 150,000 Award Shares were
granted to Ms. Gan Pei Joo, the executive Director. The 2021 Award
Shares will be satisfied, upon the satisfaction or waiver (as the case
may be) of all the relevant vesting conditions, by existing Shares to
be acquired by the trustee through on-market purchases. The trustee
purchased 3,110,000 Shares during 2021.

On 7 July 2021, allotment and issue of shares pursuant to the bonus
issue of one (1) bonus Share for every two (2) existing Shares held
on 22 June 2021. As such, the total 2021 Award Shares would be
17,103,000 award shares.
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B (Th19 1) HBEME% - M BRERE R,
AEERERBH LMRE AEARFES
T RIETZEANZFEDE R BEE
ARpD-ZEEE TN ECRENERB K
MHE LRAFEBBTREETRMBHN
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ERHERRGFE

R2021F1B4B EEGHERBNR AR
HSHANEKRAEEEE T (T 20214
AN BFEHE11,402,000 E B AR 1D
(M2021 F B 1) (EBEEITRMBEL
0.71%) © 2021 F & A B ER2021 FEZE L
P EATERRIE

E2021 FHEENAG 15 H > 150,000 % 52 Bf B 17
BT HNITEEGan Pei JooX Lo fEEM
e (RFEBERME) FMEEREBHRER
2021 FREBBNBHETEAZBEERNES
WHENIRERM M - ZEAR2021FEE
3,110,0008% P& 15 °
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On 1 July 2022, the Board approved the grant of an aggregate of
18,000,000 award shares (the “2022 Award Shares”) (amounting
to approximately 0.75% of the total issued Shares) to selected
employees (the “2022 Grantees”) in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme as at the date of this report. The 2022 Grantees are not
required to make any payment in respect of the 2022 Award Shares.

Among the 2022 Award Shares, 250,000 Award Shares were
granted to Ms. Gan Pei Joo, the executive Director. The 2022 Award
Shares will be satisfied, upon the satisfaction or waiver (as the case
may be) of all the relevant vesting conditions, by existing Shares to
be acquired by the trustee through on-market purchases. The trustee
purchased 24,618,000 Shares during 2022.

On the basis of a total of 1,600,000,000 Shares in issue as at
the Adoption Date, the maximum number of shares permitted to
be issued under the Scheme is 80,000,000 Shares (120,000,000
Shares after adjusted to reflect the bonus issue of shares in 2021),
which represents approximately (but not more than) 5% of the total
issued Shares as at the Adoption Date. The maximum number of
shares which may be awarded to individual selected employee under
the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
shares from time to time.

As at 1 January 2022, there were 102,897,000 award shares
available for grant under the Scheme. During 2022, 18,000,000
award shares were granted, and accordingly as at 31 December
2022, there were 84,897,000 award shares available for grant under
the Scheme. No 2021 Grantees and 2022 Grantees have been
granted award shares exceeding 1% of the total issued Shares.
1,639,776 award shares were cancelled, forfeited, expired or lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2022. Details of the outstanding
award shares during the year ended 31 December 2022 is as
follows:
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/N $ (<2< AN $E H
IEEEE /O G
Number of award shares
RBRHYAE
Fair value of
awards at the Weighted
date of grant average
during the ~ closing price
Closing price ~ yearandthe  of the Share
of Shares  accounting  immediately
Unvested  immediately standard before
Unvested award shares beforethe  and policy the date
award shares Cancelled/ asat31  grant during adopted of vesting
Name of grantees of Purchase asat1 Granted Vested during  lapsed during December the year (Note 3) during the
Award Shares Date of Grant  Vesting Period price  January 2022 during 2022 2022 2022 2022 (HKD) (HKD)  year (HKD)
ERREIE
FRBNAT
[ERfmFGY  FAZERE
1420228151 R02F128  EARERT  EHENR  AMERHONH
AxEBHE 1022%  SRXGEN ANRG  BER M) METY
RERAEEALS #FES GRS RER Bl R02ERY Ra2ERE  2E/4N RERA K B (Bm)  WbfE (E7m)
Ms. Gan Pei Joo (Executive Director) 4 January 2021 4 January 2021 to Nil 150,000 - 75,000 - 75,000 - - 1.0954
3 January 2023 (Note 1) (note 4
(Hz4)
Gan Pei Joo% T (7EZ) AREIRAE 200151 BARE20E &
1B3A (1)
1 July 2022 1 July 2022 to Ni - 250,000 83,333 - 166,667 0.9200 0.9200 09211
1 July 2024 (Note 2)
0247818 2020FTR1BE20045F &
TB1R (:2)
Employees (in aggregate) 4 January 2021 4 January 2021 to NI 10,782,611 - 5,366,163 705,764 4,660,694 - - 1.0954
3 January 2023 Note 1) (hote 4)
(i)
(B8 (23) AEIALE 2021E1BABE03E &
1A3A (1)
1 July 2022 1 July 2022 to Ni - 17,750,000 5,916,667 834012 10,999,321 0.9200 0.9200 09211
1 July 2024 (Note 2)
ANRETAIE ARETEIRENUE &
TE1H (2)
Total 10,882,611 18000000 11,441,153 1539776 15,901,682
)
Notes: 5T

(1) The granted shares vest on three equal annual basis and at the beginning of the (1)
vesting period with the first vesting date on 4 January 2021.

) The granted shares vest on three equal annual basis and at the beginning of the )

vesting period with the first vesting date on 1 July 2022.

Q) The fair values of the awards shares granted during the year ended 31 December Q)
2022 were determined based on the market value of the Shares at the respective

grant dates.

(4) The closing price/fair value of the granted Shares/weighted average closing price (4)
of the Share has been adjusted to reflect the bonus issue of shares in 2021

ERTHRNE=FSHEEENRBIHRVGE &

&7 & 5 #i 7202141848 ©

ERTHRNE=FSHEEENRBIHRVGE &

1E57 & 5 #i 720226 7H1H ©

HE2022F12A31H L FEEBE FHREERMOHA
FEDREBERVESEHBPENHEETE

BEERMHOKRTE,AFEBRGINEFEIR
TEEEREE MR R2021FAVALAREETT o
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Nomination committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Board passed on 19 December 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually; (i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; (i) to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; (iv) to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors; and (v) to review the
policy on Board diversity.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of all three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Chuah Jin Chong
(Chairman), Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng and Ms. Chan May May.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
Nomination Committee meeting shall be held at least once every
year. During the year ended 31 December 2022, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held, among other things, to review and
consider the followings:

(@  the retirement and re-nomination of directors for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company;

(b)  the independence of the independent non-executive directors;
(c) the Board structure, size, composition and board diversity

(including skills, knowledge and experience etc.); and

(d) the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and the
Directors’ nomination policy of the Company.
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Nomination policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which set out the criteria
and process in the nomination and appointment of Directors. The
policy stipulates the key selection criteria of the Company for the
nomination of Directors as set out below.

(@)  character and integrity;

(b) qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(c) willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

(d) requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

(e) the Company’s Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board;

()  such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession planning and where applicable,
may be adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the
Nomination Committee from time to time for nomination of
Directors and succession planning; and

(90 to ensure that there is at least one Director of a different gender
on the Board and that this is maintained in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The Board has the relevant procedures for Directors’ nomination
which are pursuant to Listing Rules and the Articles of Association.
The details are set out in the section headed “Appointment and re-
election of Directors” in this annual report.
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Attendance Records of Meetings gERLESE

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings, Audit BEERFALFEZTCT LS EZLET
Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination &% -#EE €% B2 EE =
Committee meeting and general meeting during the year is set out in -~ IRE A HYIE R T &K ¢

the following table:

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
EFXg BHRZEET HHNEEE RHZEEE AR
L L L L g
Number of meetings held
during the year 4 4 1 1 1
FRERTERME
Name of Directors Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings entitled to attend
5548\ BHEERYE FRUESRHKE
Executive Directors
WITES
Mr. Chuah Choon Bin (Chairman) 4/4 4/4 11 11 1/1
Chuah Choon Binft 4 (/%)
Ms. Gan Pei Joo 4/4 4/4 11 11 11
Gan Pei JooZ =
Non-executive Director
FEMITES
Mr. Leng Kean Yong 4/4 4/4 1/1 11 1/1
Leng Kean Yong%c 4
Independent non-executive
Directors
BIFRITES
Dr. Chuah Jin Chong 4/4 4/4 i7al 11 11
BCHEEL
Ms. Chan May May 4/4 4/4 11 11 11
BREZEZL
Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng 4/4 4/4 1Al 11 i7al

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Sengt &=
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in compliance with the code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code, and discussed (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development (“CPD”) of
the Directors and senior management; (c) to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and is appointed for a specific term of three
years unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either the executive Director or the Company. The
non-executive Director and each of the independent non-executive
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company and is
appointed for a specific term of three years.

The Company uses a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment, election and removal of Directors, which is set out in
the Articles of Association and is led by the Nomination Committee,
which will make recommendations to the Board for approval on
appointing new Directors.

Potential new Board members are identified on the basis of skills and
experience which, in the opinion of the Directors, will enable them to
make a positive contribution to the performance of the Board.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures
for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

All Directors are subject to retirement and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-
executive) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
each annual general meeting at least once every three years.

The Articles of Association provides that any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Full details of changes in the Board during the year and up to the
date of this annual report are provided in the section of this annual
report headed “Directors’ Report”.
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Continuous professional development

According to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Directors recognise the need to continue to undergo relevant
training programs to update their knowledge and enhance their skills
where relevant to enable them to sustain their active participation
as a board member. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Directors participated in the following training:

ERus

Name of Directors

HEEEER

RIFEETANTFAMEXCAAK FIBES
E2HFESXER ERERTENMENH#AK
B UMEGRHEBETEGE2ZEEARTE
FTEBENER T HEES(EHE/M EFRH
NANBEREETERNEIEE UEH
HA#M RIS ERRARE  EREEMNES
EEENEBEBERMBH - REE2022F12
BHIEFE  EEZE28THIEI

Type of trainings
EEIEER

Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Chuah Choon Bin (Chairman)
Ms. Gan Pei Joo Gan Pei Joo%&Z
EMITESE

Non-executive Director
Mr. Leng Kean Yong

Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Dr. Chuah Jin Chong BHEET
Ms. Chan May May REZEL T

Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: attending in-house training relating to the ongoing compliance obligations,
corporate governance and other related topics

C: reading newspapers, journals, the Company’s newsletters and updates relating
to the economy, general business, automotive industry or Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, etc.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and Officers.

Chuah Choon Bin4t 4 (£ &)

Leng Kean Yong#t 4

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng%c 4

A B, C
A B, C

A B, C

A B, C
A B, C
A B, C

Al SIS SR HEER WHE

B:  ZMEARKEARET CEXEHRAMBREEA
R A9 P BB L 31

C: FHERE HTAREMEERUAREBEE &
BEB ABETXAESHEFAMNRTER -
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Model Code for Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions (the “Securities
Dealing Code”). Specific enquiry has been made with all the Directors
and all of them confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code and the Securities Dealing Code during the year and up to the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The amount of fees charged by the Company’s external auditor,
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (‘GTHK”) generally depends on
the scope and volume of the external auditors’ work performed.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid or
payable to GTHK in respect of the statutory audit services and non-
audit services for our Group are as follows:

RS 5 IR ETR

AT EHRM ETHIRAM &+ PrE LT
ANEZETEFRZNRETH (RET
) EREESERERESRZNTH
SSRI (MBS TR K2 RESFFH
BEREHE 2REFCEIFAREES
FHROMIEPRE RE-BETRETIR
B 5 Th e

ZRENEN &=

RABSNEZBENNE (B78) St E B
ERAT (MHEAEH) BINE —REURIIH
BREm TFEE R IFE-

HE2022F12831HIEFE > MiAEETE
RENEEEZRBERIFEFZRBE[E
AHEEBNMEIT :

HK$
Services rendered Frie AR BT
Audit service BIZRP 650,000
Non-audit services IEB LIRS 50,000
Total 485t 700,000

Non-audit services are about the valuation services provided by
the external valuer to assist the Company’s auditor on certain audit
workdone. The external valuer is independent of the Company’s
auditor.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsui Sum Vi (“Ms. Tsui”), a manager, Corporate Services of Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited, an external service provider, has
been engaged by the Company as its company secretary to support
the Chairman, the Board and the Board Committees by ensuring
good information flow and that the Board policy and procedures are
followed. The primary contact person of the Company is Ms. Gan Pei
Joo, the executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Tsui undertook at least 15 hours of relevant professional training
annually to update her skills and knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

It is the responsibility of the Directors to prepare the financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at the end of
the financial year and of the results and cash flows of the Group and
of the Company for the financial year then ended.

The Directors consider that, in preparing the financial statements,
the Group has adopted appropriate accounting policies, consistently
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates. The Directors also consider that all applicable approved
accounting standards have been complied with and confirm that the
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The responsibility
of the external auditors is to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements prepared
by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders. The
independent auditor’s report by external auditor, GTHK, about their
reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of
our Group is set out in the independent auditor’s report of this annual
report.

RNEME

wmoRzT Mgzt BINSBREEER
Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited’A &) A
BHKIE  EXARBZRBALABME  AE
B EEghEELZEERUEIEURGKRE
AmEAMRERESENBEARER AR
BINEEBREANABR AT HNITEEGan Pei
JooZ Lo

REETBEEZAOIENFRNEEE
Al > RE ML BB EL A SE B A B

EEMMBRBAENSE

EFREERESYBFENMBRE U
BRER AT KRR EEFERFAER
RAEQRBNEBRL  URBEZ B LERE
FEAEEARFADNEERRERE-

EERBR EREMBERF FEE D&
BAEENGHBE BB USES
B HE REFIFZF -EF TR R BF
RATEERRE A g 2R AR ER
REREERRMB®RE-

EFWANEBEMSRAEGLAHELRT
REEENENEFRZEHAVRRHERS
FARAR - SNEZHMNEEARBRERN
BERIFREFERENGOVBRERE
KEBEUBR THORREBERFNER -
MIMNESZBEI R EE B IR EH N AERBLKR
G BRRNEBE TR RNIBILIZHENR
T BN AERIB I IZBEMBRE A

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R

/1



/2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEER/HRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledged they are responsible for the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system through the Audit Committee. The Board recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance and is committed to
maintaining a sound system of internal control and risk management.
This includes the establishment of an appropriate control
environment and risk management framework, processes and
structures and continually reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the
said systems to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets.

The system of risk management and internal control covers finance,
operations, management information systems and compliance with
relevant laws, regulations, policies and procedures. There is an
ongoing process to identify, evaluate and manage significant risk
faced or potentially to be encountered by the Group. The process is
regularly reviewed by the Board.

Due to the limitations that are inherent in any system of internal
controls, these systems are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and it can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the
scope, issues, results and action plans in relation to or arising from
the internal and external audits. The Audit Committee also assists
the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles
in the Group’s risk management and internal controls as well as
effectiveness of the internal audit functions.

Both the Audit Committee and the Board review the effectiveness
of the risk management function and deliberate on the risk
management and internal control frameworks, functions, processes
and reports on a regular basis. The framework is continually
monitored to ensure it is responsive to the changes in the business
environment and clearly communicated to all levels.

The key features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are described under the following headings:
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Risk management and internal control structure

The Board has established a risk management committee (the
“RMC”) which comprises the Chairman, chief financial officer and
senior management to assist in monitoring the risk management
process within the Group and is responsible for the establishment
and the maintenance of a framework of risk management for the
Group.

The Group has an established internal control structure and is
committed to evaluating, enhancing and maintaining the structure to
ensure effective control over the Group’s business operations and
to safeguard the value and security of the Group’s assets. There is
a clearly defined operating structure with lines of responsibilities and
delegated authority in place to assist the Board to maintain a proper
control environment. The control structure and environment are
supported by the following activities:

(@ an organisation structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility, authority and accountability;

(b) documented internal policies, guidelines, procedures and
manuals, which are updated from time to time;

(c) regular Board, RMC and management meetings where
information is provided to the Board and management covering
financial performance and operation;

(d) quarterly review of financial results by the Board and Audit
Committee;

(e) regular training and development programmes attended by
employees with the objective of enhancing their knowledge and
competency; and

® ongoing review on the system of internal controls by an
independent internal audit function. Results of such review are
reported to the Audit Committee, which in turn reports to the
Board.
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Risk management process

The Group has an ongoing risk management process that involve,
amongst others, (i) an annual risk identification and analysis exercise
which involve assessment of the consequence and likelihood of
risks and the development of risk management plans for mitigating
such risks; and (i) an annual review of the implementation of the
risk management plans. This process is reviewed and monitored by
RMC.

For the year under review, the RMC is assisted by the senior
management team from various divisions to effectively embed risk
management and control into the corporate culture, processes
and structures within the Group. The RMC has identified and
reviewed the major business risk factors affecting the Group and
derive risk management strategies to manage and mitigate the risks
identified. The review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The following factors were
considered in the risk assessment:

(@  the nature and extent of risks facing the Group;

the extent and categories of risk which it regards as acceptable
for the Group to bear;

the likelihood of the risks concerned materializing; and

the Group’s ability to reduce the incidence of risks that may
materialise and their impact on the business.

Moreover, the internal audit function of the Company assists Audit
Committee and RMC to monitor the internal governance of the
Company and provides independent assurance as to the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system, which covered the areas of financial, operational,
compliance and risk management. The Board considered the system
of the Group to be adequate and effective during the year. As at the
date of this annual report, the Group has engaged an independent
internal control consultant to review the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. The results and findings of
such review from internal control consultant were directly reported
to the Audit Committee. Going forward, the Directors will continue
to regularly assess and review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system

Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy and
Whistleblowing policy

The Group has adopted an anti-corruption and bribery policy (the
“Anti-Corruption Policy”) which sets out parameters to prevent the
occurrence of bribery and corrupt practices in the conduct of the
Group’s business. This policy provides information and guidelines to
all Directors and employees of the Group in relation to the standard
of behaviour which they must adhere to and how to recognise and
deal with bribery and corruption.

The Board recognises the importance of whistle-blowing where
a programme has been introduced for the employees as well as
customers, consultants, vendors, contractors and/or any other
parties with a business relationship with the Company to channel
concerns about illegal or unethical business conduct affecting the
Company.

Any employee or member of the public who has concerns about
illegal or unethical business conduct in the workplace, the concerns
may be reported to the appropriate channel, and the matter and
outcome will be highlighted at the Audit Committee meetings.

The Anti-Corruption Policy together with the whistleblowing policy of
the Group are available on the Company’s website.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its obligation under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced immediately when it is
the subject of a decision.

The Company makes reference to the “Guideline on Disclosure of
Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong in 2012 in handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has also established and implemented
procedures for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs. Executive Directors or other senior management staff
nominated by the Board as well as the Company Secretary of the
Company are authorised to communicate with parties outside the
Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, EGM may be convened on
the written request of any one or more Shareholders deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal place of
business, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting
and the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and signed
by the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionists held as at
the date of deposit of the request not less than one-tenth of the
voting rights, on a one vote per share basis, of the issued shares
of the Company which as at that date carries the right to vote at
general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association allowing
Shareholders to put forward new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution may,
however, convene an EGM in accordance with the “Procedures for
shareholders to convene an EGM” set out above.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns in
writing to the Board, which contact details are as follows:

Pentamaster International Limited
Plot 18 & 19, Technoplex

Medan Bayan Lepas

Taman Perindustrian Bayan Lepas
Phase IV, 11900 Penang

Malaysia

Telephone: (+604) 646 9212
Fax: (+604) 646 7212
Email: investor.relation@pentamaster.com.my
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders Communication Policy”) with the objective of
ensuring the Shareholders are provided with equal and timely
access to information about the Company, in order to enable the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow them to engage actively with the Company. The Board and
senior management recognise their responsibilities to represent the
interests of all shareholders and to maximise shareholder value.
Communication with shareholders and accountability to shareholders
is a high priority of the Company.

The Shareholders Communication Policy is summarised as below:

° the Board will maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and particularly for communicating with them
and encouraging their participation through annual general
meetings or other general meetings and will review this policy
regularly to ensure its effectiveness;

° information will be communicated to the Shareholders through
the Company’s financial reports, annual general meetings and
other general meetings that may be convened, as well as all
the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange;

° effective and timely dissemination of information to the
Shareholders will be ensured at all times;

° the Company will assign dedicated employeg(s) to be in charge
of ensuring effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders;

° the Company will provide Shareholders with ready access to
understandable information about the Company;

° the Company will take steps to solicit and understand the
views of Shareholders and other stakeholders;
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° the Company will facilitate Shareholders’ participation in annual
general meetings and make available the chairmen of the
board committees and advisory panel(s) (if any), appropriate
management executives, auditors at annual general meetings
to answer questions from Shareholders; and

° Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, communicate
their views on various matters affecting the Company, request
for publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to Directors or management of the Company
through the prescribed channel stated in the below
paragraphs.

In accordance with the Shareholders Communication Policy,
the Company has established various and a wide range of
communication channels with the shareholders with the objective
of ensuring that the shareholders have equal and timely access to
information about the Company in order to enable the shareholders
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them to
engage actively with the Company. The channels include general
meetings, annual reports, interim reports and quarterly reports,
notices and circulars, announcements, and all the published
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange. In addition, the
Company updates its website from time to time to provide the
shareholders with information of the Company’s recent development.

Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote and the meetings. The process of
the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and reviewed on a
regular basis, and if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

The annual general meeting or EGM of the Company will provide
a forum for the Board and the shareholders to communicate. The
Board will answer questions raised by shareholders at the annual
general meeting or EGM. At the meeting, a separate resolution will
be proposed by the Chairman for each issue and voting on each
resolution will be conducted by poll. The results of the poll will be
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on the same day of the meeting.
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Communication with Shareholders

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Corporate communication will be provided to the shareholders
in plain language and in both English or Chinese to facilitate
shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders are encouraged to
provide, amongst other things, in particular, their email addresses
to the Company in order to facilitate timely and effective
communication.

A dedicated investor relation section is available on the Company’s
website (www.pentamaster.com.my) and a dedicated email (investor.
relation@pentamaster.com.my) has been assigned for shareholders
to communicate with the Company. Information on the website is
updated regularly. Information released by the Company to the Stock
Exchange is also posted on the Company’s website immediately
thereafter. Such information includes financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and
associated explanatory documents etc. All presentation materials
provided in conjunction with the Company’s annual general meeting
and results announcement each year will be made available on the
Company’s website.

The Company has been striving to maintain high transparency
and communicate with the shareholders and the investors of
the Company through diversified communication channels. The
Company holds press conferences and analyst briefing sessions
from time to time to provide the latest business information of the
Company to the investors.

Having considered the multiple channels of communication during
the year, the Board considers its effort in accordance with the
Shareholders Communication Policy in 2022 to be effective. The
Board does not receive any complaints regarding shareholders’
communication in 2022.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company was adopted and took effective on 30
May 2022.

Save as the above mentioned, there were no significant changes in
the constitutional documents of the Company during the year.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 12 June 2017 under the
Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands (‘Companies
Act”). The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 19 January 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and has not carried
out any business since its incorporation.

Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, an analysis
of the Group’s financial performance during the year using key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and a description of the risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
7 1o 10 and pages 11 to 32 of the annual report respectively. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are illustrated in pages 87 to 90 of the annual report. These
discussions form part of this directors’ report.
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The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to 115.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”)
on 27 February 2019 with the aim to set out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to
the shareholders of the Company.

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles of Association and
all applicable laws and regulations. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operations, earnings, financial condition, working capital
requirements, future expansion plans and other factors it may
deem relevant and appropriate. Any final dividend for a financial
year declared by the Company must be approved by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders at an annual general meeting of the
Company and must not exceed the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific period. The Company’s Dividend Policy is available on the
Company’s website.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share
(“Final Dividend”) subject to approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (‘AGM”).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Tuesday, 30 May 20283. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 24 May
2023 to Tuesday, 30 May 2023 (the “Closure Period”), both days
inclusive, for the purposes of determining the entitlements of the
shareholders to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM. During
this Closure Period, no transfer of the Company’s shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
properly transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 23 May 2023.

The Final Dividend is payable on 7 July 2023 and the record date
for entitlement to the Final Dividend is 8 June 2023. For determining
the entitlement to the Final Dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 7 June 2023 to Thursday,
8 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the
Final Dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and properly completed transfer forms must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 June 2023.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
MYR28,525,000 (2021: MYR24,447,000).

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to MYR72,000 (2021: MYR97,000). The rest of the
donations amounting to MYR184,000 (2021: MYR55,000) were
made through PCB which is the immediate holding company of the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totalling approximately MYR40.6 million (2021: MYR37.6 million).
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

FULFILLMENT OF PROFIT GUARANTEE IN
RESPECT OF THE ACQUISITION OF 100%
EQUITY INTEREST OF TP CONCEPT SDN.
BHD.

References are made to (i) the announcements of the Company
dated 26 September 2019 and 27 September 2019 in relation to
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in TP Concept and (i) the
announcement of the Company dated 25 February 2021 in relation
to the extension of profit guarantee period. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms used herein shall have the same meanings as those
defined in the said announcements of the Company.
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Based on the financial statement of TP Concept for FYE 2020 and
FYE 2021, the shareholders of TP Concept (the “Vendors”) do not
expect the Aggregate PAT of TP Concept to meet the Aggregate
Profit Guarantee.

Given the reasons for the Shortfall were mainly due to the
extraordinary and unexpected circumstances caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic which were beyond the control of the
Vendors, and considering the business prospect of TP Concept,
Pentamaster Equipment and the Vendors (the “Parties”) have
entered into a supplemental share sale agreement on 25 February
2021 to extend the Profit Guarantee Period for the Vendors to fulffill
the Aggregate Profit Guarantee. The Parties have mutually agreed
that the Aggregate PAT to be used for determining the Aggregate
Profit Guarantee shall be the Aggregate PAT of TP Concept for FPE
2019, NFYE 2020, NFYE 2021 and NFYE 2022 (“Extended Profit
Guarantee Period”).

In summary, with the extension of Profit Guarantee Period, the
Aggregate PAT in respect of TP Concept for FPE 2019, NFYE 2020,
NFYE 2021 and NFYE 2022 shall not be less than MYR12,000,000.
In the event the Aggregate PAT cannot be achieved during the
Extended Profit Guarantee Period, the Vendors shall be liable to pay
the shortfall to the Purchaser up to MYR12,000,000.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15 March
2023, the Aggregate Profit Guarantee has been fulfilled within the
Extended Profit Guarantee Period and the Final Balance Release has
been released to the Vendors. Therefore, the Performance Guarantee
has been fulfilled.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, there is no
material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There are no material events affecting the Group after the end of the
year under review.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company, is set out in page
6 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The industry that we operate in is subject to domestic and foreign
health, safety and environmental laws and regulations. In order to
ensure compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, our
Group has established an internal policy to monitor and control
health and work safety issues. Our Group’s internal health and safety
officer and committee are responsible for the development and
implementation of health and safety rules as well as a safe system of
work. Their responsibilities include carrying out studies on the trend
of accident and its prevention, reviewing the effectiveness of our
current health and safety system and making recommendations to
our management for any improvement on relevant policies. Health
and safety inspection will also be carried out by our management
once every quarter. In addition, information, instruction and
supervision relating to health and safety issues are provided to all
of our employees and any jobs with potential safety issue. Training
sessions including emergency first-aid are provided to emergency
response team and employee safety and health committee and fire
drill is carried out at least once a year within the Group.

In respect of environmental matters, it is our Group’s policy to ensure
appropriate response to any situations involving leakage of chemicals
or hazardous gas emission as well as prevention or mitigation of the
environmental impacts associated with the above situations. Further,
we also dispose of our scrap materials and electrical wastes through
companies approved by the government to handle such items.
Below are some initiatives undertaken by the Group during the year:
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3R Concepts (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle)

The Group remains committed in ensuring that it plays its role in
sustaining a greener environment. During the year under review,
the Group continued with the recycling and waste management
initiative whereby recycle bins are provided to spur waste segregation
for proper recycling and disposal purposes. Our employees are
educated on the concept of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” which is
an excellent way of saving energy and conserving the environment.

“Cost With No Waste” initiative

The Group is committed to make efficient use of its resources by not
producing unnecessary wastage. The Group has implemented “Cost
With No Waste” initiative since 2016 in ensuring no unnecessary
wastage and impact in the ecosystem where it operates in.

During the year, the Group did not record any material violation of
any health, work safety and environmental laws and regulations
applicable to our operations that resulted in claim or penalty
imposed on our Group. Our Group has complied with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in all material respects.

As required by the Listing Rules, the Company is required to
report on ESG information of the Group on an annual basis and
regarding the same period covered in this annual report. As such,
the Company has been publishing the environmental, social and
governance report (the “ESG Report”) on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange on an annual basis. Please view
and download the ESG Report from the Company’s website at
https://pentamaster.com.my under the “Investor Relations PIL” and
subsequently “Financial Reports” section or the website of the Stock
Exchange. If Shareholders would like to receive the ESG Report in
printed form, you may send your request in writing to the Company
c/o the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders are defined as parties that have interest in the Group
and can either affect or be affected by the Group’s business
activities. We conduct periodic engagement with our various
stakeholders because we recognise that their perspectives are
important in helping the Group to prioritise the actions for continuous
sustainability improvement of the Group.

The following table summarises the Group’s key stakeholders and
how the Group engages them:

FRENSH

RpENEEANAERBEA KD AT
HRRZAEREH LB EHNAL M
EHEFNESH REARSKMAREREHN
B BB EERERFETEUE
MRETHAENERRFERER-

TERBINAERNEEFNEUAREER A
REGERTI

Stakeholders Method of Engagement
FnE EEmAR

Shareholders ° Annual General Meetings
S RRBFERE

o Corporate communication and investor relations

NEERRREERE

Employees o Employees briefings
(=] EEM®RE

o Open communication via internal channels such as in-house emails and open door

policy

BRATANBEMEAIMREKRFIFHRERETLRESE

Customers o Customers’ surveys and feedbacks
Y ER#EE Kol
° Face to face meetings
AHEER
Suppliers ° Suppliers’ audit
HAER Mg St
° Suppliers’ feedbacks
AR IR
o Suppliers’ meetings
HEE G =
Government o Compliance with government legislative framework
BT IR BT 1A HESR
Communities o Meeting with local communities
HE g Rt 5 ES

BERNEERERAT
2022 R

89



90

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEHRS

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, our Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of our Group during
the year and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chuah Choon Bin (Chairman)
Ms. Gan Pei Joo

Non-executive Director
Mr. Leng Kean Yong
Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chuah Jin Chong
Ms. Chan May May
Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years.

Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall, hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company and such
Director shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting by the
Shareholders.

Accordingly, Mr. Leng Kean Yong and Dr. Chuah Jin Chong, shall
retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company on 19 December 2017 for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date. Subsequently, each of the
Directors has further entered into a revised service agreement with
the Company for a term three years commencing on 19 January
2021. Either party may terminate the service agreement by giving to
the other not less than three months’ prior notice in writing at any
time during the initial term. None of the Directors who are proposed
for re-election at the annual general meeting has an unexpired
service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which any of the Company’s holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or a connected entity of the director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company did not enter into any contract, other than the
contracts of service with the directors or any person engaged in the
full-time employment of the Company, by which a person undertakes
the management and administration of the whole, or any substantial
part of any business of the Company during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interests
(other than their interest in the Company or its subsidiaries) in
any business which competed or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group or any other conflicts of
interests with the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance were
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by any Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their respective holding of the
Company’s securities.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group during the year are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERTETBRAEBNREAAGT F
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN A BRI E E BB EE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OR BB {7 B AERARZ (D S E SR K
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY, ANY RE

SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of 2202212831 H » EERA AT EETH
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, ABRAATIREBE ZH (TEERESHRE
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its HIE1&A) B9RE D~ MHRAR M RESHETHES A
associated corporations, within the meaning of the SFO, as recorded 1B 158 % K B E 16 £ 35218 E 58 R 52 6 PR
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 ¥Ry E 2 > S ER B iR BT 8%+ FF
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock & F 2T A EHETEEHRXZHIEESTE]
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by  (MZZSFR)) BITH AR A S R
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing 1 E#AW T :

Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

e

(i) Interest in the Company (i) RAELTRIE

Approximate
Number percentage of

Name of Director Capacity of Shares  shareholding
ST
EENA 513 i8R Bt
(Note 1)
(Hrzt1)
Mr. Chuah Choon Bin Beneficial owner (Note 2) 26,611,200(L) 1.11%
Chuah Choon Bine4% Bn#EB A (Wit2)
Ms. Gan Pei Joo Beneficial owner 8,103,544(L) 0.34%
Gan Pei Joo% & BB A
Mr. Leng Kean Yong Beneficial owner 250,000(L) 0.01%
Leng Kean Yong#t 4 EmEAA
Dr. Chuah Jin Chong Beneficial owner 168,000(L) 0.01%
2 EEt BB A
Notes: B EE
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. 1. LIFBRTZBALTREBOPHEFE
2. Includes Ms. Gan Pei Joo’s entitlement to receive up to 241,667 Shares 2. BiEGan Pei JooX TIRIKER Bt 81 T By
pursuant to the vesting of the award shares granted to her under the [ g 10 M A WL B & %241,66 7RG IR 15 > 16 7B TT
Scheme, subject to the conditions (including vesting conditions) of those BRERBRDIEYG (BEEBRMG) -

award shares.
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(ii)

Interest in an associated corporation of the
Company

(i) MAEAFEEEBNED

Approximate
Name of associated Number of percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity Shares shareholding
e LR TS g3 BRINEE HBABREAL
(Note 1)
(Hizt1)
Mr. Chuah Choon Bin PCB Beneficial owner 140,420,120(L) 19.71%
Chuah Choon Bin%k % PCB BEREBA
Interest in spouse (Note 2) 138,510(L) 0.02%
EofBER (Wat2)
Ms. Gan Pei Joo PCB Beneficial owner 50,486(L) 0.01%
Gan Pei JooZ = PCB BEREBA
Mr. Leng Kean Yong PCB Beneficial owner 40,000(L) 0.01%
Leng Kean Yong#kt PCB BnEAA
Notes: Kz -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. 1. TLIFBRRZAALRROTNEE-
2. Mr. Chuah Choon Bin is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the 2. RIEE 5 A HAE /&4 > Chuah Choon Binst

138,510 shares in PCB held by his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the Directors or chief executive or any of their spouses
or children under 18 years of age, has any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its specified undertakings or other
associated corporations which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he will be taken or deemed to have under the SFO), or was
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein or which was required, pursuant
to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2022, the
interests and short positions of the persons, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRNAEAB RN HERRG
R R R3¢

FEBEEMMA 1120225128318 BRA QA
EEFRIFETHRAEN  ULFATHRAEAQF
B& 1 B AERA IR R HE B L ik A A B BRI
BENIEKRGIEISEREEFEENE LM
@R AR .

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares shareholding
REER gt RIVEE BARRESL
(Note)
(it
PCB Beneficial owner 1,633,549,989(L) 63.90%
PCB BmEBA

Note: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors
are not aware of any person who had an interest or short position in
the shares and the underlying shares of the Company which would
require to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement (as
defined in section 6 of the Companies (Director’s Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the laws of Hong Kong)).
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition dated 20 December 2017 has been
entered into by PCB (the “Controlling Shareholder”) in favour of the
Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Pursuant to the Deed of
Non-Competition, the Controlling Shareholder has undertaken to the
Company that it shall not, and will procure its close associates not
to, among other matters, directly or indirectly engage, participate,
or hold any right or interest in any companies or be involved in any
business which is or may be in competition with the business of the
Group from time to time. Details of the Deed of Non-Competition are
set out in the sub-section headed “Non-Competition Undertakings”
in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholder”
of the Prospectus.

The Company has received an annual declaration in writing from the
Controlling Shareholder confirming that it had complied with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the Deed
of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition and confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder
have been complied with for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors
of the Company are determined by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Employees Provident
Fund Scheme for employees in Malaysia. Particulars of these
schemes are set out in note 2.20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As prescribed by the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”), the Group’s
employees employed in Malaysia who are Malaysian are required
to join the EPF scheme. The total costs charged to profit or loss
amounting to MYR7,372,000 (2021: MYR6,250,000) represent
contributions paid to the retirement benefits scheme by the Group.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities except that
the trustee of the Scheme which was adopted on 1 April 2020,
pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of the Scheme,
purchased on the Stock Exchange a total of 24,618,000 Shares at
a total consideration of approximately HKD25.6 million (equivalent to
approximately MYR13.9 million) during the year ended 31 December
2022.

#rENER SR
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s
companies shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant
company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
incurred by him or her in the execution and discharge of his or her
duties or in relation thereto pursuant to their respective Articles of
Associations.

Such provisions were in force during the course of the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 and remained in force as of the date
of this report. The Company has maintained liability insurance to
provide appropriate cover for the directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. Save as mentioned in the
sections headed “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, other related party transactions did
not constitute connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction as defined in chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had entered into the following
connected transactions with its connected persons.

On 6 May 2022, the Company entered an assignment of outstanding
debt owing by Everready Precision Industrial Corp. (“EPIC”) to the
Company to Pentamaster Innoteq Sdn. Bhd. (“PISB”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of PCB, the holding company of the Company.

EPIC has a debt of USD2,508,013 owing to the Company for
equipment supplied to EPIC. The aggregate amount of debt
owing by EPIC to the Company, including the debt of Ahead
Optoelectronics, Inc., a 88.89% subsidiary of EPIC (“AHEAD”)
that EPIC agreed as at 6 May 2022 to be assumed by EPIC upon
acceptance of such equipment, amounted to USD6,776,733 (the
“Outstanding Debt”).
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The consideration for the assignment of the rights to the Outstanding
Debt including the right to convert the Outstanding debt into
an aggregate of 16,614,507 EPIC Shares to PISB, representing
29.9% of the enlarged equity interest in EPIC is USD6,776,773
(the “Assignment”). The consideration was determined after arm’s
length negotiations between the Company, EPIC and PISB with
reference to, among other things, the Outstanding Debt amount of
USD6,776,733 and historical financial performance of EPIC.

The Board, having considered (i) the businesses of AHEAD and EPIC
were expected to be adversely affected by the protracted COVID-19
outbreak in the short term; (i) EPIC has proposed establishing a
manufacturing joint venture in China with the investment arm of a
major enterprise in China for its business expansion; and (i) the
outlook of the optoelectronics market in China, originally resolved to
agree with EPIC that the Outstanding Debt may be settled by way of
issuance of new shares of EPIC to the Group. On 20 April 2022, the
Company entered into a share conversion letter of undertaking with
EPIC and AHEAD for the aforesaid purposes, the details of which
can be found in the Company’s announcement dated 4 July 2022.
Subsequently on 6 May 2022, after taking into account that holding
a minority stake in EPIC, a loss making private company, is not in
line with the Group’s strategy and that the Assignment would allow
the Group to recoup fully in cash the Outstanding Debt originally
owed by EPIC and AHEAD to the Company, the Board resolved to
enter into an assignment agreement with EPIC and PSIB. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 4 July 2022 and
15 July 2022.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons.

Trademark Licence Agreement

On 19 December 2017, Pentamaster Technology (M) Sdn. Bhd., a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“PT”), entered into
a trademark licence agreement (the “Trademark Licence Agreement”)
with PCB, pursuant to which PT granted to PCB an irrevocable right
to use the trademarks (the “Trademarks”), for use in PCB Group’s
day-to-day business on a non-transferable, non-exclusive and
royalty-free basis, for an indefinite term until PCB ceases to be a
Controlling Shareholder.
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As the Trademarks have been widely adopted in all the businesses
and activities managed and operated by the Pentamaster Group and
are generally known and recognised by the public, the Trademarks
have become an important means of promoting the Pentamaster
Group’s brand and image and a key icon in all of the Pentamaster
Group’s external promotion and marketing activities. The continual
use of the Trademarks will ensure the continuity of the brand and
image of the Pentamaster Group, thereby ensuring the long-term
development and continuity of the Pentamaster Group’s business.
Having considered the foregoing, our Directors consider that it is
reasonable to license the Trademarks to PCB to enable it to sustain
the PCB Group’s business operations and an indefinite duration of
the agreement (until PCB ceases to be a Controlling Shareholder) is
justifiable. Our Directors are of the view that the Trademark Licence
Agreement has been entered into on normal commercial terms which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Pentamaster Group
and our Shareholders as a whole.

As the applicable percentage ratios for the Trademark Licence
Agreement is expected to be less than 0.1% on an annual basis,
such transaction is fully exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular, independent financial advice and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

Lease agreements in respect of office premises

On 19 December 2017, PT as landlord entered into two lease
agreements, one with each of PCB and Pentamaster Smart Solution
Sdn. Bhd. (“PSS”), a subsidiary of PCB respectively, as tenant
(together the “Lease Agreements”), pursuant to which PT agreed
to lease the premises situated at Plot 18 & 19, Technoplex, Medan
Bayan Lepas, Taman Perindustrian Bayan Lepas, Phase IV, 11900
Penang, Malaysia with a gross floor area of 7,368 sq.ft and 3,000
sq.ft respectively (the “Office Premises”) to each of PCB and PSS for
office use.
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The Lease Agreements have a term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date. On 1 October 2018, PT entered into two revised
lease agreements with PCB and PSS respectively. The revised lease
agreements had a term of 15 months until 31 December 2019. The
revised lease agreements were subsequently extended annually for
PCB and PSS with a gross floor area of 930 sqg. ft. and 559 sq. ft.
respectively. The rental to be paid to PT under each of the Lease
Agreements was negotiated on an arm’s length basis and on normal
commercial terms determined based on the historical rental for the
Office Premises and the prevailing market rent of similar premises.

Since the transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreements
are similar in nature, such transactions should be aggregated
pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the highest
applicable percentage ratio for the Lease Agreements in aggregate
calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules is
less than 5.0% and the annual consideration is less than HK$3.0
million, such continuing connected transactions are within the de
minimis threshold stipulated in the Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules
and fully exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular, independent financial advice and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

- the largest customer: 15.6%

- five largest customers in aggregate: 41.9%
Purchases

- the largest supplier: 9.4%

- five largest suppliers in aggregate: 25.9%
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At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5.0% of the Company’s share capital) has any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which shall oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued share was held by the public as at the date of
this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by GTHK, who will retire at
the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of GTHK as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
There has been no change of auditor of the Company since the
Listing Date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BWAZBETHR S

o Grant Thornton
2 [=]

To the members of Pentamaster International Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Pentamaster International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 110 to 232,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (“IAASB”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B EENER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REE%EER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REBEEENEEHE > BESZEEAES
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated EZ ARG SV HERETEEENEIE-
financial statements of the current period. These matters were EEHEBIZIGSHERRER FRHMILEL
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ERFEEZEEE MAIHMZSEEE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we JBEXRER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Wi i e %

Refer to notes 2.18, 4.1 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements

RIFEMHRRMEE2.184.1/%5

The Key Audit Matter

RREZEE

The revenue recognition from the automated
test equipment and factory automation
solutions segments depends on the nature of
the contractual arrangement with the customer
and this could impact the point at which the
control is transferred and service is rendered to
the customer. The revenue from these activities
amounted to approximately MYR601 million.
BEtRARERIREESCHRREZEDEN
WA EE RSN Z Nt E > B0
RERBEEETIREAE P RERBHERE - Z
EEBIBNAANOIEEST-

We have identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter as there is a risk that the revenue may
be incorrectly recognised as different contractual
arrangements with customers will result in different
timing in which revenue would be recognised.

EZEER RN H AMREZER HAR
FREWE ) EERERN AR (AEERT
FEEALZHRERR D EEIBNERETR) -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEEERTEEAREENSZ

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included:

EEERRRNmVEZEFEE

- Evaluating the assessment performed by management
on compliance with revenue recognition policies.

- FMLEEEEHETW S ESERTERIET G

- Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition processes and their application and
thereafter testing controls on the occurrence of revenue.

- T EEENRGEINEFREER HBASRY
PR mRELE -

- Performing analytical procedures on the trend of
revenue recognised to identify for any abnormalities.

- HERIAWDZ2BBETOMRER UHNEAE
o

- Performing substantive testing on a sampling basis to
verify that revenue recognition criteria are being properly

applied.
- UaRERETEEMAE UMZBREEXERA
HE R U s BV ZE R 0

- Assessing the correct period for the revenue recognised
by testing cut-off through assessing sales transactions
taking place before and after the end of reporting period
as well as checking credit notes and sales returns
issued after the reporting period (if any).

- BT ERBERRABETHNHER S UKEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HEELEE (8@

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

B R R IATRREEBENERE

Refer to notes 2.13, 4.2 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

RERBMBRRMEE2.134.2521

The Key Audit Matter

FAREIZEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade
receivables of MYR238 million, after provision for
expected credit losses (“ECL”) of approximately
MYR3 million, which represents 24% of the
Group’s total assets.
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Assessing ECL of trade receivables requires the
management’s judgement and uses of estimates
in determining the probability of default occurring
by considering the ageing of receivables, historical
loss experience and forward-looking information.
THEE SRR RIENTEREEREFTEEREN
EEELEANAEMEREE BRIRIENIR
i ~ BB A Be MU AT BB M B RHE 1R I ) R K
ERfhEte

We have identified provision for ECL of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables and the significant
estimation involved in determining the provision for
ECL of trade receivables.
EEREZRNHIENTRBEEBEEEHR
REAREZER REREZRIGRIENESZ M
REEEZRBRWHRENHEREEGERE®H I K
BARfEE e

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ELaEERTEEEMEENS

Our audit procedures in relation to provision for ECL of trade
receivables included:
EERHEZRWAENTRREEBEENSEZER G .

- Evaluating the application of Group’s policy for
calculating the ECL.
-  HMEERAEEERSIERAEERE

- Evaluating techniques and methodology adopted by the
management against the requirements of IFRS 9.

- REBERMBREENESRNRET HEEERA
BB K 75 7% ©

- Assessing the reasonableness of estimates and
assumptions made by the management in determining
the ECL, including evaluating the accuracy of the
historical default data, detailed analysis of ageing of
receivables and forward looking information with the
assistance of our valuation experts.

- HMEEEENRETERAGEEHEREGLE KRR
BEY GFERMNEEER B THHBEEY
BB R  BUCRIERENF A DT RATEMTE
1} o

- Recalculating the management’s provision for ECL of
trade receivables to ensure mathematical accuracy.

- ENStEEEERHEBEZRRNIAEREERENE
&> DRI E RS -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
BWIIZHETHR S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2022 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BWAZBETHR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

BB ILAR S M TSR R AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
BWIIZHETHR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

BT B LR S M TSR R AKIE
HEE (&)

108

STATEMENTS (Continued)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BWAZBETHR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

23 February 2023

Kwok Siu Kwan Sylvia
Practising Certificate No.: PO6616
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEEmREMEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes MYR’000 MYR’000
i F<H *E
Revenue &= 5 600,587 508,086
Cost of sales BEEmE A (415,135) (353,172)
Gross profit ER 185,452 154,914
Other income HgA 6 11,402 15,187
Distribution costs DEERL AR (9,965) (10,623)
Administrative expenses TR X (55,120) (36,976)
Reversal of/(Provision for) expected BB (GHR) B S EWEIE
credit loss (‘ECL”) allowance on trade JRHAE Ei518
receivables, net (IFBHRE EEE)) BEF5 9 4,798 (250)
Other operating expenses Hih&&Epsz (86) (101)
Operating profit KR F 136,481 122,151
Finance costs Gi=YDN 8 (87) (92)
Share of results of associates it A= UNEIE | 19 (1,636) (1,485)
Profit before taxation PRIR AR 9 134,758 120,574
Taxation nE 10 (1,457) (3,830)
Profit for the year attributable to TATEE AEEERNET
owners of the Company 133,301 116,744
Other comprehensive income, including Eth & EUkZS > 81
reclassification adjustments B ERAE
Items that will be reclassified BEFSEFTEE
subsequently to profit or loss B EE
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of MEBINEBRVHERERVER
financial statements of foreign operations (&18) W= (136) 56
Profit and total comprehensive income ZS2F#HEAE ABIGEREF K&
for the year attributable to owners PN AERE
of the Company 133,165 116,800
Earnings per share attributable TATEE AEBEERET
to owners of the Company (sen) (fih) -
Basic =N 12 5.59 4.87
Diluted 8 12 5.58 4.87
The notes on pages 116 to 232 are an integral part of these HF116E232B 2z AZELESaHTHHRET
consolidated financial statements. Details of dividends proposed for Bl SR —E D - BN EE R IKZEREHN
the year are set out in note 13. EIE N AR

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
n‘7|'\ j?ﬂﬁ /R‘l%

as at 31 December 2022 2022412531 H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes MYR’000 MYR’000
s F25F *F
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment YR RRE 14 134,645 99,745
Leasehold land AELH 15 35,320 35,465
Goodwil meE 16 4,495 4,495
Intangible assets EEEE 17 35,653 34,629
Interests in associates RHE QTR 19 20,070 21,706
Deposits paid BfEE 22 - 28,225
Deferred tax assets IR TEE 33 - 221
230,183 224,486
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 20 170,934 72,006
Trade receivables B S EWEIE 21 237,926 164,043
Other receivables, deposits and H1hpe H&%’KIE “HER
prepayments SEANETQ! 22 30,511 12,517
Amount due from ultimate holding company WEH&H—@‘%H“’\TTAIE 39(d) 6 20
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary FEW—ERARKMBARIE  39(d) - 17
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE 23 489 1,246
Other investments H®s 24 219 374
Tax recoverable B EIFR R 2,765 412
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEBY 25 328,628 349,959
771,478 600,594
Total assets BEE 1,001,661 825,080
BEMNEEERERAT

2022 R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=R W

as at 31 December 2022 2022412531 H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes MYR’000 MYR’000
M=t F25 Ea=i
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BEka&aE
EQUITY WS
Share capital &N 26 12,340 12,340
Reserves B 27 724,373 624,403
Total equity EiEs 736,713 636,743
LIABILITIES af&E
Current liabilities mENAaE
Trade payables B 5 RENRIE 28 121,528 77,553
Other payables, accruals and provisions HfENRIE FESTER &
B 29 31,139 38,824
Contract liabilities BHBME 30 100,581 64,152
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary B —BRAWBARRE 39(d) 179
Bank borrowing RITE™R 31 - 2,565
Derivative financial liabilities TEERMEeE 23 6,847 -
Provision for taxation MmIBEHE 912 944
261,186 184,038
Non-current liabilities 3F3ﬁf§]§1§
Deferred tax liabilities R IBE(E 33 3,762 4,299
3,762 4,299
Total liabilities waRF 264,948 188,337
Total equity and liabilities MERREE 1,001,661 825,080
Gan Pei Joo Chuah Choon Bin
Director Director
BZ BZE
The notes on pages 116 to 232 are an integral part of these 511 6:::232%‘12% HAZERAUHHRERT

consolidated financial statements.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

|‘7|'\

Yt b

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

Shares
held for
share Share Proposed
Share Share award award Capital Translation Retained final
capital premium* scheme* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* dividend* Total
fefniEastal ffn ) " o5 ] .
Ak BiaE  HEZRA REGE BRRE hEkE R R KRS ot
MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR’000 MYR'000 MYR’000 MYR'000 MYR’000 MYR'000 MYR'000
FeE e FeE e85 95 FeE 95 FeE FeE
(note 26) (note 27) (note 37) note 37) (note 27) note 13)
GEZ) (Hiskar) (Hizkar) GES! (Hzkar) (HizE13)
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1818 8,054 84,936 (5,849 - 44477 - 385,255 16,672 533,545
Transactions with owners: HEFANRS .
Purchase of shares for shareaward SRR BN BB E R
scheme (note 37) (GERY) - - 2.201) - - - - - (2.201)
Equity-settled share award scheme  bUiE% ﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁxfﬁ b
expenses (note 37) B (fzk37) - - - 5,597 - - - - 5597
Vesting of shares of share award BRRMRE BNRAG
scheme (note 37) (H=ta7) - - 3,781 (3,331) - - (450) - -
Bonus issue (note 26) AT 3T (Hizhoe) 4,286 (4,286) - - - - - - -
4288 {4.286) 1580 2,066 - - (450) - 396
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 116,744 - 116,744
Other comprehensive income A2 Eka - - - - - 56 - - 5%
Total comprehensive income ERRANRERE
for the year - - - - - 56 116,744 - 116,800
2020 final divicend approved (note 18)  BHLEKI2020F K HR &
(E13) - - - - - - (326) (16,672) (16,998)
2021 final civicend proposed note 1) #2021 ERER S
(Fz13) - - - - - - (25,766) 25,766 -
As at 31 December 2021 2021128318 12300 80,650 (4,269 2,066 “Mam 5 475,457 25,766 636,743
As at 1 January 2022 4202251818 12,340 80,650 (4,269) 2,266 44411 56 475,457 25,766 636,743
Transactions with owners: HEEANRS .
Purchase of shares for share e REL ELA)
award scheme (note 37) (Mzkar) - - (13,865) - - - - - (13,865)
Equity-settled share award WS E MR DR A
scheme expenses (note 37) EEAGERY) - - - 7,574 - - - - 7,574
Vesting of shares of share award S ERMZEEIRMRN
scheme (note 37) (Kzkar) - - 6,656 (6,134) - - (522) - -
- - (7,209) 1,440 - - (522) - (6,291)
Profit for the year ERiET - - - - - - 133,301 - 133,301
Other comprehensive income Hth2EkE - - - - - (136) - - (136)
Total comprehensive income ERRENEEE
for the year - - - - - (136) 133,301 - 133,165
2021 final dividend approved B0 FRERE
(note 13) (Mis13) - - - - - - (1,138) (25,766) (26,004)
2022 final dividend proposed BRNRERERS
(note 13) (Ff3£13) - - - - - - (27,143) 27,143 -
As at 31 December 2022 120225128318 12,340 80,650 (11,478) 3,706 g (60) 579,055 27,143 736,713
* The total of these balances of MYR724,373,000 (2021: MYR624,403,000)  * L R AEEET24,373,0009 F (20214 ¢
represents “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position. 624,403,0009 F) 164 &M AR R R THEE -
The notes on pages 116 to 232 are an integral part of these $F116E232B 2 MitEAZSiE AP BRET
consolidated financial statements. AN —3F 5 o
BEREZEEERAERAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mAlRERE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
MYR'000  MYR'000
<& G
Cash flows from operating activities REFHEENRERE
Profit before taxation PRI AR T 134,758 120,574
Adjustments for: MUATZIEETHE .
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 3 3,082 3,260
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE i 145 146
Deferred income released 15 (B35 SE YA = (1,746)
Depreciation of property, plant and MZE- B R BITE
equipment 5,350 3,822
Wavier of other payable R EHMEN IS (4,780) -
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE BB KRB
and equipment Ww) B5i8 (58) 1,667
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate ~ HE—EHEAB RN
& - (641)
Loss from changes in fair value of foreign SNEIZIIEHN AT EED
currency forward contracts 518 7,604 2,000
Gain on disposal of other investments HE ,\ﬁﬂhﬁuﬁ (15) (101)
Loss/(Gain) from changes in fair value of HtRE RN FEES
other investments JEHTE/ (W) 16 (22)
Interest expenses FMEMZ 87 92
Bank interest income IRITHE HﬁU\ (5,205) (4,479)
Inventory written down — addition FEMR—RE 245 362
Inventory written down — reversal FE MR —#] (102) (344)
ECL allowance on trade receivables B EKEIENTERES
EiaEE 1,910 2,025
Reversal of ECL allowance on trade B[O B S W TIERN
receivables TRHAE B 1EEE (6,708) (1,775)
Provision for warranty RIEEREE 1,515 1,256
Reversal of provision for warranty BoREE RS (1,256) (647)
Share of results of associates FEIERE N TS 1,636 1,485
Equity-settled share award scheme L HE o 4 B A R H B 1
expenses B2 7,574 5,597
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign exchange SNEREIRESIE, (W) 829 (4,350)
Operating profit before working capital EEESEHFIKE R
changes 146,627 128,271
Increase in inventories FEEM (99,071) (38,188)
Increase in trade and other receivables %%&Hﬂﬂ%”&%’ﬂﬁi fn (61,853) (29,482)
Increase in trade and other payables ,%f 5 K BT FIEIE A0 41,870 16,028
Increase in contract liabilities BHREEIEM 36,429 48,681
Net change in a fellow subsidiary’s balance —F'? EE N EYAEIER =)
JFEE 196 (23)
Cash generated from operations EIERIRE 64,198 125,287
Interests paid BFHE (87) (92)
Tax paid BRIE (4,410) (4,480)
Tax refunded R[EIFRIE 246 881
Net cash from operating activities S T B L IR FEE 59,947 121,596

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\7|-\ Eﬁﬁ;ﬁi

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

2022 2021
20225 20214
Note MYR’000 MYR’000
Mk F<EH *aE
Cash flows from investing activities KREGFHEENRERE
Bank interest received BEWERTTH] 2 5,205 4,479
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE (4,106) (5,831)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB B Y% B &% (40,562) (9,290)
Purchase of leasehold land BEEE L - (28,280)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HEYEE B E KR HREN
and equipment Frig§ IR 58 -
Proceeds from disposal of other HEHMEERSMRIAE
investments 292 1,166
Acquisition of other investments WHEE MG E (127) (741)
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HER—BHE AT #EN
an associate PSR - 66
Acquisition of redeemable convertible W i — Hﬁ% =G
preference shares of an associate ] 8RR E] BR[O ST A% - (15,000)
Investment in an associate R—EBEARNKRE - (33)
Net cash used in investing activities KEZE BT £ F8E (39,240) (53,464)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFSELENIRESRE
Advance from/(Repayment to) ultimate FEU (BIB) RARIERR
holding company NEIFIE 14 (20)
Repayment of bank borrowing BEIBITERR (2,565) 411)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BNEAATEE AKRE (26,904) (16,998)
Purchase of shares for share award scheme Tt (7 52 Eh 5t 8 88 B & 1D (13,865) (2,201)
Net cash used in financing activities B E BT BB F A (43,320) (19,630)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERREEEY
cash equivalents GRL) /IEhn3%E (22,613) 48,502
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FE#IREKIREEEY
of the year 349,959 300,280
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMEEE B E P R B 1,282 1,177
Cash and cash equivalents ERAERIAEEEY
at the end of the year 25 328,628 349,959
The notes on pages 116 to 232 are an integral part of these F116E232B 2 fisFAZ LT HFRET
consolidated financial statements. AN —3 D o
BEREZEEERAERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pentamaster International Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 June 2017 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law. The address of its registered office is Maples Corporate
Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104 Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Plot 18 & 19, Technoplex, Medan Bayan Lepas,
Taman Perindustrian Bayan Lepas, Phase IV, 11900 Penang,
Malaysia.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 19 January 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in (i)
designing, development and manufacturing of standard
and non-standard automated test equipment; (i) designing,
development and installation of integrated factory automation
solutions and (i) manufacturing and assembling of medical
machines and manufacturing of die casting parts.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Pentamaster
Corporation Berhad (“PCB”), a company incorporated in
Malaysia with its shares listed on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. The directors regard PCB as the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 23 February 2023.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022

—iRE

REGERZEBRBRERAR (TxR281) 1
2017F6RB12BRBE AT AN HSEF
Edfmius—HERRERAR
H 3 i = B ik 23Maples Corporate
Services Limited > PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands > F 2 & 23 2h 3t it
#APlot 18 & 19, Technoplex, Medan
Bayan Lepas, Taman Perindustrian
Bayan Lepas, Phase IV, 11900 Penang,
Malaysia ©

ANBRHBI2018F1F19R TS B
BXFZRBERRAR (B ETRE
o

ARBA—BEEERAS REKNE
RNE) (RTBTAER)) FE2RE@)&
HEREERERIFREDIHCEA
sE ()R - FAERZEERTKE
BN{C AR TR 75 28 e (i) B 485 B A 55 B2 i
R B IS B EE o

KRB BEZIER A B APentamaster
Corporation Berhad (TPCBJ) » —f5?
BERADEMAIIN AR ERGINE
RAGEBESRZMERTHE Lo AR
B EEHRPCBARKIEIR AT

R2023FE2823H - B G ER W HE
T8 E2022F12A31HEEE 24
S BEmRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation

2. FERESERBE

21 REEE

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”).

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or
amended IFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed in
note 3.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative
financial assets, other investments in equity securities
and investment in redeemable convertible preference
shares which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Ringgit Malaysia (“MYR”), which is the functional
currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries,
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands
(“MYR’000”), except when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) made up to 31 December each
year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j‘ F*E% M-.l. -LI

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEGHBSRBE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 22 ZEEEE
The Group includes the income and expenses of a KREBZIFEEWHERRBIENB
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from NEBAREBEBSESE B
the date it gains control until the date when the Group ERBHEFZMNBERE 2 BB
ceases to control the subsidiary. AR
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains REGAVBHRERE EERA
and losses on transactions between group companies BEZRZ -BEAXRZ Z&EHFU
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial RABRNARBEEGHIE &
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of intra- BEAABlzEEEHE 2 REIR
group asset are reversed on consolidation, the underlying BENG SR BE#ID > M8
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s BENENAEER ZAEETH
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements BAH - WEABMBERERAM
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to REZETHEENEERELH
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted BoUBREARNERMEAN S
by the Group. TR —® o
In the Company’s statement of financial position, ERRNBEIMBRAEERR WEA
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment CIDER: $9 % - KR DR SE=E !
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in ROBRIEMB AR LRELRE > 3
a disposal group. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes STAHEAR A o AL E L
in consideration arising from contingent consideration REFAREEITEENREE
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs oA TEEEREGEERER
of investment. Zo
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the B ABNEEAAABZRR
Company on the basis of dividends received and FHIRE W B BB E 2
receivable at the end of reporting period. All dividends ReoRmAMWEKRERUKREY
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post- 5?% E’J H& BRI ERENIEL
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit REHRARBNIER P HE
or loss. EE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Foreign currency transactions

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Ringgit Malaysia (MYR), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the end of
the reporting period retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated
(i.e. only translated using the exchange rates at the
transaction date). When a fair value gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into MYR.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into MYR
at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses have been converted into MYR
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or
at the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j‘ F*E% M-.l. -LI

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Associates

2. FEGHBREE (@)

24 HHEAQT]

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

In the consolidated financial statements, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group,
plus any costs directly attributable to the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the determination of the
Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The
profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for
the year, including any impairment loss on the investment
in associate recognised for the year. The Group’s other
comprehensive income for the year includes its share of
the associate’s other comprehensive income for the year.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associate. Where unrealised losses on
assets sales between the Group and its associate are
reversed on equity accounting, the underlying asset is
also tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective.
Where the associate uses accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where
necessary, to conform the associate’s accounting policies
to those of the Group when the associate’s financial
statements are used by the Group in applying the equity
method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.
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2. FTEESHHRHE (@

24 FEAT (48)

FEEEEBEQAT ZHR S
YR IR U S M o U
EEMEHERATNER DR
HEAEREHBEARNZHEE
HENRERBIERES T A
Bho AEETENEBEEF
BEAS - HEE AT PNA S
BRI IFATERRREBRT
REBURZ REARERE A
FEFAR KBRS EMERZ
BMEARMBRERFFELLEH
B UEZBE QDG BUR
SAAREEFTAE K-

EAEHEEHE QT NEEE
SRUEBBENBE AT NED
B BRIFEBREAENEESE
FRERBERBMR TREE
EAEBERIEE SIS &
EERBENTNERDSHRER
A ERENREE EFRE
BRRAEERZBERTNR
BEFENRPAEDE D -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Associates (Continued)

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associate. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group determines whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between
the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate and its
carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate, including cash flows arising
from the operations of the associate and the proceeds on
ultimate disposal of the investment.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress as described below) are initially recognised
at acquisition cost and/or manufacturing cost (including
any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by the Group’s
management). They are subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss and is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Construction in progress is not depreciated until the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. FEGSTHRME (@
25 ME - -BERzE (8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings on leasehold land
HELHET

Machineries and equipment
Ea Yok di=

Furniture, fittings and office equipment
R BRI AERE
Computers

B

Electrical installation
BREE

Motor vehicles

A

Estimates of residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Leasehold land
“Leasehold land” represents the upfront payment for
long-term land lease in which the payment can be
reliably measured. It is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease/right-of-use except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of

benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the land.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of interest in an associate
is set out in note 2.4.

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised
as an asset at the date that control is acquired (the
acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.10).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

2.8

Leases

(@) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an identified asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange

for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the

Group assesses whether the contract meets three
key evaluations which are whether:

the contracts contain an identified asset,
which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made
available to the Group;

the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope
of the contract; and

the Group has the right to direct the use of
the identified asset throughout the period of
use. The Group assess whether it has the
right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the
asset is used throughout the period of use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which
is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset at the end of the
lease, and any lease payments made in advance
of the lease commencement date (net of any lease
incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on
a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of
the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term
unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term. The Group
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment
when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable payments
based on an index or rate, and amounts expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee.
The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payment of penalties
for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability
will be reduced for lease payments made and
increased for interest cost on the lease liability. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or if there are changes in in-substance
fixed payments. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expense in the period on which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Leases (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

The Group has elected to account for short-term
leases using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability,
the payments in relation to these leases are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 month or
less.

The prepaid lease payments for leasehold land are
presented as “Leasehold land” under non-current
assets.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor
As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as either
operating or finance leases.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as
an operating lease if it does not.

The Group also earns rental income from operating
leases of its buildings. Rental income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I‘I

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Development expenditure

EERMAZ

Computer software
BREEMG

Technical know-how

FERM

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as described
below in note 2.10.

Research and development expenditure
Research expenditure on internal projects is recognised
as an expense when it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised as development expenditure when
the Group can demonstrate:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

- its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

2. FEGHERHE (®)
29 ELEE @ERD @

(Continued)

Research and development expenditure
(Continued)

- its ability to use or sell the intangible assets;

- the asset will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sale;

- the availability of technical, financial and other
resources to complete the project; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development.

Development costs which do not meet these criteria are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capitalised development costs comprise direct
attributable costs incurred for development. Capitalised
development costs, considered to have finite useful
lives, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Development
costs are amortised using the straight-line basis over
the commercial lives of the underlying products from
the commencement of the commercialisation of the
products.

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that the expected
useful lives of the assets are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of
the future economic benefits embodied in the items of
intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(Continued)

Computer software

The cost of computer software licences are capitalised as
an intangible asset. Costs include their purchase prices
and any directly attributable costs of preparing the assets
for their intended use. These costs are amortised on a
straight line basis over the period the asset is expected to
generate economic benefits.

Cost associated with developing computer software
programs that will generate probable future economic
benefits from the use thereof are recognised as intangible
assets. Costs comprised all directly attributable
development costs including an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Computer software development
cost is amortised when the asset is available for use over
the period the asset is expected to generate economic
benefits.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
They have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the expected life of these intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

2. FEGSTHRME (@
210 JFEREER(E

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

° Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary;

o Intangible assets;

° Property, plant and equipment;

° Leasehold land; and

° The Company’s interests in subsidiaries.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life or
those not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other assets are
tested for impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2,10 Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose
and not be larger than an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost of disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had

been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11

212

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs to
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Cost of inventories are determined on first-in, first-out
basis.

The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In
the case of finished goods and work-in-progress, cost
includes direct materials, direct labour and attributable
production overheads.

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,
cancelled or expires.
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BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, all financial assets
are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”),
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets, other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the
following categories:

- amortised cost;

- FVTPL; or

- fair value through other comprehensive income

(“FvoCl’).

The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the
financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs, other income or other financial items,
except for expected credit losses (‘ECL”") of receivables
which is presented within administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j‘ F*Eﬁ M-.l. -LI

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. FERESERHE (@

2.12 Financial instruments (Continued) 2128FTH (B
Financial assets (Continued) ETHEBEE (@
Subsequent measurement of financial assets ETHEENEE]E
Debt investments BERE
Financial assets at amortised cost FEE R A G E A EE

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect
of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from ultimate holding company
and a fellow subsidiary and trade and other receivables
fall into this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business
model other than ‘hold to collect” or ‘hold to collect and
sel’ are categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of
business model, financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest
are accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for those
designated and effective as hedging instruments, for
which the hedge accounting requirements under IFRS 9
apply.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Equity investments

Investments in equity securities and redeemable
convertible preference shares are classified as FVTPL.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
and redeemable convertible preference shares are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Dividends are
included in the “other income” in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings,
amount due to a fellow subsidiary and trade and other
payables and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and,
where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless
the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method except
for derivatives which are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships and financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at
fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in
an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss
are included in finance costs or other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j‘ F*Eﬁ M-.l. -LI

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. FERESERHE (@

2.12 Financial instruments (Continued) 2128FTH (B
Financial liabilities (Continued) ERaE (@
Classification and measurement of financial THEENSERE (B)
liabilities (Continued)
Borrowings =7
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of BT B ATEHNREE 2R
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently SRR o EMEBIZEHE

stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary and trade and other
payables

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary and trade and other
payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
such as foreign currency forward contracts to manage its
exposure to foreign currency risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
the derivative contract is entered and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.
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BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continueq)

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a
financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair
value is recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is
presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability
if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than
12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled
within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as
current assets or current liabilities.

The Group has not designated any derivatives as hedging
instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-
looking information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other
debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost
and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j‘ F*E% M-.l. -LI

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2. FERESERHE (@
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In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is
made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk (‘Stage 1) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low (‘Stage 2’).

‘Stage 3’ would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the end of reporting period.

‘12-month ECL’ are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while ‘lifetime ECL' are recognised for the Stage 2
category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at the end of each
reporting period. These are the expected shortfalls in
contractual cash flows, considering the potential for
default at any point during the life of the financial assets.
In calculating the ECL, the Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience and external indicators, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increase
in the likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial
recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial assets
at the end of reporting period with the risk of default
occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j‘ F*Eﬁ M-.l. -LI

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2. FEGSTHRME (@
213 RMEERE (8)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

(Continued)

- existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory,
business, financial, economic conditions, or
technological environment that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations; and

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the end of each
reporting period. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if it has a low risk of default, the borrower
has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR MIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

215

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when (i) information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group); or (i) the financial asset is 365 days
past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost are set out in note 40.2.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand, cash at bank and demand
deposits with banks and financial institutions. Cash
equivalents are short term and highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16

217

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that the grants are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented

in gross under “other income” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Provisions and warranty costs

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Provisions and warranty costs (Continued)
Provision for warranty costs is made in respect of goods
sold and still under warranty at the end of the reporting
period based on the terms of warranty and historical
claim experience.

Revenue recognition
Revenue arises mainly from the sales of goods and
rendering of services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. ldentifying the performance obligations
3.  Determining the transaction price

4.  Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or
services to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j‘ F*Eﬁ M-.l. -LI

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2. FERESERHE (@

2.18 Wz ST (48)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Sales of equipment

Revenue from sale of equipment usually includes the
customised system/equipment and installation. The sale
of the customised system/equipment and installation
service are considered as one performance obligation
because the promises to transfer customised system/
equipment and provide installation service are not
capable of being distinct and they are highly interrelated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of equipment (Continued)

Revenue is recognised upon shipment or at delivery
destination point, provided that the product meets
the performance acceptance criteria. Under certain
circumstances, customer acceptance is conducted
at customer’s site i.e. to ensure that the equipment
purchased can be integrated with the customer’s existing
production flow. Under such circumstance, revenue is
only recognised once customer acceptance has been
received at customer’s site.

The Group considers whether there are other promises
in the contract that are separate performance obligations
to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be
allocated (if any). In determining the transaction price for
the sale of customised system/equipment, the Group
considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer
(if any).

Revenue from rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when
services are rendered.

Rental income
Accounting policies for rental income are set out in note
2.8.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

219

2.20

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is necessary
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and
the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred.
Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are
substantially completed for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Short term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security
contributions are recognised as an expense in the
financial year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Short term
accumulating compensated absences such as
paid annual leave are recognised when services are
rendered by employees that increase their entitlement
to future compensated absences, and short term non-
accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
are recognised when the absences occur.

Defined contribution plans

As required by law, companies in Malaysia make
contributions to the national pension scheme, the
Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”). Such contributions
are recognised as an expense as incurred.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operate
in China are required to participate in the central scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. Such
contributions are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the equity instruments awarded. Their value
is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting
conditions apply, or recognised as an expense in full at
the grant date when the equity instruments granted vest
immediately. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of equity
instruments that are expected to vest. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of equity instruments expected to vest differs
from previous estimates.

For the share award scheme, the Group purchase its
own shares through the trustee of the share award
scheme from the open market for the shares to be
vested under the share award scheme. The shares
purchased by the Group that are not yet vested for this
share award scheme were recorded as “Shares held for
share award scheme” as a deduction under equity. Upon
vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs of the
purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for
share award scheme”, and the related fair value of the
awarded shares are debited to share award reserve with
the difference charged/credited to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Income tax

2. FEEHBERBE @)
2.22 FR{#

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable
on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied
to the temporary differences when they reverse, based
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.28

2.24

Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax
allowance, being tax incentives that is not a tax base of
an asset, is recognised as a deferred tax asset to the
extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will
be available to set-off against the unutilised tax incentive.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is recognised at the amount of consideration of shares
issued, after deducting any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17 ) == 7

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Structured entity

The Group controls a structured entity, the trust
constituted by the trust deed, which is set up solely for
the purpose of purchasing, administering and holding
the Company’s shares for an employees’ share award
scheme (see note 2.21). As the Group has the power
to direct the relevant activities of the trust and it has
the ability to use its power over the trust to affect its
exposure to returns, the assets and liabilities of trust
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the Company’s shares held by the trust are
presented as a deduction in equity as “Shares held for
share award scheme”.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group. A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the Group
and its related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged. A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of a parent of the Group, or the
Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Related parties (Continued)
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

the entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a) above.

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED IFRS

Amended IFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following amended IFRSs issued by the IASB, which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2022:

Amendments to IFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2018-2020

The adoption of the amended IFRSs had no material impact
on how the results and financial position of the Group for the
current and prior periods have been prepared and presented.

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the following new and amended IFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted
early by the Group.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED IFRS

(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

8 Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policies for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
The new and amended IFRSs are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting judgements

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of service are
recognised at a point in time when control of the goods
is transferred and service is rendered to the customer.
The management has made judgements in identifying
the performance obligations and estimating the point
of revenue recognition under different contractual
agreements.

The details of revenue recognised during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 are disclosed in note 5.

4.2 Estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs an impairment review as and
when there are impairment indicators to ensure that
the carrying amount of non-financial assets, including
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and
intangible assets do not exceed their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount represents the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash generating units to which the assets
belongs. Therefore, in arriving at the recoverable amount,
management exercises judgement in estimating the
future cash flows, growth rate, product life cycle and
discount rate. The carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment, leasehold land and intangible assets as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are disclosed in notes
14, 15 and 17, respectively. No impairment losses were
provided for property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and intangible assets during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In estimating net realisable values,
management takes into account the most reliable
evidence available at the time the estimate is made.
Possible changes in these estimates could result in
revisions to the valuations of inventories. The carrying
amount of inventories as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
are disclosed in note 20.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. FRAfRest(hst R HEr ()
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

42 fEFFFAHEERZE (&)

Provision for ECL of trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECL involves significant estimates. The amount of ECL
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
be different from customer’s actual default in the future,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and credit losses in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 and details of movement in
ECL of trade receivables during the current and prior
years are disclosed in note 21.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. ZEHEKRDIPHRE

5.1 Revenue 51 W
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 KREBNFEEBNZEREH
to these consolidated financial statements. The Group’s BEmRRMF1TAIRE REBRE
revenue from external customers recognised during the W R BIBEANW =T

year is as follows:

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F25F Ea=i

Invoiced value of goods sold less returns EEERNEZEERES
and discounts K3 588,377 494,332
Service rendered BRI 12,210 13,754
600,587 508,086

1 60 | PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. EETBEROIEE @)

(Continued)
5.1 Revenue (Continued) 5.1 Ui (&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with AIFEREHNE
customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods KEBMUUTEEE RFNER
and services at a point in time in the following major R RARE P EE N

product lines:

2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F *aE
Automated test equipment BEiCiRl R &
- Automotive —/58 245,634 98,218
— Semiconductor —EfE 83,622 71,081
— Electro-Optical —&B) 79,793 176,983
— Medical devices —BEESS 10,013 -
— Consumer and industrial products —HERKIXER 1,654 10,045
420,716 356,327
Factory automation solutions ITHREECBRAER
— Medical devices —BEEes 74,568 29,293
— Consumer and industrial products —HERKIXER 58,086 68,910
— Electro-Optical — B 37,616 46,084
— Automotive —/R8 9,222 6,104
— Semiconductor —¥ R 379 1,368
179,871 151,759
600,587 508,086
Timing of revenue recognition W 25 B 2T BF
— At a point in time SR 600,587 508,086
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
5.2 Segment information

The Group has two operating segments which are
involved in different activities and are managed by
segment managers who report directly to the Group’s
executive directors. The operating segments are as
follows:

(i) Automated test Designing, development and

equipment: manufacturing of standard
and non-standard automated

equipment.

(i) Factory automation  Designing, development and
solutions: installation of integrated factory

automation solutions.

Inter-segment transactions have been accounted for on
a basis that is consistent with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Investment holding and other activities are not
considered as operating segment and the related
financial information has been included under
“Adjustment”.

The Group’s executive directors monitor the performance
of the operating segments through regular discussions
held with the segment managers and review of internal
management reports. The performance of each operating
segment is evaluated based on the segment’s profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued)

5. EXBERDEHRS (B
52 SEEK (@)

Automated Factory
test automation
equipment solutions Adjustment Total
BEt IERBEE
B S HE st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
<5 <5 FL5 <5
Year ended 31 December 2022 £ E2022F12A31HILEE
Revenue Wz
External customers IEBER 420,716 179,871 600,587
Inter-segment revenue DEEWE 83,471 5,068 (88,539) -
Total revenue Rl 504,187 184,939 600,587
Results £}
Segment results DEEE 96,832 48,926 (14,482) 131,276
Interest income FIEURA 4,787 416 2 5,205
Interest expenses FIERMY (87) - (87)
Share of results of associates - UNSES - - - (1,636) (1,636)
Profit before taxation TR 101,532 49,342 134,758
Taxation G (1,894) (100) 537 (1,457)
Profit for the year FERiEF] 99,638 49,242 133,301
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 574,522 195,559 (117,337) 652,744
Interests in associates RS AR - - 20,070 20,070
Other investments Htnig & - - 219 219
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREZEEY 266,908 58,389 3,331 328,628
Total assets BEE 841,430 253,948 1,001,661
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities bariy =Vl 226,265 129,540 (95,531) 260,274
Provision for taxation MIEEE 900 12 912
Deferred tax liabilities RIEREEE - 3,762 3,762
Total liabilities Bmaf 227,165 133,314 264,948
BEMNEEERERAT

2022 R
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. EEBEROIEE @)

(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued) 5.2 9EEFE (48)
Automated Factory
test automation
equipment solutions Adjustment Total
BEE IRBEHE
wRRE BARARR HE st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
FeE FeE FeE &
Year ended 31 December 2022 £ %2022 128310 ILEE
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE
(other than financial instruments) (2R T AR 2,970 11,745 29,953 44,668
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 3,727 3,216 1,634 8,577
Gain on disposal of property, plant  tHEM % BE KR HE
and equipment Yz (37) (21) (58)
Gain on disposal of other HEHEMGE R
investments - - (15) (15)
ECL allowance on trade receivables & 7 FEWFIETERES
BERE
- addition —RE 1,851 59 1,910
~ reversal —$[o] (426) (6,282) (6,708)
Inventory written down to net WREEEEREE
realisable value
- addition —-hE 158 87 245
— reversal — [0l (95) M (102)
Loss from changes in fair value SMNERIAGH
of foreign currency forward NTELEEE
contracts 5,885 1,719 7,604
Loss from changes in fair value of ~ E iR & AF(E
other investments 2EHIE - - 16 16
Provision for warranty REEREE
— current year —KEE 1,063 452 1,515
- reversal —$[o] (891) (365) (1,256)
Waiver of other payable R HMENRIE - (4,780) (4,780)
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued)

5. EXBERDEHRS (B
52 SEEK (@)

Automated Factory
test automation
equipment solutions Adjustment Total
EEIS THEEE
1R ER VS R 45t
MYR’000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR’000
At A+ A+ At
Eg=! Ea=I Eg=I Eg=I
VYear ended 31 December 2021 HE2021FE12831ALLEE
Revenue W
External customers SEBE A 356,327 151,759 508,086
Inter-segment revenue DEE KRG 2,060 3,542 (5,602)
Total revenue Fallgny 358,387 155,301 508,086
Results £}
Segment results DEEE 95,459 25,826 (3,613) 117,672
Interest income FIEIA 4,266 197 16 4,479
Interest expenses FEMY 92) - 92)
Share of results of associates EiE—BHERREER - - (1,485) (1,485)
Profit before taxation PRIRAT R 99,633 26,023 120,574
Taxation wE (4,331) (37) 538 (3,830)
Profit for the year FREH 95,302 25,986 116,744
Assets BE
Segment assets DHEE 334,372 135,800 (17,131) 453,041
Interests in associates REE AR N - - 21,706 21,706
Other investments Hnig & 374 374
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY 323,940 23,253 2,766 349,959
Total assets HEE 658,312 159,053 825,080
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilties DEaE 144,730 83,899 (48,100) 180,529
Bank borrowing RITEN 2,565 - 2,565
Provision for taxation MIAEE 944 - 944
Deferred tax liabilities RILRESE - 4,299 4,299
Total liabilities aR 148,239 88,198 188,337
BEMNEEERERAT

2022 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. EEBEROIEE @)

(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued) 5.2 9EEFE (48)
Automated Factory
test automation
equipment solutions Adjustment Total
281t THEEE
KRR E EYaES A 1st
MYR’000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR’000
°E G G E
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE021FE12831ALEE
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE
(other than financial instruments) (BRI ERIN 6,875 28,706 7,853 43,434
Depreciation and amortisation TER#H 3,658 3,374 196 7,228
Deferred income released BERERA (52) (1,694) (1,746)
Loss on disposal of property, plant  HEYIE BE KRR EEE
and equipment - 1,667 1,667
Gain on disposal of other HEEMEE WG
investments - - (101) (101)
ECL allowance on trade receivables E ZEWFIBTEIEERFHE
B
- addition —RE 912 1,113 2,025
~ reversal — [0l (1,482) (293) (1,775)
Inventory written down to net Wﬁff@fjﬁ:
redisable vaue ~ H# BIRBE
- addition //J\\% 341 21 362
- reversal —#[ol (339) (5) (344)
Loss from changes in fair value SMERIAGH
of foreign currency forward NTEEHEHE
contracts 610 1,480 2,090
Gain from changes in fair value of ~ E A& &AL E
other investments EE W - - (22) (22)
Provision for warranty REEREE
- current year —KEE 891 365 1,256
~ reversal — %[0l (545) (102) (647)
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued)
Geographical Information

5. EXRFERDEHRS (B

5.2 FEER (&)
MEEE
REERBINBELHR R RE
EREBEE (SR TANMEILERIE
BERIN AU THIE :

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following
geographical areas:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REIMNEE BB FERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
F<E FLF Fe5 Fo&H
China FE] 202,487 148,180 516 420
Malaysia (domicile) Bk (EH) 139,990 62,948 211,572 177,600
United States E S 61,641 45,610 9 20
Vietnam HE 40,282 8,375 = -
Singapore N 34,955 36,963 - -
Belize aF) % 34,621 - - -
Japan =P 28,712 80,349 86 -
Taiwan =] 24,251 83,275 - -
Republic of Ireland EREENE 10,811 18,371 = -
India HE 6,180 2,326 - -
Others Hit 16,657 21,689 - -
600,587 508,086 212,183 178,040

ERMEUERENRERBEN
RN EYNMUE - IFRFEER
HIBUERENEENEBRATE
# (B -BERRBERIEE
i) EBBEEEEZEEM
HEBEETEERSSE) REE
G (1 B B & A B B D) M AE °

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the
goods were delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset in case of property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land, the location of operation to which they
are allocated in case of intangible assets and goodwiill,
and the location of operation in case of interests in
associates.

BERERZEBRERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR MIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. EEBEROIEE @)

(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued) 5.2 9EEFE (48)
Information about major customers EAFERTRHNER
Revenue from each of the major customers, which FESTERTL ((HEWE10%3
amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out M) iz s mT
as below:
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF &
Customer A' EAA 93,544 N/A FEA
Customer B = /B! N/A REH 76,279
Customer C' EHAC N/A RiEHR 73,743

! REAEEBHCRARAED B

! Revenue from the Group’s automated test equipment segment.

W2 o
N/A:  Revenue from this customer during the respective year did not TER: REEEERNKEEEHKRST
exceed 10% of the Group’s revenue. KBBAEEUZE10% o
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R E BRI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

6. OTHER INCOME

6. HfthlitA

2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF *E
Bank interest income RITAI B WA 5,205 4,479
Deferred income released #ECIREUA - 1,746
Net gain on foreign exchange bE R U /R R = 7,441
Wavier of other payable (note 29(i) R EMENRIB
(MF5E29()) 4,780 -
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate HE—BEHE QT
% B U 7 - 641
Gain on disposal of other investments HEEMEEWE 15 101
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE - EE&
2 58 -
Gain from changes in fair value of other investments E % & A ¥ &
SEm - 22
Government subsidies (note) BT Fe B (BT 5E) 479 564
Rental income WA 90 54
Others HAth 775 139
11,402 15,187

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, funding support of
MYR305,000 was received from the Government of Malaysia under
Enhanced Wage Subsidy Programme (“WSP”). The purpose of WSP
is to support employers in their operations and to retain employees.
There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

government grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, funding support of
MYR233,000 was received from Malaysian Investment Development
Authority under The Domestic Investment Strategic Fund (‘DISF”). The
purpose of DISF is to support research and development activities and
technology update of enterprises.

f O E20214F 12831 H AR IRBAIRERT

Bt (TWSP ) » RER N E HARAEE:

B B9 E % $§305,000%

HoWSPEEX

REIRAREFKIGEES TEEZFK

i H B A BB RIERU IR AR F I

BE2022F12A31HILFE > REBEAKE
REEE® (TDISF)) BEEKRATKRELER

W EI& & % $5233,0009

EENRE T RIRMEN

HoDISFEELF

BHRRERRAERAE
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7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

7. EERMRAX (BEEFMR)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2022 2021

20225 20214

MYR’000 MYR’000

F<EH *aE

Salaries, allowances, commission and bonuses e RN BERIEAL 69,711 58,440

Contribution to EPF BEAREHR 7,372 6,250
Equity-settled share award scheme expenses DAt s i B IR 10 82D

TR 7,574 5,597

Employee insurance scheme EE R 2 61 51

Social security organisation contribution T EREREAE R 1,368 886

86,086 71,224

At 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2021: Nil).

R2022F 128310 » RER X &
BUWHER A HEHRRREENRE

RIREF G EIMHR (20214 1 ) -

FINANCE COSTS 8. RIERZA
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5 S
Interests on bank borrowing RITERAE 87 92
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

9. PFRMATIEF]
PRRRATRARINR S G U T & ER

N
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH S
Amortisation of intangible assets B E#H 3,082 3,260
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE 1 i o 145 146
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEMEN = 778 509
Deferred income released BE[OIRIEUR A = (1,746)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MEERREITE 5,350 3,822
ECL allowance on trade receivables B2 EWGRIETRREER
EiaEE
— addition —hE 1,910 2,025
— reversal — 30 (6,708) (1,775)
Loss from changes in fair value of foreign currency  YMNEREFG AT EEH)
forward contracts E518 7,604 2,090
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate HE—HBE AR ER
ESlE - (641)
Gain on disposal of other investments HE B MRS WD (15) (101)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BEKM
equipment ®E (Wm) B8 (58) 1,667
Loss/(Gain) from changes in fair value of other HREQAFEES)
investments B8, () 16 (22)
Inventories written down to net realisable value Moz E = A 23R 3E
— addition —hE 245 362
— reversal — (o] (102) (344)
Net loss/(gain) on foreign exchange EREE (Wm) F58 756 (7,441)
Lease charges of short term leases: B2 ES WY .
— Factory —E 126 101
- Hostel — k&R 352 762
- Office —WNE 242 133
Provision for warranty RIEE R EHE
— addition —hE 1,515 1,256
— reversal — 30 (1,256) (647)
Waiver of other payable N HAEIFRIE (4,780) -
REREERERAR

2022 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

10.

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

TAXATION

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands.

Malaysian Income Tax has been provided at the statutory tax
rate of 24% for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
24%) on the estimated chargeable income arising in Malaysia.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 25%).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Japan, the subsidiary
incorporated in Japan is subject mainly to corporate tax,
inhabitant tax and enterprise tax for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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REE2022F12831H EFEE#24%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

10. TAXATION (Continued)

10. #RIE (48)

2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
Malaysian income tax ERPEEFREIR
Current year KEE (3,071) (4,779)
Over provision in prior years B FEBRERE 2,681 215
(390) (4,564)
Overseas income tax BINERIEIR
Current year REE (1,391) (25)
Deferred tax IRIETRIE
Current year (note 33) NEE (HI3E33) 324 759
(1,457) (3,830)
BEREZEEERAERAE
2022 FFHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

10.

BMBHwRRMIEE

TAXATION (Continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

of the Group is as follows:

10. #R18 (4&)
7 2 B 1 1B B 3% B @ 5t % ) 89 39 BE 40
T

2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<&F &
Profit before taxation PRI AT R A 134,758 120,574
Income tax calculated at the rates applicable to BEBREER AR
profits in the tax jurisdiction concerned EARESFTEN
FR1IR (32,814) (28,918)
Tax effect of share of results of associates FEMEBE A B EENRE
R (392) (356)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERRU AR S E 1,772 1,546
Tax effect of exempt pioneer income (note (i) B ETW AR E
(PH5E3) 31,013 27,262
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Rel IR RS & (3,855) (2,643)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences R E R EBEIRTE
wa (411) (1,128)
Utilisation of unabsorbed tax losses and capital AR RANBITRIE
allowances BB R E R EE 549 192
Over provision in prior years B FEBREREE 2,681 215
Tax expense for the year FRRIEBERZ (1,457) (3,830)
Notes: P 5E

(i) Certain subsidiaries of the Group have been granted pioneer status
under the Promotion of Investments Act, 1986 by the Malaysian Industrial

Development Authority which exempts 100% of statutory income in
relation to production of certain products. The effective period of the
relevant pioneer status is ten years starting from April 2016 subject to

renewal before the fifth anniversary of its effective date.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

17 ) == 7

10. TAXATION (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(Continued)

The unabsorbed tax losses accumulated up to year of assessment
2018 can be carried forward until year of assessment 2028. From year
of assessment 2018, the unabsorbed tax losses can be carried forward
for ten consecutive years of assessment immediately following that year
of assessment and the unabsorbed capital allowances can be carried
forward indefinitely pursuant to the gazetted Finance Act 2018.

The unabsorbed tax losses of the Group will expire in the following years
of assessment (“YA”):

10. #RIE (48)

FysE

(il

(&

R EE2018FMEEN R BIRRIBEIE
Al AEE E2028 R MEFE o /2018 MFE
B2 KRR IBE B ZEREE %
YEESETERREELS MREETIE
BIC2018EEREA) » RIRULHI & A o] 4
TRHRAE &

REBERRUIRFEGBRTE TRHR
MmEE (RREE) 208

2022 2021
20224 20214

MYR’000 MYR’'000

FoE FoH

YA 2028 SRR ERE2028 (4,246) (9,071)
YA 2032 SRR ERE032 (99) -
(4,345) (9,071)

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR RMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS
11.1 Directors’ emoluments
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

11. EEMERARESHATH
i <&

111 EFME
R EHRA S EBARKHE
383(1)&RAT RBESFHE
KRGS EExHMERE

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as wmr
follows:
Year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12A31ALEE
Other emoluments
Hitiil<
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances share award
and benefits scheme Contribution
Fees in kind expenses to EPF Total
WEGER
e Rl NRMRE €&
e REWHG HERX  AREHR st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
FeE  FeE FeE FeE FeE
Executive directors: PiTEZE
Chuah Choon Bin Chuah Choon Bin 49 2,222 - 419 2,690
Gan Pei Joo Gan Pei Joo 49 845 244 161 1,299
Non-executive director:  FERITEE !
Leng Kean Yong Leng Kean Yong 131 6 - - 137
Independent non- BIHRTEE .
execultive directors:
Sim Seng Loong Sim Seng Loong
@ Tai Seng @ Tai Seng 90 6 - - 96
Chuah Jin Chong BB 20 4 - - 94
Chan May May REX 2 - - 9
499 3,089 244 580 4,412
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND . EEMERAAREHATH
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ M (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
11.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 11.1 EFE (B)

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E 1283 B EEE
Other emoluments
Hidl s
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  share award
and benefits scheme  Contribution
Fees in kind expenses to EPF Total
DR EE
e 2l HRMHER B8
wE KREWHG Bl EAYN e st
MYR'000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
L8 5 L85 4= 5
Executive directors: BiTEE
Chuah Choon Bin Chuah Choon Bin 42 1,969 - 370 2,381
Gan Pei Joo Gan Pei Joo 42 774 119 147 1,082
Non-executive director:  FEHITEE .
Leng Kean Yong Leng Kean Yong 112 8 - - 120
Independent non- BUHRTEE .
execulive directors:
Sim Seng Loong Sim Seng Loong
@ Tai Seng @ Tai Seng 7 - - 84
Chuah Jin Chong BB 77 3 - - 80
Chan May May BREE 77 6 - - 83
427 2,767 119 517 3,830

Note: Chuah Choon Bin is also the Group’s chairman.

ff5E : Chuah Choon Bin7r A4S @ £ E o

BERERZEBRERAE
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R E MBI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 1. EENERTELREHRATHE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ M (@&

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

11.2 Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments 112 LGRS HFALTHME

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
included two (2021: two) directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 11.1. The aggregate emoluments
in respect of the remaining three (2021: three) individuals
are as follows:

REE2022F12831HILEEE
rEENAAREESHATEER
LEE (2021F : M%) HiMS
R EF11 1R E BN HER=
(2021%F 1 =%) ATHEE4R%E
mE

2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F95 *F
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN REYMG 1,625 1,418
Bonuses TE4T 316 243
Contribution to EPF EEATREMHNR 233 199
Equity-settled share award scheme expenses LA i 45 B9 IR 1 52 B
e 763 259
2,937 2,119
The above individuals’ emoluments are within the A THINENFUTEE :
following bands:
Number of individuals
AE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Emolument bands: ez E :
Nil = HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00078 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T
Z£1,500,0007 7T - 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T
Z£2,000,0007 7T 3 -
3 3
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 1. EEHERTBEREFHFALH

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ & (&)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

11.2 Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments 112 ABREHATHMNE @
(Continued)
No director or the five highest paid individuals received REE20225F12831HIEEE
any emolument from the Group as an inducement to join EEXERhGEESFATHERR
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of SRR EAME EAMAR
office during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: EEANMAXRERFHNESN
Nil). No director or the five highest paid individual has EABERAE (20216 1 ) - IR &
waived or agreed to waive any emolument during the F2022F12H31HIEEE EF
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). HEHERSHATHERENR

EREEEAME (2021F : H) °

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SRZF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KRBBEBEANELHEREANREER
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the FT5 iR T EIRE R -

following data:

(a) Basic earnings per share attributable to (@) AFEE AERGLSRESR
owners of the Company BH
2022 2021
20225 20214
Earnings BF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of NABIHBE ANEEER
the Company (MYR'000) wAl (FL&E 133,301 116,744
Number of shares iR &H
Adjusted weighted average number of KABBEETRGD
shares in issue T8 2,385,218,986 2,395,611,739
Basic earnings per share (Sen) FREAREF () 5.59 4.87

BERERZEBRERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR RMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

12. BRREF (@&

(a) Basic earnings per share attributable to (@) TREEEAEBESKRES
owners of the Company (Continued) B (@@
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the adjusted HE2021F12831HIEFE » U
weighted average number of shares in issue used in the LB EREXRENFIRARKL
above calculation of basic earnings per share has been BEDEITRMOMEFHETK
adjusted to reflect the bonus issue of shares during the AR R ZFENARZET (M
year (note 26) less shares held for Share Award Scheme. 5526) WAL BN ET BIFTIF
BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the number of B E20226F12831HIEFE > 5F
shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share BEREABIMMANKRGOEE
include the weighted average number of shares in issue BIEEETROOMETHEEHE
less shares held for Share Award Scheme. BETLIRD BN ST 2P A AR
30
(b) Diluted earnings per share attributable to (b) ELXEEE AEGLESKRIEE
owners of the Company bl
2022 2021
20225 20214
Earnings BF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of AR ANELERN
the Company (MYR’000) wH (FL&E 133,301 116,744
Number of shares P& E
Adjusted weighted average number of KA EETRDINE
shares in issue T 2,385,218,986 2,395,611,739

Effect of shares awarded under
Share Award Scheme

RIRAR D SR 5t 8

TR E 4,959,147 3,563,303

Adjusted weighted average number of
shares in issue for the purpose of

SAEESREEENRAN
KRR HITRG

calculating diluted earnings per share IIHEF 98 2,390,178,133 2,399,175,042
Diluted earnings per share (Sen) SREERF (W) 5.58 4.87
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AT ER R MY 5E

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

13. DIVIDENDS

13. IR2
(a) Dividends attributable to the year: (@) FEEELRE :
2022 2021
2022 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
<5 *aE
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.02 per ERFAAKREEREER

ordinary share (2021: HK$0.02 per 0.02% 7t (20214F : 88

ordinary share) 3@ AR0.0278 7T) 27,143 25,766

(b)

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability at the end of reporting
period, but reflected as an appropriation of retained

profits for the year ended 31 December 2022.

REEEHHBEERZEZERS
BREERSHART BERR A
& HEREZE20226E12831
HIEFERFRBEAEMELEAR
B o

Dividends attributable to the previous (b) BEMBEEELRE (1?
financial year, approved and paid during FRHLERIRD) -
the year:
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<E G
Final dividend in respect of the previous BETBFEENRBARE
financial year, of HK$0.02 per ordinary share &R E20.0278 7T
(2021: HK$0.02) (20214 @ 0.0287T) 26,904 16,998
BEREZEEERAERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

oG =
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% -BEKRHRE
Furniture,
Buildings on  Machineries fittings
leasehold and and office Electrical Motor  Construction
land equipment equipment Computers installation vehicles in progress Total
Mgtz i RE
BF HEREE RNAERE Bl BRHEE AE ERIR @it
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
TeE TeE T35 TeE ¢35 T35 FeE T35
Cost 528
As at 1 January 2021 20211818 85,964 15,039 1,230 5,281 2,448 1,208 35,400 146,570
Additions RE 406 3,581 34 838 - 89 4,342 9,290
Disposal e - (283) - - - - - 2,836)
Written off b6 - - - (108) - - - (105)
Transfer during the year FRER 4,368 109 56 - 334 - (4,867) -
Transfer to investment deposit ~ BEZRERS (fi522)
note 22) - - - - - - (17,751) (17,751)
As at 31 December 2021 120215128318 90,738 15,893 1,320 6,014 2,182 1,297 17,124 135,168
As at 1 January 2022 20221818 90,738 15,893 1,320 6,014 2,782 1,297 17,124 135,168
Additions RE 184 27,504 267 1,416 - 179 11,012 40,562
Disposal HE - - - - - (174) - (174)
Witten of s 260) - - (137) 32 - - @29)
Transfer during the year FREE 618 15,924 376 - - - (16,918) -
Exchange differences ERER - - (19) (1) - - - (20)
Asat31 December2022  H2022%12F31H 91,280 50,321 1,944 7,202 2,750 1,302 11,218 175,107
Accumulated depreciation B3t E
As at 1 January 2021 R2021E181H 13,827 10,924 447 3,675 2,321 962 - 32,156
Current charge B 1,508 824 251 1,095 20 124 - 3,822
Disposal HE - (450) - - - - - (450)
Written off ise - - - (108) - - - (105)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12B31H 15,335 11,298 698 4,665 2,341 1,086 - 36,423
As at 1 January 2022 *20221518 15,335 11,298 698 4,665 2,341 1,086 - 35,423
Current charge B 1,558 2,256 319 1,064 37 116 - 5,350
Disposal HE - - - - - (174) - (174)
Written off 6 - - - (137) - - - (187)
As at 31 December 2022 420225126318 16,893 13,554 1,017 5,592 2,318 1,028 - 40,462
Carrying amount iREfME
As at 31 December 2022 420226126318 74,387 45,767 927 1,700 312 274 11,218 134,645
As at 31 December 2021 *20215£12E31H 75,403 4,595 622 1,349 441 211 17,124 99,745

1 82 PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

15. LEASEHOLD LAND 15. fAE L
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H <*E
Cost s

At the beginning of the year REH] 36,985 8,705
Additions (note) AE () - 28,280
At the end of the year RER 36,985 36,985

Accumulated amortisation Rty
At the beginning of the year R 1,520 1,374
Current charge BPEAZ 145 146
At the end of the year REXR 1,665 1,520
Carrying amount at the end of the year REXRNEREE 35,320 35,465

Note: A land was acquired during the year ended 31 December 2021 for further
development. Amortisation was not commenced yet during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group is the registered owner of these leasehold land
in Malaysia. Upfront payments were made to acquire these
land interests and there are no ongoing payments to be made
under the terms of the land lease (i.e. no lease liabilities are
recognised).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s leasehold land of
MYR4,660,000 (2021: MYR 4,744,000) has been pledged for
banking facilities granted to the Group. Details of the secured
bank borrowing is set out in note 31.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all the leasehold land was
located in Malaysia with remaining lease terms between 40 and
50 years.

Mt @ HZE2021F12831H IEFE » —iE LUk
FEIEE— R 2 A o i E 20224 20214
12831 HIEFE  # 5 H KRG

FEERZERRAREE LAY
A A - AEBE 2RI IRLL
BzE s BREIMEERR
WEFEMR B EEDEERRE) -

122022512831 H » A& E4,660,0009 5
(20214F : 4,744,000 ) WAELHE

KR ER T AEERTHRENER FIE

HERITET R IBEN MIsEs1

20224 2021412831 H  FF BT E +
WAL FE 2R PR R » §R N FEEAA40E50
E °

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

16.

GOODWILL 16. HE
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<E L5

Gross carrying amount and net carrying R1A1HERmEARE

amount at 1 January K ERE R E 4,495 4,495
Impairment losses BB - -

Gross carrying amount and net carrying 12831 BREREA2(E
amount at 31 December KRERMEFE 4,495 4,495

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any impairment loss,
is allocated to the cash generating unit of factory automation
solutions — medical devices.

The recoverable amount for the cash generating unit was
determined based on value-in-use calculation covering a
detailed five-year budget plan followed by an extrapolation
of expected cash flows at the growth rates stated below. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the cash generating unit.

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations were as
follows:

BENREE GORERBERS
B PEETHESCHERSE—
BrganReEEE Q-

ReEEBEANTREZEATIR
BREFADLFRAE R
REEEEE ARIZ T
EXREUHERARERE - T5TH
EREBER G RREZRE
BIRBERMENTIZHEKE
BEERREELEURERR
e ERRATITIRE  rIREH
HRE-

EREEFEMEANERRRK
LI

2022 2021

20224 20214

Average growth rates T R= 8% 8%
Discount rates HrIR=E 18% 17%

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. BRCEE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
Fo5 °HE
Development expenditure (note 17.1) %ﬁﬁ"‘i‘iﬁ (fF5E17.1) 19,199 15,845
Computer software (note 17.2) BiE M (HsE17.2) 779 869
Technical know-how (note 17.3) EMEAT (f5E17.3) 15,675 17,915
Carrying amount at the end of the year MREXRMIREE 35,653 34,629
17.1 Development expenditure 171 B% X H
2022 2021
2022%FF 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F25 *E
Cost D%
Balance at the beginning of the year FFAERR 36,018 30,599
Additions NE 3,612 5,419
Balance at the end of the year FRAERR 39,630 36,018
Accumulated amortisation Htiey
Balance at the beginning of the year F LR 16,583 16,325
Current charge BPEASZ 258 258
Balance at the end of the year FREEER 16,841 16,583
Impairment loss IEES1E 3,590 3,590
Carrying amount at the end of the year W EXRMEREE 19,199 15,845

Development expenditure relates to development of
test and measurement instruments, test handler and
solutions, automation warehouse solutions and single-
use medical instruments. Development expenditure is
amortised over the estimated commercial life of 5 years.
Amortisation commences upon commercialisation of the

respective products developed.

fRRF B UK —

mEE(CERG

METHRERAEANETE A
RESERBRALDE BHLAE
REBERERSRE
B o e ST HNhst B AHRE
FREE - HENEAREREE

BHRRERRAERAE
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17.

17.2 Computer software

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

. ,u\ﬁ/ﬁé (M‘E)
17.2 EEE T

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F°5F *E
Cost 5%

Balance at the beginning of the year FYAERR 3,911 3,499
Additions NE 494 412
Balance at the end of the year FEREEER 4,405 3,911

Accumulated amortisation Rty
Balance at the beginning of the year FY4ERR 3,042 2,279
Current charge BPEASE H 584 763
Balance at the end of the year FREER 3,626 3,042
Carrying amount at the end of the year R EXRMIREE 779 869

The cost of computer software comprised the cost of

acquisition of software and all directly attributable costs

of preparing the assets for their intended use and are

amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated life

of 2 to 5 years. The amount amortised is charged to

profit or loss of the Group under administrative expenses.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

17. BRCEE (8)

17.3 Technical know-how 17.3 EFHElT
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH a1
Cost 5%
Balance at the beginning of the year and REMRER
at the end of the year 22,393 22,393
Accumulated amortisation Rty
Balance at the beginning of the year FYAEER 4,478 2,239
Current charge BPEASZ 2,240 2,239
Balance at the end of the year FEREEER 6,718 4,478
Carrying amount at the end of the year W EXRBEREE 15,675 17,915

The technical know-how represents the research
development information, technical date, design,
prototypes and empirical data related to the technology
of manufacturing and assembling of the automation
machines and die casting parts for the medical industry.
The expected useful lives of technical know-how is 10
years.

FTM#iE R B BT B Eb#
28 K B 5 1 UG5 R AR A 1 T AR A
N EEE FEMB R &R
BRI EX RN TER
BI{EFFRRAR105E

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY
(a) Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

18. m@%’\?&m%ﬁ*ﬁ'&ﬁﬁﬁ
(@) #2022 2021412831
B MEBABRGEBWNT :

Percentage of
ownership interests

Place of Issued and attributable to the Company
incorporation/ paid up EATEMGFAEEESE AL
Name of subsidiary operations capital 2022 2021 Principal activities
ERTR
WEAR R ML EE S BRRS 20225 M1E TBEE
Directly held by the Company
FARERREE
Pentamaster Technology (M) Malaysia MYR4.3 million 100% 100% Design, manufacturing and installation of
Sdn. Bhd. comprising computerised automation systems and
(‘Pentamaster Technology”) 2,400,000 shares equipment
(T Pentamaster Technology 1) EXRAE 4IBERE R BERZEEREDE
152,400,000 EXN G
13
Pentamaster Instrumentation Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia MYRO.5 million 100% 100% Design and manufacturing of automated
(Pentamaster Instrumentation”) comprising testing equipment and test and
500,000 shares measurement system
("Pentamaster Instrumentation 1) ERAD 0588%E R RHEEBERARER
A#£500,0008% e
13
Pentamaster Equipment Manufacturing ~ Malaysia MYR13.16 milion 100% 100% Equipment design and manufacturing
Sdn. Bhd. (“Pentamaster Equipment”) comprising services and the manufacturing of high
183,160,000 precision machine parts
shares
(MPentamaster Equipment J) BRAED 13.1688%S RERHREEREUREE
E1#£13,160,0008% BEREHENY
b3
Pentamaster MediQ Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR1.8 millon 100% 100% Design and manufacturing of single-use
comprising medical devices, medical equipment
1,800,000 shares and related instruments
ERAE 185895 RERME—RIBEERN
23 ,800,000?& BRERENEEGES
)

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BMBHwRRMEE

n\7|-\

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY

(Continued)

(@) Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

18. EAM]‘E’AT&F“‘?%E*%&EE%

-u-;‘ (

&)

(a) 720225 52021512831
B MEATRFENT

(Continued) =)
Percentage of
ownership interests
Place of Issued and attributable to the Company
incorporation/ paid up EAFEMEFAERERT AL
Name of subsidiary operations capital 2022 2021 Principal activities
BERTR
WEARRME ML EE S BRRE 20226 N0F TREH
Indirectly held through Pentamaster Technology
#BiBPentamaster TechnologyfJi# 5
Pentamaster Technology China Registered 100% 100% Research and development,
(Jiangsu) Limited share capital of manufacturing and sales of automated
US$3 milion testing equipment and automation
solutions as well as providing technical
services, development, consulting and
other businesses
RERENE (I8 BRAT # REEES e RERHEEBHTLRARERE
ZERERA BIEEARE URRHENRE
BE BAREMES
Pentamaster Automation Japan JPY3 million 100% 100% Design and development, production and
(Japan) Co., Ltd sales of automated test equipment,
factory automation system and other
handling solutions as well as providing
technical consulting services and other
related support services
BA SEEHE FEREE LERBERDILRAR
& IREDARREMEERA
% WRERER AR REM
A RRS
Indirectly held through Pentamaster Equipment
#&iBPentamaster Equipmentf 55
Pentamaster Equipment United States of US$0.01 million 100% 100% Providing of sales and support services
Manufacturing, Inc. America comprising
1,000 shares
ZHBERE 001EBZT REBERTERS
AFE1,0008
13
TP Concept Sdn. Bhd. (‘TP Concept”)  Malaysia MYRO0.25 million 100% 100% Manufacturing and assembling of medical
comprising machines and manufacturing of die
250,000 shares casting parts
(T'TP Concept ) BREE 0.6EBLE" RERARBEERMURREREN
AF£250,0008%
13

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MBI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY

(Continued)

(b) The Group controls a structured entity

which operates in Malaysia, particulars of

which are as follows:

18. MMB AR RZIEERMEER
ROt (48)

(b) ZAERIEH—MEERAEE

EENGEMER HFS
mE

Percentage of
ownership interests

Place of Issued and attributable to the Company
incorporation/ paid up EAFEMGFAERERT AL
Name of structured entity operations capital 2022 2021 Principal activities
ML/ BE&TR
GRENERLE i BIRRE 20226 WNE TEER
Directly held by the Company
FARERRE
PIL - PERKERJA SS LIMITED British Virgin Islands Us$2 100% 100% Purchases, administers and holds the
(‘PILPSS’) (note) comprising Company's shares for the share award
2 shares scheme for the benefit of the Group’s
eligible employees
PIL—PERKERJA SS LIMITED BERUBE & ARMEEHEHAEESERESH
(TPILPSS 1) (F3E) BiE2R R HREE  EEAFARAFNEN

Note: PILPSS is incorporated during the year ended 31 December

2020 for the purpose of purchasing, administering and holding
Company’s shares for the share award scheme. The Company
has the power to direct the relevant activities of PILPSS and
the ability to use its power over PILPSS to affect its exposure to
returns. Therefore, the assets and liabilities of PILPSS are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
Company’s shares it held are presented as a deduction in equity
as shares held for share award scheme.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

it @ PILPSSHA & £2020412831H LE4F
EsEMmir BREA RN EE S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REFE AT ZEm

2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<&H T<5
Cost of investments KRERA 6,591 6,591
Share of post-acquisition results and other e U B8 12 2 48 e HoAth
comprehensive income 2HEE (4,521) (2,885)
2,070 3,706
Investment in redeemable convertible preference 7 A] BB (0] o] s A (B S0 AR
shares (“RCPS”) (note) (MeTEE ] T EE4B PR )
W& (H:) 18,000 18,000
20,070 21,706
BEMNEEERERAT
2022 SR

191



192

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

19. REVEAT Zz = ()
AEBRBHEAR (B LTADER)
B SE B

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s interests in associates, which are unlisted
corporate entities, are as follows:

Attributable equity

Place of Issued and interest held by the Group

incorporation/ paid up FEFFFEGRE
Name of associate operations capital 2022 2021 Principal activities

M
l-YNGE 2 R BEITRARRE 20226 2021F FEEH
Penang Automation Cluster Malaysia MYR61.06 million 35.64% 35.64% Providing value added engineering

Sdn. Bhd. (‘PAC") comprising 18,400,000 development and technical

Penang Automation Cluster Sdn. Bhd.

(TPAC))

Run Gao Da Technology
(Xiangyang) Co., Ltd.

HEERE (&R ARAF

BRAED

China

FE

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ordinary shares and
41,500,000 redeemable
convertible preference
shares (2021: MYR
56.56 million comprising
18,400,000 ordinary
shares and 36,000,000
redeemable convertible
preference shares)

61.06BESE
£$%18,400,0008%
EZERK
41,500,0008%
EEHEEE
B (20214 :
5556E B LS
H14%18,400,0008%
BERK
36,000,0008%
AERTARELR

Registered share capital
of RMB1 million
ARBIEER

Z A

training to the automation cluster
companies specialised in the
areas of design, development
and manufacture of high
precision metal fabrication
components, modules and
systems for semiconductor,
electronics, automotive,
aerospace and other high growth
industries in the region

REFEER HERRERR

R EY B MAKE
NEMSERTENEHBEE
SERERTM BERARNA
BEEREAR RHUEETR
BR BN

6.67% Providing investment management

and consultation service

RUREEERAARE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REE AT ZH#EE (B)

Note:

As at 31 December 2022, the Group invested MYR18 million (2021: MYR18
million) in consideration for PCPS of PAC.

The RCPS is convertible at the option of PAC at the issue price of MYR1 per
RCPS at any time after the issuance date and up to maturity date, i.e. 28
December 2030. The Group did not have any voting rights from RCPS and only
have right to receive non-cumulative dividends at rate of 1.5% per annum based
on issue price subject to PAC achieving a profit after tax of MYR2,000,000. In the
event of liquidation of PAC, the Group ranks in priority to other classes of shares
in PAC.

As the rights and obligations of the ownership over RCPS is different from the
ordinary shares of PAC, the Group’s investment in RCPS is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 9 and measured at FVTPL.

PAC is a strategic partner to build and manage the local supply chain ecosystem
in the country that supports the Group’s long-term strategy to grow its business
in providing a wide range of high-end automated test equipment supporting
various industries globally.

In 2021, the Group transferred interest 4.36% in PAC to an existing shareholder
of PAC at a consideration of MYR66,000. The Group has retained the remaining
35.64% interest. This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain in profit
or loss of MYR641,000.

MysE

20225128318 A EEMEBHIsHRELH ( 2021
F18HESE) (EAPACKH B BB Al A B L iR

&

Al B[O AT B R I E R TTH 2 B RE R EIHH

(BP2030£E12828 ) BIT B RI LS AR A Bl [0 &)
HEIRESR S SN BT ERPACH EEETE M-
NEEREJELJEHEREBRARNTARAER
EERNUBTEAERZENE1 5%WEIER
f% B > HEPACZE % 1§2,000,0009 FHIFRE FH o (H
FEPACHER  AIANEBEBRPACHEMIER KD A
BB AL

RS # B] BR[O AT e R (B S IR O R TN B TS BAPACH
BREFTARTE > FIbAE B 5 R o] #inE
EROKRERBERYBIRESERFORETE
BRIE WA TEF ARm B

PACH TR B PiE 1L Fe B IR AN 3 (1 FE 58 A AR RAR RO B
BEA SFAEEARIRSEITEREEZNG
i BEME IR R AR REFEFIE RARBE -

20214 » N E B HEPACHI4.36 %1 4 8 38 TPAC
HN—%BAERE REA66,0009 5 c REER
B8R T35.64% M o 5% X B BN B A B R U =
641,000% % ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MBI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information of PAC

19. MBS

RE)Z i (B

EREEEARNPACH B ER B E2H

which is accounted for using the equity method: I
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
Non-current assets ERHEE 64,888 64,815
Current assets MENEE 10,204 7,465
Non-current liabilities EREBERE (2,654) (3,066)
Current liabilities mENaE (25,320) (23,002)
Non-controlling interest JEER R R (400) (406)
Net assets BEZE 46,718 45,806
Revenue & 15,791 13,431
Loss for the year and total comprehensive AFEEEERATFESA
expense for the year (note) E5184e%8 (fsD) (4,588) (4,151)

Dividends received from the associate

BWEERATRE

Note: The Group shared 35.64% of loss of MYR4,588,000 for the year ended

December 2022.

The Group shared 37.91% of loss of MYR108,000 in January 2021,
37.52% of loss of MYR142,000 in February 2021 and 35.64% of loss of

MYR3,901,000 for the period from March to December 2021.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

et REBREE2022F 128 ELFE DG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j‘ F*E% M-.l. -LI

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REERT 2= (&)
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LB B E R AR E E Y PACHI
to the carrying amount of the Group's interest in PAC is set out mZ IREEHREIWT
below:
2022 2021
20225 20214F
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F T<5
Net assets of PAC PACEEFE 46,718 45,806
Proportion of ownership interests held by the Group ZN&EBEFriTES &
e 2 EE B 35.64% 35.64%
16,650 16,325
Adjustment (note) FE (s (14,791) (12,830)
Goodwill [k 178 178
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in PAC REEFPACH
w2 ARMEE 2,037 3,673
Note: Adjustment represented the Group’s investment in PAC’s preference MisE : AEISAEEBHPACERKRIKRE  HEd K
shares which is not in proportion to equity interest shared by the Group. EEFTE IR AL A
Aggregate information of the associate that is not individually BRIFEE R E ABINVEEER .
material:
2022 2021
20225 20214F
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F *E
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial 47 & B4 75 3R 2% & 3
associate in the consolidated financial statements ~ JEE KHE A B RIERE
“{E 33 33
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of those =~ ZANEEE(EZ LR E AT
associates: ZHEEE
— profit for the year —FENEF - -
— other comprehensive income —Hth=mim - -
— total comprehensive income —2EWALEEE - -
BHRNEZEREEERAR

2022 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MBI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
2022 2021
2022 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
Raw materials R Atk 19,148 6,458
Work-in-progress Fa & 147,492 63,039
Finished goods Sk 4,294 2,509
170,934 72,006
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an ERBAMIRSFIABENEESEE
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DWW -

2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H *E

Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales, RAHEMEANEES
including: A B4E - 415,135 353,172
— write down to net realisable value — MR = e IR EE 245 362

— reversal of write down to net realisable value — R = T 23R R E
£[o] (102) (344)

The reversal of inventory written down was made when the

BF3E[0] o

related inventories were sold above cost.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. B RWFRIA

2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF G
Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 241,223 172,138
Less: ECL allowance B TEHREEEEEE (3,297) (8,095)
237,926 164,043
The normal credit terms granted to trade receivables range RFESRWFEN—REERANTFO0
from 0 to 120 days (2021: 0 to 120 days). Based on the ZE120K (20214 : 0FE120K) < RiEE
invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net EZHE BEREWEIE OMREHREE

of ECL allowance, was as follows: B 1EEE) BIERER DT U T -
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF G
0-30 days 0&E30%k 81,627 52,815
31-60 days 31&E60K 8,115 23,410
61-90 days 61Z290K 2,761 2,155
91-180 days 912180k 77,335 45,309
181 to 270 days 1812270k 40,065 23,384
Over 270 days 270K £ 28,023 16,970
237,926 164,043

BERERZEBRERAE
" 2022 R 197



198

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

21. BHEUTRIE (B)

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as B RWRIENERGEERERESE
follows: BT -
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H *E
Balance at the beginning of the year FYAEER 8,095 9,161
Amount written off during the year FRMEEEE - (1,316)
ECL allowance recognised during the year FREDNTBIAEE
BiERE 1,910 2,025
ECL allowance reversed during the year FARELNTEHREES
EERE (6,708) (1,775)
Balance at the end of the year FREEER 3,297 8,095

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

22, HithfEURTRIE -

& RN

PREPAYMENTS I8
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F e
Other receivables HAuhEW=IE 261 -
Refundable deposits AREBERE 1,865 34,146
Non-refundable deposits (note (i)) ToREEE BTEE)) 27,680 5,678
Prepayments AT ™I 610 489
VAT receivable FEUSIE (B R 95 429
30,511 40,742
Less: non-current portion B IEREE D
Deposits (note (ii)) & (W5EG) - (28,225)
Current portion RENEE Y 30,511 12,517
Notes: L

(i

Non-refundable deposits are mainly deposits paid to suppliers for
purchase of raw materials and machines.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, construction in progress
in property, plant and equipment of MYR17,751,000 was transferred
to investment deposit (note 14). The investment deposits were for a
potential investment in a manufacturing company in Taiwan. On 6 May
2022, pursuant to the Assignment Agreement entered into between the
Company, Pentamaster Innoteq Sdn. Bhd. (“PISB”), a fellow subsidiary
of the Group, and the Taiwan manufacturing company, all the rights and
obligations of the Company in the investment deposits of approximately
US$6,777,000 (equivalent to MYR28,225,000) were assigned to PISB at
US$6,777,000.

(i

FERERE T EZEMNBERME RS
BHEB RS-

HE2021F12831HIEEE  ME -BER
RERERTZ17,751,0009 S EEEER
Bigd (MsF14) - RERST AR AE—
REE AT RBERE - 72022F586H
1R¥%2</A ) ~ Pentamaster Innoteq Sdn. Bhd.
(TPISB. » AEBEZRRMBAR) REE
IS NB M NEREGE AN EREERE
FR#96,777,000% 7T (1HE 5228,225,000% &)
FRBIPR A EF R 275 06,777,0005 T8 %
FPISB°

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R



200

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MBI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 23.

LIABILITIES

The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts to

manage its exposure to sales and purchases transactions

that are denominated in foreign currencies. Foreign currency

forward contracts are categorised as derivatives and measured

at FVTPL.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently

remeasured at their fair values. The change of fair value is

recognised immediately in profit or loss. The fair value of these

contracts has been measured as described in note 40.6.

As at 31 December 2022

TEEMEE &R

AEBTIIEERGHUEERALY
SNESHENEEXR SRR INEERES
MOERMETALBAFES AR

e

il

METARTUMETRAGNERDY
TRAFERES HRRATEENST
B ATEEHFREDER -&ZF
BN AT EFT BN EE40.6P L °

1420221283181
Notional amount Settlement date Term Forward rate
LREHE #HA HAPR EHE=E
US$9,500,000 12 January 2023 to 23 May 2023 107 to 249 days MYR4.4
to
MYR 4.64/US$
9,500,000 75 2023F1F12H E2023F5823H 1072249k 44FE
464 ERET
US$43,500,000 13 January 2023 to 12 April 2023 81 to 366 days MYR4.21
to
MYR 4.25/US$
43,500,000% 75 2023F1 5130 £2023F4512H 81E366K% 421RFE
425 ERET

As at 31 December 2021

$2021F12831H
Notional amount Settlement date Term Forward rate
REEHE #HA HAPR BHAER
US$34,350,000 31 January 2022 to 7 December 2022 224 to 370 days MYR4.17
to
MYR 4.29/US$
34,350,000% 75 [A2022FE1H31HE 224F370K JATREE
20225F12A7H 42905 ERET

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

24. OTHER INVESTMENTS

25.

24. REKE

2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF G
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ 1&AF{Ezt ABEHR
TREE
- Equity securities listed in Malaysia (note) AEEZEPEEE Y
A S (s 219 374

Note: The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed securities has been
measured as described in note 40.6.

MyE

FEBR LHREHFZRENQATEERN
FH40.6FT L E 5T 8

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERIREEEY
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F *E
Cash and bank balances B K IRTTAEER 117,987 89,047
Short-term investment (note) FERRRE (FIED) 210,641 260,912
328,628 349,959

Note: The effective interest rate for the short-term investment ranged from
1.80% to 3.10% (2021:
redeemed at any time upon notice given to the financial institution. The

1.80% to 2.41%) per annum and can be

short-term investment represents investment in unit trusts. The unit trusts
invest in a mixture of money market instruments and fixed deposits with
different maturity period.

R ENERFENER1.80%E3.10%

(20214F 1 1.80%ZE2.41%) > AI @ 2R/

IS B RER O - AR ER IR B IS N B NIETE
SR E -EMETESRENREERHT
BB R EERNEREFER

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

26.

27.

SHARE CAPITAL 26. g7
2022 2021
20224 20214
Number Number

of shares MYR’000 of shares MYR’000

Rir&E F<&H Rir8B G
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR0.01ETHEER 5,000,000,000 26,052 5,000,000,000 26,052
Issued and fully paid: BETREE :
As at 1 January »1B18 2,400,000,000 12,340 1,600,000,000 8,054
Bonus issue (note) AR EETT (D) - - 800,000,000 4,286
As at 31 December 128318 2,400,000,000 12,340 2,400,000,000 12,340

Note: Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 March 2021, the issued
share capital of the Company was increased by the capitalisation of share
premium of MYR4,286,000 as bonus shares, in the proportion of one for
every two shares held by the shareholders of the Company on the record
date of 22 June 2021. Such shares rank pari passu in all respects with
the existing shares of the Company.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
of the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares of the Company and net proceeds received
from the issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium account of the Company may be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to the shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

27.

DRI 2021E3 816 BB T EREER
A TRIBIG4,286,0008 EHRMDHEE
KACIEB ARG - M 3% A A B RREF 202146
BooHX B EmMRRKRMESZE K
AR BILE GBS T AR  FBULIG N B TR
Ko ZERMEARBDRERGIRFAAEAE
BAEEMAL-

#iE

REBEE2022F %2021F12831H
EFEEZH#EBEREH2INEEMTH
BRRZEEEREER -

AR iEE

R EEEAADRGEEREAT
BATIRAD WU B P SRR P R 2 Y
o

REREEEARTE XATKRMNEE
ARATHEBE D IR IURER B TIRR 1
EREZDIRIKEERR > AAFEE
RESEHBERPMERZEHE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

27.

28.

RESERVES

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (a) the difference between the
share capital of subsidiaries acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition under the reorganisation, (b) the waiver of the
amount due to ultimate holding company of MYR21,690,000
during the year ended 31 December 2014 as deemed
contribution from ultimate holding company and (c) the
proportionate of the carrying amount of the net assets
of Pentamaster Instrumentation when PCB acquired the
additional 40% interest in Pentamaster Instrumentation in June
2017.

TRADE PAYABLES

The normal credit terms granted by trade payables range
from 30 to 180 days (2021: 30 to 180 days). Based on the
invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade payables was as
follows:

27.

28.

(B

BEARf#E
BERFEEIE(QIRIBEEA KLU ERM
BABKRABRAANBD AREMETH
ROEEBEZEZE ;)R RPEE201445
12A31HIEFERNREEZERATNR
1521,690,000% & > 1FARIERAER
NEHE R (c)EPCBR2017E68 31T
W BEPentamaster Instrumentation 40%
M P EEREELLG -

BB ETIE
BREAREBEREN—REEHENTF
30ZE 180K (20214 : 30E180K) ° iRE
BRHE B EMARIBENERR ST
T

2022 2021

20225 20214

MYR’000 MYR’000

F<EF <8

0-30 days 0&E30%k 67,936 49,222
31-60 days 31E60X 45,565 19,332
61-90 days B61E90K 4,237 1,979
91-120 days 912120k 557 2,618
Over 120 days 120K A 3,233 4,402
121,528 77,553

Included in trade payables were amounts due to the Group’s
associate of MYR371,000 (2021: MYR162,000). The
outstanding balances were trading in nature and had credit
period of 90 days (2021: 90 days). See note 39(b) for details of
these transactions.

BoENTECEENAERS
NT 7 HIE371,0009 F (20214
162,0009F) - RENEHAEZHE
B s EHIA90K (20214 © 90K) - %%
R Z 15+ 1555 2 F M EE39(0) o

BHRRERRAERAE
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

29. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND

29. HihfEIFR

RIE ~ FE 5T A B

PROVISIONS i}
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F Ea=i
Other payables HihFEGFRIA 5,918 3,964
Amounts due to former shareholders of FE — M B A BRI R
a subsidiary (note (i) I8 (FEE() - 4,780
Consideration payables related to acquisition of BREAKE—ENBEARN
a subsidiary (note (ii)) FE(TALE (B EE(i)) 2,123 11,393
Accruals FEsT& A 21,583 17,431
Provision for warranty RIEEREE 1,515 1,256
31,139 38,824

Notes:

(i

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts due to former shareholders of
a subsidiary, TP Concept are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand. The carrying amounts of the amounts due are considered
reasonable approximation of their fair values. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company has reached an agreement with former
shareholders to waive all the remaining liabilities.

The consideration payable referred to the balance amount of the
consideration payable to the outgoing vendors of a subsidiary, TP
Concept acquired in 2019. The consideration payable is subject to
achieving certain performance milestones of the subsidiary. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the performance milestones were
achieved and become final, and the Company was liable to pay the
former shareholders of the consideration payables.

During the year, an amount of MYR9,000,000 was settled to former
shareholders and the remaining balances will be paid subsequently to the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

DEE

(i

1220218128318 BT —RE M @A S Ak
BRTP ConcepthyiRIEA BIKIH £ B RBR
EREE - EARIBENRAEREATER
B WRABAIE - EE2022F128318 1k
FE AR EHBRER TAGHEARK
RIEM RS -

N REREEM—KMBAR (112019518
BBEUTP Concept) T EE S EZERER
BAREBEZZWNB AR ERE TRIRER
BRFARIR - 8 ZE2022F 12831 HILFE - %
BERMBERKRE ARTAEEEMEA
PRE S AT RS B

79°9,000,000% EEMRIRREN > 8FT
BRI BIE2022F 12831 HILFERE
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

30.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES B8R
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF G

Contract liabilities arising from receiving deposits of UERBLETBE T EERY

manufacturing orders aH8E 100,581 64,152
When the Group receives a deposit before the production AREBNEETHFHEBRINEIZE

activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the commencement of a contract. The deposit will be reversed
and recognised as revenue upon satisfying the performance
obligation of the contract.

All deposits received are expected to be settled within one
year.

The significant increase of contract liabilities as at 31
December 2022 is mainly due to the increase in the deposits
received as a result of more purchase orders during the year.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year
amounting to MYR61,789,000 (2021: MYR15,471,000) have
been recognised as revenue during the year.

BN ENBEBEELESNEaE
ERNTERNEONENEERERL T
TS AU E o

BEWEINRERERAN—FEREE-

SHBEER2022F12831H A RIE M
EHPNERAREIIEEINERD
e I8 INFTEY

FEHKERES
= (20214 : 15,471,000%
FE AU o

N EEA61,789,0005
=) BHERA

BHRRERRAERAE
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

31. BANK BORROWING

As at 31 December 2021,
contains a repayable on demand clause and is shown under

the Group’s bank borrowing

current liabilities. The carrying amount of bank borrowing is
considered to be a reasonable approximate of its fair value. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowing, based on
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreement,
is repayable as follows:

. iR1 TﬂaTA

$20219F 128318 » ZEBEMNRITEM

BERERBEFERG O LR a
BIE T 2R IRITERNREERERES

HAFENSIEMAE - 102021F128

31H > AEENRITERERERHE

FREERRE BERERAT

2022
20224 20214F
MYR’000 MYR’000

Fos 2

2021

Within one year R—FERN
==

In the second year
In the third to fifth year

WECEETe
After the fifth year NELER

- 425
- 439
- 1,408
- 293

- 2,565

As at 31 December 2021,
denominated in MYR and the effective interest rate was 3.30%
per annum. The bank borrowing is secured by the leasehold
land of the Group (note 15) and corporate guarantee provided
by the Company up to a limit of MYR4,500,000. The bank
borrowing was fully repaid during the year ended 31 December
2022.

the bank borrowing was

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2021128318 IRITERIUS TS
B BEEFNEXAH3.30% EITEIIU
AREBBBEE H (I5E15) 7EIRIF A
HA R B H LR %4,500,0009 F Y
NEER - IRITERBE R ELE20224F12
A31BEFERMEERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

32. DEFERRED INCOME

32. EIEUTA

2022 2021

20225 20214

MYR’000 MYR’000

F<EF G

Balance at the beginning of the year F LR - 1,746
Released to profit or loss #0148 m = (1,746)
Balance at the end of the year FRAEER - -

Deferred income represents government grants received by
certain subsidiaries for reimbursements of capital expenditure
spent on modernisation and upgrading of specified
machineries and equipment. Deferred income is released to
profit or loss over the periods to match the related cost which
the grants are intended to compensate. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to the grants.

EIEWATEETHEB R MRERTE
HaRERRBRACKRARNEELS S
0 Y B BY B A B © 3R SEUR A I B &5 48
BB EN AN AN RAEANEESE
B EARMZ S MM RERIE M
HEIME L

BHRRERRAERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MBI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

33. DEFERRED TAX

The movement during the year in the deferred tax (assets)/

liabilities is as follows:

33. EIEHIIA

RIEMIE (BE) /AENEREZEHN
o

2022 2021

20225 20214

MYR’000 MYR’000

F<&F *E

At 1 January »1B1H 4,078 4,837
Recognised in profit or loss RIBRIES (324) (759)
Exchange difference bl 2 = RE 8 -
At 31 December P’12831H 3,762 4,078

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to

offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)

during the year is as follows:

BIEMIBEEKRER (RE—RBEE
& IR aRAT) N EREFIT ¢

Deferred tax assets IRERIEE &
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH 4=

Tax losses: RIEEIE :

At 1 January R1B1H (221) -
Recognised in profit or loss RIBRIES 213 (221)
Exchange difference b7 A %R 8 -
At 31 December K128318 - (221)

208 PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

33. IRIEMIE (BB)

Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEA R
2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH *aE
Fair value adjustment on business ¥BEHZ
combination: NAERE:
At 1 January I I=R=! 4,299 4,837
Recognised in profit or loss FRIE R R (537) (538)
At 31 December ’12831H 3,762 4,299
NON-CASH TRANSACTION 34. IEREXRS
The Group entered into the following non-cash transactions REBFIUNTIERER S ZEEH
which are not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash TER e RENERP R
flows:
- During the year ended 31 December 2021, bonus shares - HZE2021F12B31HILLEE B

issued by capitalisation of MYR4,286,000 of share
premium are non-cash transactions and excluded from

B4,286,0008 SHRMD B E
BEARCMBETHNARAIEIRESR

the consolidated statement of cash flows (note 26); and 5o Tt AizaRERER (M
26) 5 &
- During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group - HZE2021F12B31HILEEE K

disposed of a machinery in TP Concept to former owner
of TP Concept. Sales proceeds of MYR719,000 was

offset with other payables.

LEEM@TP ConceptlIaiEAR AH
EHRTP ConceptBI i o $5 €&
FR187RIE719,000% H B E M FE
S RIBIE A o

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MBI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 35. MEEIELNAREHR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities are as MEEHEENESEHRUOT
follows:
Amount
due from
ultimate
holding Bank
company borrowing Total
& Uit &R 4% P2 B
ATIFE RITHE™R st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H F<H F<EH
As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1B1H (20) 2,565 2,545
Cash flows REME 14 (2,565) (2,551)
As at 31 December 2022 1420225128318 (6) - (6)
As at 1 January 2021 72021FE181H - 2,976 2,976
Cash flows RERE (20) (411) (431)
As at 31 December 2021 2021512831 H (20) 2,565 2,545

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI EE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

36. ZRBZMBRRE

2022 2021
20224 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F25F *E
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT R 88,776 88,576
Current assets RENBE
Other receivable and prepayment H fh FEWERIE K T 7B 580 336
Amounts due from subsidiaries N EYNCIE e 29,951 31,160
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary U — BB &M
AGIEQE 21 24
Amount due from holding company e UNCIE L 3 20
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREHEY 1,167 1,906
31,722 33,446
Total assets WEE 120,498 122,022
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExkaR
Share capital [N 12,340 12,340
Reserves (note) fEE (s 107,529 109,220
Total equity s 119,869 121,560
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities Wit A=Y=
Accruals FEstE 629 462
Total liabilities E =it 629 462
Total equity and liabilities HESREE 120,498 122,022

Gan Pei Joo
Director

EF

Chuah Choon Bin

Director

EF

BERERZEBRERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. A8 Z MR RE (&)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: B 5E
The movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows: KABIEEESHOT -
Shares
held for
share Share Proposed
Share award award Capital Accumulated final
premium scheme reserve reserve losses dividend Total
BOES ] ffa e
BivEE HEZRH REE BAfE FatEE FERSE @t
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
FoE TR F9E  FeE  Few TR Te%
(note 27) (note 37) (note 37) (note 27) (note 13)
(Mztor) (Byztar) (izk37) (yztor) (z£13)
As at 1 January 2021 R2021E181H 84,936 (5,8349) - 86,776 (54,206 16,672 128,239
Purchase of shares for share award scheme  BLAR{A BT BIRE B AR A7 (FIZE3T)

(note 37) - 2,201) - - - - (2,201)
Equity-settled share award scheme expenses MBS EHRHE D EFHS

(note 37) (Hi5%37) - - 5,597 - - - 5,597
Vesting of shares of share award scheme BERIN R EINRN ([5H37)

(note 37) - 3,781 (3,331) - (450) - -
Bonus issue (note 26) AT 4T (f1sko6) (4,286) - - - - - 4,286)
Transactions with owners ABEFANRZ (4,286) 1,580 2,266 - (450) - (890)
Loss and total comprenensive expense FRBEERZERTER

for the year - - - - (1,131) - (1,131)
2020 final dividend approved (note 13) EHER2020ERERE (H5H13) - - - - (326) (16,672) (16,998)
2021 final dividend proposed (note 13) BE021FRBRE (HEH13) - - - - (25,766) 25,766 -
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 1220215128318 k202251818

2022 80,650 (4,269) 2,266 86,776 (81,969) 25,766 109,220
Purchase of shares for share award i EC R AR

scheme (note 37) - (13,865) - - - - (13,865)
Equity-settled share award scheme NEmEENRHREH IR

expenses (note 37) (GEX) - - 7,574 - - = 7,574
Vesting of shares of share award scheme ~ SBR{DEEENS BI0IRID (Hfskar)

(note 37) S 6,656 (6,134 S (522) - S
Transactions with owners BREANRS - (7,209) 1,440 - (522) - (6,291)
Profit and total comprehensive income FREHREEKGEE

for the year - - - - 31,504 - 31,504
2021 final dividend approved (note 13) B ER2021 FRBRE (H5E13) - - - - (1,138) (25,766) (26,904)
2022 final dividend proposed (note 13) BiE2022F RHRE (H513) - - - - (27,143) 27,143 -
As at 31 December 2022 1#2022%12A8318 80,650 (11,478) 3,706 86,776 (79,268) 27,143 107,529

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L F/Z

37.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 1 April 2020, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Scheme” or the “Share Award Scheme”) in which the
Group’s employees will be entitled to participate.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise the contributions
by certain employees and to incentivise them to achieve the
Group’s long-term business goals and objectives. The Scheme
also serves as part of the Group’s employee retention program
in retaining its existing employees and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the Board
and the trustee in accordance with the scheme rules and the
trust deed of the Scheme. Subject to any early termination
as may be determined by the Board, the Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on its
adoption date (i.e. 1 April 2020).

The maximum number of shares to be subscribed for and/
or purchased by the trustee by applying the trust fund of the
Scheme for each calendar year for the purpose of the Scheme
shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares as
at the beginning of such calendar year. The directors of the
Company shall not instruct the trustee to subscribe and/or
purchase any shares for the purpose of the Scheme when
such subscription and/or purchase will result in the said limit
being exceeded. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected employee under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares from time
to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a sum of
approximately HK$25.6 million (equivalent to approximately
MYR13.9 million) (2021:
approximately MYR2.2 million)) has been used to acquire
24,618,000 (2021: 3,110,000) shares from the open market by
the trustee of the Scheme.

HK$4.1 million (equivalent to

37.

RrfniEmh =t

1202044810 AARRA—ER
{382 B Et B) (Tazst 811 o AR 1) S8 By 5t
2)  AEENESHERS R

ZEENBENRREETRENER
THEREFERAERNRAXHE
ReoZstEI M ERAEREEREE
B—E LU BEHBERNEE LIRS
GENABUESHAEENE-—D
Bo

Z & A %%'ﬁ%&%ﬂuﬁ R 5t &
RAKRZ BN EERNBHEE bR
EFEAEBENEARSRIEIN Z
AEBERERRBREAI10E T H
R4 HEA (BP2020F4B1H) B4 ©

REARZENERBERBEETA
ZEBEEEERTRBR HBE
BRmHEEB LR BN SBEBRZEBESE
M B EITRMD BEBISS% - 5 A B
B/ UEERERBE LARE )
ARBEEFAFETRZFEARZKE
RER/NEEEARY - ZEET
E*EET%&WZ&@%Ei@T
SEBEETHERITRMOBEIII%-

HE2022F 12831 HIEFE > ZetE=
SEABAEaHN2.6EEE T HHER
#13.9EBLE) (2021F (4158 HE
T (AERKN228E<SH)) AM™
B UREE AN B]24,618,00008 (20214 :
3,110,0008%) B&1% °
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37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The Shares granted under the Share Award Scheme of the
Company during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

37. RIDIEENETE (B)
P& FE20224F K2021FE12831H IEFE
B BRERMOERTERE ZKRMO W

2021 are as follows: o
Exercise period
At the beginning  Granted during Vested during Bonusissue  Lapsed during At the (both dates
Date of grant of year the year theyear  during the year the year end of year inclusive)
R 78
RiAS REH BiEH ERFR BTAR ERRHM REX (BFEREMA)
Year ended 31 December & Z202212H31H
2022: LLEE:

4 January 2021 202151848 10,882,611 - (5,441,153) - (705,764) 4,735,694 4 January 2022 -
3 January 2023
2022F1R4BE

202351838

1 July 2022 202257818 - 18,000,000 (6,000,000) - (834,012) 11,165,988 1 July 2022 -

1 July 2024
202%F7A1HE
202457818
Year ended 31 December ~ EE2021512531H
2021: ILFE:

4 January 2021 20211548 - 11,402,000 (3,800,602) 3,627,537 (346,324) 10,882,611 4 January 2021 -
3 January 2023
2021F154BE
20231538

Note: fEsE -

The Board has full discretion to determine the amount of the share award to be
vested to selected employees at the end of a performance period in accordance
with the performance criteria approved by the Board. These performance criteria
include at least one service year and key performance index.

The Company granted 18,000,000 (2021: 11,402,000) shares to selected
employees on 1 July 2022 (2021: 4 January 2021), which will be vested in
tranches of one-third each on every anniversary date of the grant date starting
from the 1st anniversary date until the 3rd anniversary date. The fair value
of the granted shares is calculated based on the closing market price of the
shares of HK$0.92 (2021: HK$1.70) on the day of the grant, and amounted to
HK$16.6 million (equivalent to approximately MYR9.3 million) (2021: HK$19.4
million (equivalent to approximately MYR10.1 million)) in total. Together with the
granted shares in 2021, the Group recognised a Share Award Scheme expense
of HK$13.4 million (equivalent to approximately MYR7.6 million) (2021: HK$10.5
million (equivalent to approximately MYR5.6 million)) during the year ended 31
December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of 11,441,153 (2021:
3,800,602) awarded shares were vested. The cost and the fair value of the
related vested shares were HK$13.0 million (2021: HK$7.3 million) (equivalent to
approximately MYR6.7 million (2021: MYR3.8 million)) and HK$11.4 million (2021:
HK$6.4 million) (equivalent to approximately MYR6.1 million (2021: MYR3.3
million)) respectively. The difference of MYR522,000 (2021: MYR450,000) was
charged to retained profits. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
Shares held for Share Award Scheme was HK$20.2 million (2021: HK$8.3 million)
(equivalent to approximately MYR11.5 million (2021: MYR4.3 million)).

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 38. B KR
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF *E
Contracted but not provided for [ERESEES 3=
— Property, plant and equipment —ME-BERZE 53,974 7,993
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. FBARS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRRGEMBERREMIE DMK ES
statements, the Group had the following transactions with hs REBRAFE LR S 5T T35
related parties during the year: X5 .
(a) Names and relationship (@) BBRAEE
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
RAEk 5 2B BZAREERIR %
PCB Ultimate holding company
RIS AT
Pentamaster Smart Solution Sdn. Bhd. Fellow subsidiary
(“Pentamaster Smart Solution”) EEXEIANE
PAC Associate
= /NE]|

BEMNEEERERAT
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

39. G R 5 (&)

(b) Related party transactions (b) BAEEARSZ
2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
Purchase from: 4=
- PAC —PAC 2,757 1,871
— Pentamaster Smart Solution —Pentamaster Smart
Solution 450 -
Rental income from: HEWAKE :
— Pentamaster Smart Solution —Pentamaster Smart
Solution 20 20
- PCB —PCB 34 34
The related party transactions were conducted in the Bkt *%Eﬁ“-ﬁ%?’zkﬁqﬂ
normal course of business and at prices and terms no ET RBEBERERFTHBRE
less than those charged to and conducted with other REBEEMSE = HFTWE R E A
third parties of the Group. ERHME=ZRFARITHE
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) TEEEAESHM

Key management personnel are those persons
including directors having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Group, directly or indirectly. The remuneration of key
management personnel during the year is as follows:

TEEEAEROREFENE
ERNDKRETEZRXBZRE
BEREWNAERZHHAL
TEEBASNFERRIFMOT

2022 2021

20224 20214

MYR’000 MYR’000

F95 °H

Salaries, allowances and bonuses e BN TEAL 10,792 9,608

Contribution to EPF BEABEHN 1,417 1,164
Equity-settled share award scheme expenses LU %5 45 S Y BG 19 52 B

RS 3,184 1,263

15,393 12,035

2 1 6 PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(d) Balances with related parties

39. RAMS R % ()
(d) FBREETS&SER

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F25 5
Amount due from/(to) a fellow subsidiary: U~ (1) AR B AR
g -
Trade nature: g5ME
— Pentamaster Smart Solution —Pentamaster Smart
Solution (194) -
Non-trade nature: FEEZME !
— Pentamaster Smart Solution —Pentamaster Smart
Solution 15 17
Amount due from ultimate holding FEUR R AR IERRABIFRIA ©
company:
Non-trade nature: JFESMHE .
- PCB —PCB 6 20
The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, FEUR 1T BE B 75 TR 1B A& S 19

interest-free and repayable on demand except the

balances of trade nature which are repayable on normal

trade terms.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks arising
from their operations. The key financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines and the
Group’s policy is not to engage in speculative activities.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in

which it manages and measures the risks.

EERARBEREE EBES

HARERBEZIRNE

40. MERAMEERATFENE

AEEEBRREEENSIRYFHER -
FEMFRBEEEERR RABES
JRV B ~ M 2R R B e S BE ST LR o AN
BBk R E RS R E A E Y
BRB T EEE AR

FEBPMERMITAREZ ARER N
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
40.1 Categories of financial assets and

40. E(ﬁ%)‘)ﬂl‘fa““ii&’&qzﬁﬁﬁ
WIERHEEREEDE

liabilities
2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H *E
Financial assets ERHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZ
SREE
— Investment in RCPS — A o] BE (o] m] i
BERNEE 18,000 18,000
— Derivative financial assets —TEETREE 489 1,246
— Equity securities listed in Malaysia — X FE2RPEEE ETHAY
A8 5 219 374
Financial assets at amortised cost PRI A ST 2
SREE
— Trade receivables —BZEWHIA 237,926 164,043
— Other receivables and deposits —HMEWRIE &g E 2,126 34,146
— Amount due from ultimate holding — B RAER AT
company B 6 20
— Amount due from a fellow subsidiary —EW—ER RS
REIFIA - 17
— Cash and cash equivalents — R R ER 328,628 349,959
587,394 567,805
Financial liabilities A=
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL BN EFAERZ
Gy =
— Derivative financial liabilities —TEEmas 6,847 -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1% # 84 At &M
SRaE
— Trade payables — B ENRIBE 121,528 77,553
— Other payables and accruals —HMENRIBER
fEEtE 29,624 37,568
— Amount due to a fellow subsidiary — BN —ER AR
REIFIA 179 -
— Bank borrowing —iRITER - 2,565
158,178 117,686

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEREEERATFESE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (,%a)
40.2 Credit risk 402 ZER %

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and from its investing
activities.

The maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised
financial assets is limited to the carrying amounts as
summarised in note 40.1.

Trade receivables

Credit risk arising from trade customers is addressed by
the application of credit evaluation and close monitoring
procedures by the management. The Group grants
to existing customers credit terms ranging from 0O to
120 days (2021: 0-120 days). In deciding whether
credit terms shall be extended, the Group will take into
consideration factors such as the relationship with the
customer, its payment history and credit worthiness.

New customers are subject to a credit evaluation process
and existing customers’ risk profiles are reviewed
regularly with a view to setting appropriate terms of
trade and credit limits. Where appropriate, further sales
are suspended and legal actions are taken to attempt
recoveries and mitigate losses.

FERREHFIABTHEHEYN
BERGAEETRMBERZE
o AEENEERBREERA
REHEEBBRETATARY
EEMKEHERE LRS-

ERITMEENEAREERR
AERMN M40 1 PREE A BR T
B

B 5 EKRE

REESGEEFNEERRERAE
EERBGEETBREBTEE
BEFTUBR- XEBRETRA
BEREEHRIERENF0OE120K
(20214 | 0E120K) - R ER
FEREEHR  AEEREE
MAEFRG HORE R RE
BEEERR-

AERTCHENEZRIAKREER
HoOMERAETEETGEER
MmRBEFLHNERAR KRBT E
TEM-MER E—FTHETY
R REBUERTHE A W EIM
B RO IRK o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)
40.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

In addition, as set out in note 2.13, the Group assesses
ECL under IFRS 9 on trade receivables based on
provision matrix, the expected loss rates are based on
the payment profile for sales in the past 5 years as well
as the corresponding historical credit losses during that
period. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking macroeconomic factors affecting
the customer’s ability to settle the amount outstanding.
At the end of each reporting period, the historical default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. In applying the forward-looking
information, the Group has taken into account the
possible impacts associated with the overall change in
the economic environment arising from COVID-19.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECL, which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables using a provision
matrix. The ECL rate of collectively assessed trade
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired is
ranged from 0.00% to 0.00% (2021: 0.00% to 0.00%),
past due between 0 to 30 days is ranged from 0.25% to
1.13% (2021: 0.94% to 1.17%), past due between 31 to
90 days is ranged from 0.11% to 0.91% (2021: 0.00% to
0.51%), past due between 91 to 365 days is ranged from
0.85% to 3.98% (2021: 0.00% to 0.64%) and past due
more than 365 days is ranged from 50% to 100% (2021:
50% to 100%). ECL allowance recognised for the year is
MYR1,910,000 (2021: MYR2,025,000).

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Trade receivables (Continued)

It is inherent in the Group’s business to make individually
large sales to its customers that may lead to significant
concentration of credit risks. Such risks are managed
by ensuring that transactions are only carried out with
customers with a reliable financial profile. As at 31
December 2022, 27% (2021: 8%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer
and 43% (2021: 34%) of the total trade receivables
were due from the five largest customers of the Group
respectively.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include amounts
due from ultimate holding company and a fellow
subsidiary, other receivables and deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. In order to minimise the credit risk of
other receivables, the management would make periodic
collective and individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience as well as current external
information and adjusted to reflect probability-weighted
forward-looking information, including the default rate.
Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
these regards, the credit risk of other receivables are
considered to be low.

Besides, the management is of opinion that there is no
significant increase in credit risk on other receivables
since initial recognition as the risk of default is low and
the outstanding balance is insignificant after considering
the factors as set out in note 2.13 and, thus, no ECL is
recognised based on 12-month ECL.

The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents are
considered to be insignificant because the counterparties
are banks/financial institutions with high external credit
ratings.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND MEEIGEERATEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (4&)
40.2 Credit risk (Continued) 40.2 B (48
B 5 MEERIE (48)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
40.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage
of funds. The Group actively manages its debt maturity
profile, operating cash flows and availability of funding so
as to ensure that all repayment and funding needs are
met.

The Group aims at maintaining a balance of sufficient
liquid assets and flexibility in funding by maintaining credit
facilities with banks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities as at 31 December
2022 and 2021. When the creditor has a choice of when
the liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis
of the earliest date when the Group can be required to
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group is committed to pay.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND HERREERAFEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (,%a)
40.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) S MENEREME (&)
The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the TXENEBEAIMRESHE
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities. BERRITRREREEL
Within Over Total
1 year or 1 year but Over undiscounted Carrying
ondemand within 5 years 5 years amount amount
—ERY —ENE
BEX BRER EEME RIFHEE BREE
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
T<F L5 <5 T<E FLE
As at 31 December 2022 12022128310
Non-derivative financial liabilties — F#T£ZFEE
Trade payables BRELHIE 121,528 - - 121,528 121,528
Other payables and accruals HiERHIER
et ER 29,624 - - 29,624 29,624
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary & —FEIR &M B AT
A 179 - - 179 179
151,331 - - 151,331 151,331
Derivative financial liabilities rtEMan
Gross settled forward foreign FEAHNERINES
exchange contracts “
- Cash inflow HERA 183,842 - - 183,842
~ Cash outflow BaA (190,689) - - (190,689)
(6,847) - - (6,847)
As at 31 December 2021 20214128310
Non-derivative financial labilties — FEfT4£ 2B E
Trade payables B EIRE 77,553 - - 77,553 77,553
Other payables and accruals HitEAHIER
fExtER 37,568 - - 37,568 37,568
Bank borrowing RITER 2,565 - - 2,565 2,565
117,686 - - 117,686 117,686
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
40.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowing with repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
bank loan agreement. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with the loan covenants, is up to date
with the scheduled repayments of the loans and does
not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise
its discretion to demand repayment for so long as the

RS R
(H‘E)

RERRATENE

/)IL@JQEHFM (:%E)

TERBBEFRTEERRFIEBE
ERNRERBARBEREREE
IRREVERITERN B E D2

EETCHEREHZSEEE LS
METER ecETHRERE
BN URARBAEREE

BTZFER RITITEERE
RrERMBIE B AR BEME R K o

Group continues to meet these requirements. The EEHEE ZERTEELETE
directors believe that this bank borrowing will be repaid in BIRITEEHETIBENERTEE
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out MHHEAERERE-
in the bank loan agreement.
Over
Within 1 year but Over
1year  within 5 years 5 years Total
—E)E
—&R BRER AEME st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
TeE TeE TeE S
As at 31 December 2021 120214128310
Bank borrowing RITER 503 2,013 296 2,812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. BB RAMEERATFENE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (48)

40.4 Interest rate risk 40.4 ) 2 & B3
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value MERBABRRMIZANEES
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate EMTARFERRSAEIN
because of changes in the market interest rates. The Bk REBNEAREMURZ
Group’s short-term investment and bank borrowing EMNEFENRERTEESHE
bearing variable rates exposes the Group to cash flow AEBAZRERFAERRE R
interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the 2022F 20215128318 » & &
exposure to interest rates for the Group’s bank deposits BIIR1T /7 AU m B B ) = R A
is considered minimal. RAMINRE-
The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing AEBEZNRSHRNVEIRED
financial instruments based on the carrying amount as at EtEEm T AENFIENT .

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Effective As at Effective As at
interest rate 31/12/2022 interest rate 31/12/2021
1420224 14202145
BRI 12831H BEAx 12B31H
MYR’000 MYR'000
FeE 2
Variable rate instruments AEFETA
Bank borrowing RITR™M - - 3.30% 2,565
Short-term investment THRE 1.80% - 3.10% 210,641 1.80% -2.41% 260,912
BHBHIZEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I‘I

BMIFEmRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
40.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the

40.5

Group’s profit after income

tax for the year and equity to

a possible change in interest rates with effect from the

beginning of the year. This sensitivity analysis is provided

RS R
(H‘E)

RERRATENE

40.4 F R EEE @
TRITAEBR A EERAG

ﬁ &

F w8 FERER
FIREEFHRE - THKE

7 7fFr77J NEMETZEEEAER

internally to key management personnel. ftto
2022 2021
2022 20215
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/
in profit (Decrease) in profit (Decrease)
or loss in equity or loss in equity
BEEm/ rezgm,/ BREm/ Bmigm/
(A (Fb) (A2 (R)
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
TeE TeE 5 8
Interest rate: il
Increase by 50 basis point 18 IN501E &34 1,053 1,053 1,295 1,295
Decrease by 50 basis point A S0EE 2 (1,053) (1,053) (1,295) (1,295)
Foreign currency risk 40.5 §ME& BB 52 [ B

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a

result of its normal trading activities whereby sales and

purchases are principally transacted in US Dollar (‘US$”),

which is not the functional currency of the Group entities

to which transactions relate. The Group also holds

financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies.

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. FBREBEERATEFE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (48)
40.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 40.5 SMSEE R R BE (48)
The Group mitigates the exposure of this risk by AEEFZBRITETITEIRITR
maintaining US$ denominated bank accounts and enters PREIINEERSLRBEZER
into foreign currency forward contracts. %8 A ©
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and SNEBSHETRBEEREBEIRIR
liabilities, translated into MYR at the closing rates, are as EXRBMASEHNT !
follows:
Hong Kong
Singapore Dollar
us$ Euro Dollar RMB (“HK$”)
e Bt g AR¥E  Bx (TFEr)
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
For  F9E  FeE  F9E T4

As at 31 December 2022  1202212831H

Trade receivables BREWNEIE 154,423 11 212 34,218 -
Cash and cash equivalents ~ B&RFELEEY 26,353 17,801 386 23,838 534
Trade payables BRENFTE (17,043) (17,100) (145) 9,771) -
Net exposure BREETE 163,733 712 453 48,285 534

As at 31 December 2021 12021128310

Trade receivables BREWEIE 123,630 - 334 11,009 -
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BRE&ERELEEY) 24,099 12,920 513 12,491 1,809
Trade payables BRECHE (12,948) (493) (346) (137) -
Net exposure Yt 134,781 12,427 501 23,453 1,809
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation AEBFERMHET BT AR
in US$, Euro, RMB and HK$. & Ko B 7T R B e B 89 R LB ©
BERERZEBRERAE

2022 SR 227



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M SRR MIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. BERAMEERAFENE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (&)
40.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 40.5 SMEEEE R A bR (48)
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s TRIRAEBRAFERE
profit after income tax for the year and equity in regard ReaMREaEESAEBEE
to an appreciation in the Group entities’ functional NEERRET B AREBR
currencies against US$, Euro, RMB and HK$. These BTABEBNSRKE ZEHHE
sensitivity rates represent the management’s best EEERREEBHINEEZRD]AE
assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange BENRETG
rates.
Sensitivity Decrease Decrease
rate in profit in equity
BRAELEE | e A =R
MYR’000 MYR’000
] F<EH

As at 31 December 2022 22022%F12831H

US$ ETT 13% 16,177 16,177
Euro BroT 7% 38 38
RMB AR 7% 2,569 2,569
HK$ BT 13% 53 53
As at 31 December 2021 1%2021F12831H

us$ E7T 5% 5,122 5,122
Euro BroT 7% 661 661
RMB ARE 7% 1,248 1,248
HK$ BT 5% 69 69
The same % depreciation in the Group entities’ functional KEBERINEEE R BRINE
currencies against the respective foreign currencies HNERBSLERESEAERFER
would have the same magnitude on the Group's profit for miRETEREEEERNE
the year and equity but of opposite effect. Zo

228 PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. BB RAMEERATFENE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (48)

40.6 Fair value measurement of financial 40.6 TR TERAFEE
instruments
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value REEaMBERIRZLATFESE
in the consolidated statement of financial position are HNEMEERBESA=ZEBAF
grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The BEMK —ZEEBAENRSTENE
three levels are defined based on the observability and RKEAFBREITREMEROT

significance of inputs to the measurements, as follows:

Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active B HABEKRBRIGE
markets for identical assets and liabilities MHISHERE CREHE)

Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included B RMEEREREEENE
within Level 1 that are observable for the ERUEIECE SN S €
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, (B—RANBENRE
and not using significant unobservable BRSN - BEREREARF
inputs AR A B

Level 3:  significant unobservable inputs for the B REEREBRHEARS
asset or liability Bl ER R A Bk

BEMNEEERERAT
" 2022 ¥R | 229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. HBERAREERATFENE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) (48)
40.6 Fair value measurement of financial 406 TR TARXFEE @
instruments (Continued)
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the THEENEEEBAERAN
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is NFEEBRANEBR BERH
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the NFEEFEEEEARENRE
fair value measurement. REg A (E o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-1 -t $=H 483t
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
TeE FeE FeE FeE
Financial assets: EHEE:
As at 31 December 2022 #2022512A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEF AR EREE
- Equity securities listed in Malaysia —RERBEE TN
RAES 219 - - 219
- Derivative financial assets (note i) —fTESREE () - 489 - 489
~ Investment in RCPS (note i) — R BB A SR E R R
1®& (ki) - - 18,000 18,000
219 489 18,000 18,708
As at 31 December 2021 12021512831H
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABR  EREE
- Equity securities listed in Malaysia —RERAT LHH
RAES 374 - - 374
- Derivative financial assets (note ii) —frEEmEE () - 1,246 - 1,246
— Investment in RCPS (note iii — R ER SR ELRN
K& (ki) - - 18,000 18,000
374 1,246 18,000 19,620
Financial liabilities: EREE:
As at 31 December 2022 12022128311
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEFAEBR EREE
- Derivative financial liabilities (note i)~ —fT4ESREE (i) - 6,847 - 6,847
. 6,847 - 6,847

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/ZE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
40.6 Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is estimated by
comparing the contractual forward price and the quoted forward
price, which are observable at the end of the reporting period.

The details of the fair value measurement of investment in RCPS
categorised under Level 3 fair value hierarchy are described
below:

40. FAF5 K

()

REBRATENE

406 TRITEXAFEHE @)

5T

(i)

B E2022F12A31HLEFE  $—
MREREE — MR BN e (20214 ¢

) -

SNEBASOZATFEDEBLER
SREREREERARE MWREH
RAJERE) fhsto

DERE=ZRATFESZHRZIEL
BREARREZATESES
BT

Valuation Unobservable Discount

technique input rate

fRERM TABREARE REIRE

Investment in RCPS Price/book ratios Discount of 15.80%
of comparable lack of (2021: 15.80%)

companies

A BRI #IRE R R E

The fair value of investment in RCPS is determined using the
price/book ratios of comparable listed companies adjusted for
lack of marketability discount. An increase in the discount for lack
of marketability would decrease the fair value. As at 31 December
2022,
an increase/decrease in discount of lack of marketability by 10%

it is estimated that with all other variables held constant,

(2021: 10%) would decrease/increase the Group’s profit for the
year by MYR1,416,000/MYRnil (2021: MYR341,000/MYRnil).

AAELRARZHERE

marketability

=5 15.80%
BT (20214 : 15.80%)
R AR A SR ELRIEENAT

BRI ELER EHABMNHIRE
(HARBRZmE BTN mETT
HAE) FUBE - BZHERAENEN
N mERELFE. ﬁAzozzfﬁ
128318 st EFRB EMmE RS
HAEHNERT ﬁ%zfﬁiﬁuuL&
BIHTI03E A0, R0 10% (20214 -
10%) B EAE B EFR LD 18 m
1,416,0009 % /T2 E (20214 :
341,0009% /T4 %E) °

BHRRERRAERAE
2022 F4R
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41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

41.

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard the

Group’s ability to continue its operations as a going concern

and to provide adequate return to shareholders. In order to

maintain the optimal capital structure, the Group may, from

time to time, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or sell

assets to reduce debts, where necessary.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HmRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H IFF/E

BAXERE
AEBEREANERARBEAES
RS AR RIEMT RE

o MR
AREREBEZREITHMRMD

1%%215227% s REE I BE

CEBEME

HBRENHEEELR OGS

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of reporting period is as RARERFEERERLENT .
follows:

2022 2021
20225 20214
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF G
Borrowing BE - 2,565
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERIREEEY (328,628) (349,959
Net cash REFE (328,628) (347,394)
Total equity BT 736,713 636,743
Net debt to equity ratio FAREERIEE N/A R3EHR N/A 78
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